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The Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Emmanuel College Issue, Series 2003
(the “Series 2003 Bonds”) to be issued by the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) will be issued under a
Loan and Trust Agreement, dated as of December 10, 2002 (the “Agreement”), between the Authority, The Trustees of Emmanuel College (the
“Institution”) and Citizens Bank of Massachusetts, as trustee (the “Trustee”), and pursuant to Chapter 614 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1968, as
amended from time to time (the “Act”).  The Series 2003 Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds in denominations of $100,000 or any
integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof for the Series 2003 Bonds bearing interest at the Variable Rate or the Flexible Rate (as defined herein),
and in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof for the Series 2003 Bonds bearing interest at the Fixed Rate (as defined herein).
When issued, the Series 2003 Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New
York (“DTC”).  Purchases of beneficial interests in the Series 2003 Bonds will be made in book-entry-only form.  Purchasers of beneficial interests
in the Series 2003 Bonds (the “Beneficial Owners”) will not receive physical delivery of certificates representing their interests in the Series 2003
Bonds.  Interest on the Series 2003 Bonds, together with the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and Purchase Price of the Series 2003
Bonds, will be paid directly to DTC, so long as the Series 2003 Bonds are held in book-entry-only form.  The final disbursements of such payments
to the Beneficial Owners of the Series 2003 Bonds will be the responsibility of DTC, the DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants, all as
defined and more fully described herein.  See “THE SERIES 2003 BONDS—Book-Entry-Only System” herein.

For so long as the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Daily, Weekly or the Flexible Modes (as defined herein), the Purchase Price, principal of and
interest on the Series 2003 Bonds will be payable from a Credit Facility (as defined herein).  Upon the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds, the initial
Credit Facility will be an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit (the “Initial Letter of Credit”) issued by Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch
and State Street Bank and Trust Company (the “Banks”).  See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2003 BONDS.”
Under the Initial Letter of Credit, each of the Banks will be obligated, for so long as the Series 2003 Bonds bear interest at a Daily Rate or Weekly
Rate, to pay one-half of (i) the principal of and interest on the Series 2003 Bonds, when due and (ii) the Purchase Price of the Series 2003 Bonds
tendered for purchase by the registered owners thereof and not remarketed, as described herein.  The obligations of the Banks under the Initial
Letter of Credit are several and not joint.  The Initial Letter of Credit will expire on January 23, 2007, unless earlier terminated or extended as
described herein.  See “LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT” herein.

The Series 2003 Bonds will initially bear interest at the Weekly Rate, as more fully described herein.  The Series 2003 Bonds will continue to
bear interest at the Weekly Rate unless, at the option of the Institution, the Series 2003 Bonds are adjusted to bear interest at the Daily Rate,
Multiannual Rate, Flexible Rate or Fixed Rate, all as described herein.

The Series 2003 Bonds in the Weekly and Multiannual Modes will be subject to tender for purchase on demand of the registered owners thereof
on any Business Day upon seven days’ notice given by such registered owners to the Trustee.  The Series 2003 Bonds in the Daily Mode will be
subject to tender for purchase on demand of the registered owners thereof on any Business Day upon the same day’s notice given by such registered
owners to the Trustee.  The Series 2003 Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode and the Flexible Mode will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase
(i) on the date of conversion or proposed conversion from one Mode to another Mode and, during the Multiannual Mode, upon a conversion from
a Rate Period of one length to a Rate Period of a different length and (ii) in connection with the expiration or termination of the Credit Facility or
in connection with the substitution of the Credit Facility.  Series 2003 Bonds in the Daily or Weekly Modes are also subject to mandatory tender
for purchase following receipt by the Trustee of a notice from the Agent Bank that an event of default has occurred under the Reimbursement
Agreement and directing the mandatory purchase of the Series 2003 Bonds.  The purchase of the Series 2003 Bonds may be made with the proceeds
of the remarketing of such Series 2003 Bonds by J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as Remarketing Agent for the Series 2003 Bonds.  The purchase of
the Series 2003 Bonds may also be made with proceeds of drawings under the Credit Facility and from certain other funds, as described herein.

The Series 2003 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, including extraordinary redemption, mandatory redemption, optional
redemption and mandatory sinking fund redemption, as set forth herein.

The Series 2003 Bonds shall be special obligations of the Authority payable solely from the Revenues (as hereinafter defined) of the Authority
paid to the Trustee, for the account of the Authority by the Institution in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement.  The payments pursuant
to the Agreement are a general obligation of the Institution.  Reference is made to this Official Statement for pertinent security provisions of the
Series 2003 Bonds.

THE SERIES 2003 BONDS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABILITY OF THE COMMONWEALTH
OF MASSACHUSETTS (THE “COMMONWEALTH”) OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, OR A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH
AND CREDIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OR ANY SUCH POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE
SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES PROVIDED UNDER THE AGREEMENT.  NEITHER THE COMMONWEALTH NOR THE
AUTHORITY SHALL BE OBLIGATED TO PAY THE SERIES 2003 BONDS OR THE INTEREST THEREON EXCEPT FROM SUCH
REVENUES.  NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE COMMONWEALTH OR OF ANY POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE SERIES 2003 BONDS.
THE ACT DOES NOT IN ANY WAY CREATE A SO-CALLED MORAL OBLIGATION OF THE COMMONWEALTH TO PAY DEBT
SERVICE IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT BY THE INSTITUTION.  THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE ANY TAXING POWER.

The Series 2003 Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and accepted by the Underwriter subject to prior sale, to withdrawal or modification
of the offer without notice and opinions as to legality and certain other matters by Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel.
Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Institution by its counsel, Ropes & Gray, Boston, Massachusetts.  Certain matters will be passed
upon for the Underwriter by its counsel, Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., Boston, Massachusetts.  It is expected that the Series
2003 Bonds in definitive form will be available for delivery to DTC in New York, New York or its custodial agent on or about January 23, 2003.

JPMorgan
Dated: January 10, 2003



 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS PUBLIC OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR 
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE SERIES 2003 
BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE THAT MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. 
SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Authority, the Institution or the 
Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than as contained in this Official 
Statement and the Appendices hereto in connection with the offering described herein, and if given or made, such 
other information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing.  This 
Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than 
those identified on the cover page or an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy such securities in any 
jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make such offer, solicitation or sale.  The Authority neither has nor assumes 
any responsibility as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Official Statement, other 
than that appearing under the captions “THE AUTHORITY” and “LEGAL MATTERS” (but only insofar as it 
relates to the Authority). 

Certain information contained in this Official Statement has been obtained from the Institution, DTC, the Banks 
and other sources that are believed to be reliable.  No representation or warranty is made by the Authority, however, 
as to the accuracy or completeness of such information, and nothing contained in this Official Statement is, or may 
be relied on as, a promise or representation by the Authority.  The information herein relating to the Authority, and 
its affairs and condition, has been provided by such entity, and the Institution makes no representation with respect 
to or warrants the accuracy of such information.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of 
securities referred to herein and may not be used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.  The information and 
expression of opinions set forth herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official 
Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no 
change in the affairs of the parties referred to above since the date hereof. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement.  The Underwriter 
has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibility to 
investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the 
Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 
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INTRODUCTION 

 
 The purpose of this Official Statement is to furnish certain information in connection with the sale by the 
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) of its $40,400,000 Variable Rate 
Demand Revenue Bonds, Emmanuel College Issue, Series 2003 (the “Series 2003 Bonds”).  The Series 2003 Bonds 
will be issued under a Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of December 10, 2002 (the “Agreement”) between the 
Authority, The Trustees of Emmanuel College (the “Institution”) and Citizens Bank of Massachusetts, as trustee (the 
“Trustee”).  The Series 2003 Bonds are to be issued in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement and Chapter 
614 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1968, as amended from time to time (the “Act”).  The information contained in 
this Official Statement is provided for use in connection with the initial sale of the Series 2003 Bonds.  The 
definitions of certain terms used and not defined herein are contained in Appendix C – “DEFINITIONS OF 
CERTAIN TERMS.” 
 
 The Series 2003 Bonds are being issued to finance the costs of the construction and renovation of certain 
facilities located on the Institution’s campus.  See “THE PROJECT” and “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES 
OF FUNDS” herein. 
 
 On the date of delivery of the Series 2003 Bonds, the Institution will cause to be delivered to the Trustee an 
initial Credit Facility consisting of an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit (the “Initial Letter of Credit”) issued by  
Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch and State Street Bank and Trust Company (the “Banks”).  Under the 
Initial Letter of Credit, each of the Banks will be obligated to pay to the Trustee for so long as the Series 2003 
Bonds bear interest at the Daily Rate or Weekly Rate one-half of (i) the principal of and interest on the Series 2003 
Bonds, when due, and (ii) the Purchase Price of the Series 2003 Bonds tendered for purchase by the registered 
owners thereof and not remarketed, as described herein.  The obligations of the Banks under the Initial Letter of 
Credit are several and not joint.  See “THE LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT” 
herein.  For more information regarding the Banks see “Appendix E – CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE 
BANKS.” 
 
 The Series 2003 Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority and shall be payable solely from the payments 
to be made from certain funds pledged under the Agreement.  For so long as the Series 2003 Bonds are secured by a 
Credit Facility, funds pledged under the Agreement include draws by the Trustee honored by the issuers of the 
Credit Facility.  See “Appendix E – CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANKS.” 
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SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2003 BONDS 

General Obligation 

The Authority, the Institution, and the Trustee have executed the Agreement, which provides that, to the extent 
permitted by law, the Agreement is a general obligation of the Institution and that the full faith and credit of the 
Institution are pledged to its performance. 

The Agreement provides, among other things, that the Institution shall make payments to the Trustee equal to 
principal of and interest on the Series 2003 Bonds and certain other payments required by the Agreement.  The 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the Series 2003 Bonds and the interest thereon 
have been fully paid or until adequate provision for such payments has been made. 

The Agreement provides, among other things, that while the Series 2003 Bonds are supported by a Credit 
Facility and are in the Daily Mode, Weekly Mode or Flexible Mode, no later than the opening of business on the 
business day next preceding each Interest Payment Date the Institution shall pay to the Trustee for deposit in the 
Bond Fund an amount equal to the interest payment then coming due on the Series 2003 Bonds plus 1/12th of the 
annual installment of principal next coming due, if any, by redemption.  While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the 
Multiannual Mode or the Fixed Rate Mode (whether or not they are supported by a Credit Facility), on each 
December 15 and June 15 the Institution shall pay to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund an amount equal to 
the interest coming due on such Bonds on the next January 1 or July 1, as the case may be (plus any principal 
coming due by redemption). 

Special Obligation of the Authority 

The Series 2003 Bonds are special obligations of the Authority, equally and ratably secured by and payable 
from a pledge of and lien on, to the extent provided by the Agreement, the moneys received by the Trustee for the 
account of the Authority pursuant to the Agreement. 

THE SERIES 2003 BONDS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT, LIABILITY OR SO-
CALLED MORAL OBLIGATION OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION THEREOF, BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES DERIVED BY 
THE AUTHORITY UNDER THE AGREEMENT.  THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE TAXING POWER. 

The Letter of Credit 

Upon the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds, the Banks will provide the Initial Letter of Credit.  The obligations 
of the Banks under the Initial Letter of Credit are several and not joint.  Each Bank is liable for 50% of the amount 
of each draw.  The Initial Letter of Credit will expire on January 23, 2007, unless earlier terminated or extended as 
described herein.  The Initial Letter of Credit will be issued in an amount equal to $40,964,494, which equals the 
aggregate principal amount of the Series 2003 Bonds, plus 51 days’ accrued interest thereon at the Maximum 
Interest Rate of 10% per annum.  Under the terms of the Agreement, the Institution may substitute the Initial Letter 
of Credit with a substitute Credit Facility subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement. 

Pursuant to the Agreement, for so long as the Series 2003 Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility, each Credit 
Facility shall be in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of the Series 2003 Bonds and (a) 51 days’ accrued 
interest at the Maximum Interest Rate on the principal amount of the Series 2003 Bonds then Outstanding in the 
Daily Mode and the Weekly Mode or (b) for all other Modes, such coverage as may be required to obtain a rating on 
the Series 2003 Bonds from Moody’s or S&P, as applicable.  See “THE SERIES 2003 BONDS” and “LETTER OF 
CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT” herein. 

No Security in Real or Personal Property 

The Series 2003 Bonds are not secured by a mortgage lien or security interest in any real or personal property of 
the Institution or any other party.  The mortgage which the Institution may hereafter be required to grant to State 
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Street Bank and Trust Company, as agent (the “Agent Bank”) for the Banks, will be for the benefit of the Banks and 
will not secure the Series 2003 Bonds.  See “Appendix G – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT.” 

THE AUTHORITY 

The Authority is a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality of The Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth”) organized and existing under and by virtue of the Act.  The purpose of the 
Authority, as stated in the Act, is essentially to provide assistance for nonprofit public and private institutions for 
higher education, private nonprofit schools for the handicapped, nonprofit hospitals and their nonprofit affiliates, 
nonprofit nursing homes and nonprofit cultural institutions in the construction, financing, and refinancing of projects 
to be undertaken in relation to programs for such institutions. 

Authority Membership and Organization 

The Act provides that the Authority shall consist of nine members who shall be appointed by the Governor and 
shall be residents of the Commonwealth.  At least two members shall be associated with institutions for higher 
education, at least two shall be associated with hospitals, at least one shall be knowledgeable in the field of state and 
municipal finance (by virtue of business or other association) and at least one shall be knowledgeable in the field of 
building construction.  All Authority members serve without compensation, but are entitled to reimbursement for 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as members of the Authority.  The Authority shall 
elect annually one of its members to serve as Chairman and one to serve as Vice Chairman. 

The members of the Authority are as follows: 

DAVID T. HANNAN, Chairman; term as member expires July 1, 2006.   
 
 Mr. Hannan, a resident of Hingham, is President and Chief Executive Officer of South Shore Hospital and its 
not-for-profit, tax-exempt parent organization, South Shore Health & Educational Corporation of South Weymouth, 
Massachusetts.  He is a member of the American College of Healthcare Executives, and the American Hospital 
Association.   
 
 JOSEPH G. SNEIDER, Secretary; term as member expires July 1, 2005. 
 
 Joseph G. Sneider, a resident of Newton, is Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of C&S Candy Co., Inc. 
located in Brockton and Justice of the Peace of the Commonwealth.  Mr. Sneider served as a trustee of Boston 
University Medical Center, (University Hospital), Boston.  Mr. Sneider served as Senior Vice President of Olympic 
International Bank & Trust of Boston.  He also served on a number of public boards and commissions, and he 
belongs to several civic associations. 

 
ROBERT E. FLYNN, M.D.; term as member expires July 1, 2006.   

  
Dr. Flynn, a resident of Dedham, is the former Chair of the Board of Caritas Christi, a current member of the 

Board of Governors of Caritas Christi, the former Secretary of Health Care Services for the Archdiocese of Boston, 
the Past Chairperson of the Massachusetts Hospital Association, and former Chairman of the Department of 
Medicine at St. Elizabeth's Medical Center of Boston.  In 1991, Dr. Flynn was named a Distinguished Professor by 
Tufts University School of Medicine.  He is a Trustee of St. Elizabeth’s Medical Center, Good Samaritan Hospice 
and St. Mary’s Women and Infant’s Center.  His current memberships in Medical Societies include the Boston 
Society of Psychiatry and Neurology, the Massachusetts Medical Society, and the American Medical Association, 
and he is a Fellow of the American Academy of Psychiatry and Neurology. 
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MARVIN A. GORDON; term as member expires July 1, 2003. 
 

Mr. Gordon, a resident of Milton, is Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Treasurer of Whitehall 
Companies in Norwood, Massachusetts.  From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Gordon served on the board of Directors to 
Techniek Development Co. of San Diego, California.  He also served as Chairman of the Board of US Trust Norfolk 
(Milton Bank and Trust) from 1974 to 1976 and as Vice President and Member of the Executive Committee from 
1971 to 1974.  Mr. Gordon has been actively engaged in non-profit, charitable and civic activities.  His affiliations 
include Treasurer and Chairman of the Finance Committee of Milton Hospital Corporation, President, Milton Fuller 
Housing Corporation, and Corporator of Curry College.  Mr. Gordon has been elected to and appointed to a number 
of public boards and belongs to several civic associations.  Mr. Gordon holds a degree from Harvard College and 
Harvard Business School. 
 

JOHN E. KAVANAGH, III; term as member expires July 1, 2004. 
 
 Mr. Kavanagh, a resident of Ipswich, is President and Chairman of William A. Berry & Son, Inc., one of the 
oldest construction companies in the country.  During his 16 years as President, he has redirected the company’s 
focus from restoration specialties to a full-service building and construction management organization, with 
emphasis on meeting the full range of customer needs: planning, design, construction, operation and maintenance 
services.  Mr. Kavanagh is Chairman of the Board of the North Shore Music Theater, Corporator of Brigham and 
Women’s Hospital and Partners Healthcare, Corporator of Danvers Savings Bank and a former member of Tufts 
University Board of Overseers.  
 
 ALLEN R. LARSON, ESQ.; term as member expires July 1, 2007. 
 
 Allen R. Larson, a resident of Yarmouth Port, is the founding principal of a law firm and a separate consulting 
firm, the Enterprise Management Group, that advise clients on matters of government regulation, business 
competition, market entry, and economic development.  Prior to establishing his law firm in 1984, Mr. Larson 
worked as an antitrust attorney for the Federal Trade Commission in Washington, D.C.  Currently, he is a Trustee of 
Cape Cod Community College, President of the Cape Cod Center for Sustainability, a Director of the YMCA-Cape 
Cod, and a Member of the Yarmouth Town Finance Committee.  Mr. Larson holds a degree from Dartmouth 
College and earned a J.D. from Albany Law School and an M.B.A. from the University of Minnesota. 
 
 DAVID E. PHELPS; term as member expires July 1, 2009. 
 
 Mr. Phelps, a resident of Pittsfield, is President and Chief Executive Officer of Berkshire Health Systems.  
From 1989 to 1992, Mr. Phelps was the Senior Vice President of Berkshire Health Systems and Chief Operating 
Officer of Berkshire Health Systems Management Services, Inc.  His honors and board memberships include Past 
Chairman, Pittsfield Economic Development Authority; President of the Massachusetts Council of Community 
Hospitals; Board of Trustees of the Massachusetts Hospital Association; Board Member, Massachusetts Board of 
Directors of BankNorth; Corporator of the Boys & Girls Club of Pittsfield; Corporator of the Berkshire Museum; 
and 1997 Recipient of the “Lawrence W. Strattner Distinguished Citizen Award”.  Mr. Phelps holds a B.A. from St. 
Mary’s University and an M.B.A. from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute. 
       
 ROBERT M. PLATT; term as member expires July 1, 2009. 
 
 Mr. Platt, a resident of Newton, is President of National Consulting Inc., a business development and marketing 
strategy organization which assists clients in achieving their true market potential.  Mr. Platt works in conjunction 
with both state and federal governments to facilitate the exchange of ideas and opportunities for clients.  His board 
memberships include Past President of the Newton Athletic Association; Past Board of Director of the Newton 
Youth Soccer for Boys and Girls; and Past Board Member of Youth Commission for the City of Newton.  Mr. 
Platt’s current board memberships include Commissioner of Parks and Recreation of his ward in Newton; Advisory 
Board Member for Second Step which aids women who have suffered domestic violence and abuse; and Member of 
the Board of Trustees for Curry College.  Mr. Platt holds a B.A. from Curry College. 
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RINA K. SPENCE;  term as member expired July 1, 2001.  Ms. Spence will continue to serve until she is 
reappointed or her successor takes office. 
 

Ms. Spence, a resident of Cambridge, is President and Chief Executive Officer of iEmily.com, Inc. a health and 
wellness website for teen girls.  She was also founder of Spence Centers for Women’s Health, a network of 
comprehensive outpatient health facilities.  Prior to Spence Centers for Women’s Health, Ms. Spence served as the 
president and chief executive of Emerson Hospital for ten years.  She was also the founding executive director of the 
Commonwealth Health Care Corporation; a prepaid managed care plan for health care delivery to Medicaid 
recipients.  Ms. Spence has been actively engaged in the civic life of Boston and its corporate affairs for more than 
25 years.  Her affiliations include The Partnership and the Wang Center.  Ms. Spence is a trustee of Eastern 
Enterprises and a Director of Berkshire Mutual Life and a Trustee of the State Street Master Trust.  Ms. Spence 
holds a degree from Boston University and Harvard University’s John F. Kennedy School of Government. 

Staff and Advisors 

BENSON T. CASWELL, a resident of North Andover, was appointed Executive Director of the Authority on 
April 9, 2002, and is responsible for the management of the Authority’s affairs.  From 1992 through 2002, Mr. 
Caswell worked for Ponder & Co. in Chicago where he was a Senior Vice President.  From 1987 through 1992, he 
was Vice President of Ziegler Securities, Chicago, Illinois.  From 1983 through 1986, he was an attorney with 
Gardner, Carton & Douglas.  Mr. Caswell holds a Juris Doctor from the University of Chicago, an MBA from 
Lehigh University and a BS from the University of Maine. 
 

PALMER & DODGE LLP, attorneys of Boston, Massachusetts, are serving as Bond Counsel to the Authority 
and will submit their approving opinion with regard to the legality of the Series 2003 Bonds as provided by the 
Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix H. 

PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, INC. is serving as a financial consultant to the Authority in 
connection with this financing.  The financial consultant advises the Authority in connection with the issuance of its 
obligations and certain other financial matters. 

The Act provides that the Authority may employ such other counsel, engineers, architects, accountants, 
construction and financial experts, or others as the Authority deems necessary. 

Powers of the Authority 

Under the Act, the Authority is authorized and empowered, among other things, directly or by and through a 
participating institution for higher education, a participating school for the handicapped, a participating hospital or 
hospital affiliate, a participating nursing home or a participating cultural institution as its agent, to acquire real and 
personal property and to take title thereto in its own name or in the name of one or more participants as its agent; to 
construct, reconstruct, remodel, maintain, manage, enlarge, alter, add to, repair, operate, lease as lessee or lessor, and 
regulate any project; to enter into contracts for any or all of such purposes, or for the management and operation of a 
project; to issue bonds, bond anticipation notes and other obligations, and to fund or refund the same; to fix and 
revise from time to time and charge and collect rates, rents, fees and charges for the use of and for the services 
furnished or to be furnished by a project or any portion thereof and to enter into contracts in respect thereof; to 
establish rules and regulations for the use of a project or any portion thereof; to receive and accept from any public 
agency loans or grants for or in the aid of the construction of a project or any portion thereof; to mortgage any 
project and the site thereof for the benefit of the holders of revenue bonds issued to finance such project; to make 
loans to any participant for the cost of a project or to refund outstanding obligations, mortgages or advances issued, 
made or given by such participant for the cost of a project; to charge participants its administrative costs and 
expenses incurred; to acquire any federally guaranteed security and to pledge or use such security to secure or 
provide for the repayment of its bonds; and to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes of the 
Act.  Additionally, the Authority may undertake a joint project or projects for two or more participants. 
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Indebtedness of the Authority 

The Authority has heretofore authorized and issued certain series of its revenue bonds for private colleges and 
universities, private hospitals and their affiliates, community providers, cultural institutions, schools for the 
handicapped and nursing homes in the Commonwealth.  Each series of revenue bonds has been a special obligation 
of the Authority. 

The Authority expects to enter into separate agreements with eligible institutions in the Commonwealth for the 
purpose of financing projects for such institutions.  Each series of bonds issued by the Authority constitutes a 
separate obligation of the borrowing institution for such series, and the general funds of the Authority are not 
pledged to any bonds or notes. 

THE SERIES 2003 BONDS 

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Series 2003 Bonds.  Reference is made to the Series 
2003 Bonds for the complete text thereof and to the Agreement for a more detailed description of such provisions.  
The discussion herein is qualified by such reference. 

Pledge of Revenues Under the Agreement 

Under the Agreement, the Authority assigns and pledges to the Trustee in trust upon the terms of the Agreement 
(i) all Revenues to be received from the Institution or derived from any security provided thereunder and (ii) all 
rights to receive such Revenues and the proceeds of such rights.  Under the Act, to the extent authorized or 
permitted by law, the pledge of Revenues is valid and binding from the time when such pledge is made and the 
Revenues and all income and receipts earned on funds held by the Trustee for the account of the Authority shall 
immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge without any physical delivery thereof or further act, and the lien of 
such pledge shall be valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise 
against the Authority irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof. 

The assignment and pledge by the Authority does not include (i) the rights of the Authority pursuant to 
provisions for consent, concurrence, approval or other action by the Authority, notice to the Authority or the filing 
of reports, certificates or other documents with the Authority, or (ii) the powers of the Authority as stated in the 
Agreement to enforce the provisions thereof. 

General 

The Series 2003 Bonds will be issued initially in the Weekly Mode in denominations of $100,000 or any 
integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof, will be dated the date of delivery and will bear interest from the date of 
delivery, payable on the Interest Payment Dates applicable to the Mode the Series 2003 Bonds are in from time to 
time.  The first interest payment date will be February 3, 2003.  The Series 2003 Bonds will mature on July 1, 2033.  
The initial interest rate will be determined by the Remarketing Agent upon delivery and thereafter, the Remarketing 
Agent shall redetermine the Variable Rate or the Flexible Rate for each Rate Period as provided below and in the 
Agreement. 

At the option of the Institution and upon certain conditions provided for in the Agreement, the Series 2003 
Bonds (a) may be converted or reconverted from time to time to or from the Daily Mode, Weekly Mode or 
Multiannual Mode (collectively, the “Variable Rate Mode”) which means that the Rate Period is, respectively, one 
day, one week or six months or any multiple of six months, (b) may be converted or reconverted from time to time 
to or from the Flexible Mode, which means that the Rate Periods is from one to 270 days as provided in the 
Agreement, or (c) may be converted to the Fixed Rate Mode; provided, however, that in the Multiannual Mode the 
first Rate Period occurring after conversion to such Mode may be shorter or longer than six months as provided in 
the Agreement.  Prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, the Series 2003 Bonds shall be issued in the minimum 
denomination of $100,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof.  From and after the Fixed Rate 
Conversion Date and upon satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in the Agreement, the Series 2003 Bonds shall 
be issued in the denomination of $5,000 or any multiple thereof. 
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The principal of and premium, if any, and interest on, and Purchase Price of, the Series 2003 Bonds will be 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America. 

The interest on the Series 2003 Bonds until they come due shall be payable on the Interest Payment Dates 
applicable to the Mode the Series 2003 Bonds are in from time to time.  Interest on overdue principal of any Series 
2003 Bond shall bear interest at the last interest rate in effect on such Bond before the principal or premium became 
overdue until duly paid or provided for. 

While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Weekly or Daily Mode, interest on the Series 2003 Bonds will be 
payable on the first Business Day of each calendar month.  While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Multiannual 
Mode, interest on the Series 2003 Bonds will be payable on each January 1 and July 1.  During any time that the 
Series 2003 Bonds are in the Flexible Mode, interest shall be payable on the first Business Day following the end of 
the period during which a Flexible Rate is in effect.  In any event, interest on the Series 2003 Bonds will be payable 
on the Maturity Date. 

Prior to and including the date of conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode, the principal of and premium, if any, on 
any Series 2003 Bonds while in the Variable Rate Mode are payable when due by check or draft in immediately 
available funds or, while in the Daily, Weekly or Multiannual Mode, if requested in writing by the registered owner 
of $1,000,000 or more principal amount of Outstanding Series 2003 Bonds, by wire or bank transfer within the 
continental United States of immediately available funds to the registered owner and while in the Flexible Mode by 
wire or bank transfer of immediately available funds within the continental United States but in both the Variable 
Rate and Flexible Modes only upon presentation and surrender of the Series 2003 Bonds at the principal office of 
the Trustee. 

Prior to and including the date of conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode, interest on the Series 2003 Bonds while in 
the Daily, Weekly or Multiannual Mode is payable in immediately available funds by check or draft or, if requested 
in writing by the registered owner of $1,000,000 or more principal amount of Outstanding Series 2003 Bonds, by 
wire or bank transfer within the continental United States of immediately available funds from the Trustee to the 
registered owner, determined as of the close of business on the applicable record date, at its address as shown on the 
registration books maintained by the Trustee and while in the Flexible Mode is payable in immediately available 
funds by wire or bank transfer within the continental United States.  So long as the Series 2003 Bonds are in Book-
Entry-Only form, principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2003 Bonds will be paid to Cede & 
Co., as nominee for the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, and as the registered owner of 
the Series 2003 Bonds.  See “THE SERIES 2003 BONDS – Book-Entry-Only System” below.   

The Series 2003 Bonds will bear interest from and including the date of delivery of the Series 2003 Bonds.  
While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Daily Mode, the Weekly Mode or the Flexible Mode, interest will be 
computed on the basis of a 365- or 366-day year, as appropriate, and actual days elapsed.  While the Series 2003 
Bonds are in the Multiannual or Fixed Rate Mode, interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year 
consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

No holder of a Series 2003 Bond in the Variable Rate Mode will be paid interest for any period at a rate higher 
than the Maximum Interest Rate.  The first Rate Period for the Series 2003 Bonds will commence on the date of 
issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds and will be at the Weekly Rate.  Upon the date of issuance of the Series 2003 
Bonds, the initial Weekly Rate borne by the Series 2003 Bonds will be determined by the Remarketing Agent in the 
manner provided in the Agreement. 

The determination of the Daily Rate, the Weekly Rate, the Multiannual Rate, the Flexible Rate and the Fixed 
Rate by the Remarketing Agent of the Series 2003 Bonds will be conclusive and binding upon the Authority, the 
Trustee, the Institution, the Banks and the Bondowners. 

Until the Series 2003 Bonds are converted to the Fixed Rate, the Series 2003 Bonds shall bear interest at the 
Variable Rate or the Flexible Rate. 
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Interest Rate Modes 

Variable Rate Mode 

Determination of Variable Rate.  At the election of the Institution and upon meeting certain conditions, the 
Series 2003 Bonds may be converted or reconverted from time to time to or from the Daily Mode, Weekly Mode or 
Multiannual Mode (collectively, the “Variable Rate Mode”). 

During the Variable Rate Mode, except as set forth below, the Variable Rate will be the rate of interest per 
annum determined by the Remarketing Agent (based on then prevailing market conditions) to be the lowest rate 
which in its judgment would enable the Remarketing Agent to sell the Series 2003 Bonds on such date of 
determination at par plus accrued interest; provided, however, that the Variable Rate may not exceed the Maximum 
Interest Rate. 

While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Daily Mode, the Series 2003 Bonds will bear interest at the Daily Rate, 
which will be determined by the Remarketing Agent by 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on each Business Day 
during such Daily Rate Period. 

While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Weekly Mode, the Series 2003 Bonds will bear interest at the Weekly 
Rate, which will be determined on the date of issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds and thereafter not later than the 
Business Day next preceding the Effective Date (as defined below), or if such day is not a Business Day, on the 
preceding Business Day.  In the event the Series 2003 Bonds are reconverted to a Weekly Mode, the interest rate 
will take effect on the date such Weekly Mode takes effect and thereafter on each Thursday. 

While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Multiannual Mode, the Series 2003 Bonds will bear interest at the 
Multiannual Rate which will be determined on the date such Mode takes effect and thereafter on the Interest 
Payment Date ending the Rate Period designated by the Institution. 

While the Series 2003 Bonds are in any Variable Rate Mode (other than the Daily Mode), the Variable Rate in 
effect for each Rate Period (the “Effective Rate” for such Period) shall be determined not later than the Business 
Day next preceding the Effective Date (such determination being made every Wednesday for Series 2003 Bonds in 
the Weekly Mode or if such Wednesday is not a Business Day, the next preceding Business Day).  The Effective 
Date in the Weekly Mode is each Thursday.  If the Remarketing Agent fails to make such determination or fails to 
announce the Effective Rate as required, the rate to take effect on any Effective Date shall be the Variable Rate then 
in effect on the day preceding such date if the Variable Rate for such preceding day was determined by the 
Remarketing Agent.  In the event that the Variable Rate for the immediately preceding day was not determined by 
the Remarketing Agent, or in the event that the Variable Rate determined by the Remarketing Agent shall be held to 
be invalid or unenforceable by a court of law, then the interest rate for such day shall be equal to 100% of the BMA 
Index made available for the week preceding the date of determination, or if such index is no longer available, or no 
such index was so made available for the week preceding the date of determination, 75% of the interest rate on 30-
day high grade unsecured commercial paper notes sold through dealers by major corporations as reported in The 
Wall Street Journal on the day the Variable Rate would otherwise be determined as provided in the Agreement for 
such Variable Rate Mode.  The Remarketing Agent shall announce the Effective Rate electronically or by telephone 
to the Trustee on the date of determination thereof, and, if by telephone, shall promptly confirm such notice in 
writing.  If the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Multiannual Mode, the Trustee shall give written notice of the Effective 
Rate, sent on the day of such determination, to the registered owners of the Series 2003 Bonds at the address shown 
on the registration books of the Trustee, or at such other address as the registered owners shall have delivered to the 
Trustee for the purpose of receiving such notices.  While the Series 2003 Bonds are in any Variable Rate Mode, any 
Bondowner may ascertain the Effective Rate at any time by contacting the Trustee or the Remarketing Agent. 

Conversions between Variable Rate Modes or between Variable Rate Mode and Flexible Mode.  While the 
Series 2003 Bonds are in the Daily or Weekly Mode, conversions to any other Mode may take place at the election 
of the Institution only on the first Business Day of any calendar month, upon ten days’ prior written notice from the 
Trustee to the registered owners of the Series 2003 Bonds.  While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Multiannual 
Mode, conversions to any other Mode, or conversions between Rate Periods of different lengths while in the 
Multiannual Mode, may take place only on a date which would have been an Effective Date for the Series 2003 
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Bonds, or the first Business Day thereafter, upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice from the Trustee to the 
registered owners of the Series 2003 Bonds; provided, however, that Series 2003 Bonds to be converted to the 
Multiannual Mode need not be supported by a Credit Facility.  Upon such conversion or reconversion of the Series 
2003 Bonds, such Series 2003 Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase upon not less than ten (10) days’ 
(if such Series 2003 Bonds are then in the Daily or Weekly Mode) or thirty days’ (if such Series 2003 Bonds are 
then in the Multiannual Mode) prior written notice from the Trustee to the Bondowners, which notice shall state that 
the Series 2003 Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase and shall state whether the Series 2003 Bonds 
will be supported by a Credit Facility. 

Written notice of a change in Mode of the Series 2003 Bonds shall be given by the Institution to the Authority, 
the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent not fewer than eleven (11) days (in the Daily or Weekly Mode) or not fewer 
than forty-five (45) nor more than sixty (60) days (in the Multiannual Mode) prior to the proposed Conversion Date.   

If the preconditions for conversion between Variable Rate Modes or between a Variable Rate Mode and the 
Flexible Mode are not met, the Trustee will deem the proposed conversion to have failed and will immediately 
notify the Remarketing Agent, and the Series 2003 Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender (other than Series 
2003 Bonds in the Daily or Weekly Mode).  In such event, the Trustee shall by 10:00 a.m. New York City Time on 
the proposed Conversion Date draw on the Credit Facility or receive funds paid by the Institution, an amount which 
is sufficient to pay the Purchase Price on such date on all Series 2003 Bonds that were to have been converted.  The 
Mode of the Series 2003 Bonds that were to have been converted will remain in effect as of the proposed 
Conversion Date, and such Series 2003 Bonds shall be remarketed in such Mode (other than Series 2003 Bonds in 
the Daily or Weekly Mode).  Upon the failure of the proposed conversion, if the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Daily 
Mode or Weekly Mode, the Trustee will immediately notify by facsimile, promptly confirmed by mail, each 
Bondowner (i) that the conversion has failed and (ii) if the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Weekly Mode, of the new 
Weekly Rate.  If the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Multiannual Mode, the Trustee shall by 10:00 a.m.  New York 
City time on the first Business Day after the proposed conversion date arrange to receive amounts available from the 
Credit Facility or paid by the Institution in an amount, which together with other funds available and amounts paid 
to the Remarketing Agent for purchase of Series 2003 Bonds in the unconverted Mode, is sufficient to pay the 
Purchase Price on such date on all Series 2003 Bonds that were to have been converted.  In no event will the failure 
of Series 2003 Bonds to be converted to another Mode for any reason be deemed to be a default or Event of Default 
under the Agreement, so long as the Purchase Price of all Series 2003 Bonds required to be purchased is made 
available as provided above. 

Flexible Rate Mode 

Determination of Flexible Rates.  Except as set forth below, the Flexible Rate shall be the rate of interest 
determined by the Remarketing Agent for each Rate Period to be the lowest rate which in its judgment, on the basis 
of prevailing financial market conditions, is necessary on and as of the Effective Date to remarket each Series 2003 
Bond having such Rate Period in a secondary market transaction at a price equal to the principal amount thereof; 
provided, however, that the Flexible Rate may not exceed the Maximum Interest Rate.  While the Series 2003 Bonds 
are in the Flexible Mode, the interest rate for each particular Series 2003 Bond will be determined by the 
Remarketing Agent and will remain in effect from and including the commencement date of the Flexible Rate 
Period selected for that Bond by the Remarketing Agent to, but not including, the last date thereof.  Notice of each 
Flexible Rate and Rate Period for each Series 2003 Bond shall be given in writing by the Remarketing Agent to the 
Trustee not later than 1:00 p.m., New York City time, on the Effective Date.  While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the 
Flexible Mode, Series 2003 Bonds may have successive Flexible Rate Periods of any duration up to 270 days each 
and ending on a Business Day and any Series 2003 Bond may bear interest at a rate and for a period different from 
any other Series 2003 Bond.  A new interest rate shall take effect on the date such Mode takes effect, and on the 
Effective Date of the next Flexible Rate Period applicable to the Series 2003 Bonds. 

On the date of any determination of such rates, the Remarketing Agent shall notify the Trustee of the rate by 
telephone promptly confirmed in writing.  The Trustee shall give written notice to the Authority and the Institution.  
Each determination of the Flexible Rate shall be conclusive and binding on the Authority, the Trustee, the Institution 
and the Bondowners.  If the Remarketing Agent fails for any reason to determine the Flexible Rate and Rate Period 
for any Series 2003 Bond while in the Flexible Mode, or if for any reason such manner of determination shall be 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such Series 2003 Bond shall be deemed to be in a Rate Period of one day 
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and the Flexible Rate shall be equal to 100% of the Prime Commercial Paper A-l/P-1 (30 days) rate shown in the 
table captioned “Short-Term Tax-Exempt Yields” in the edition of The Bond Buyer published on the day on which 
such rate is determined or, if The Bond Buyer is not published on that day, in the most recent published edition.  If 
at any time The Bond Buyer does not exist in publication or circulation, the Remarketing Agent may obtain such 
rate from a similar financial publication of daily circulation in New York City and published in English. 

In determining the Flexible Rate and remarketing Series 2003 Bonds in the Flexible Mode the Remarketing 
Agent shall (i) not offer Rate Periods applicable to Series 2003 Bonds to be converted extending beyond the day 
preceding any scheduled conversion of Series 2003 Bonds to another Mode or the expiration of a Credit Facility 
which has not been extended or renewed, (ii) maintain at all times within 270 days before a scheduled maturity or 
redemption applicable to Series 2003 Bonds in the Flexible Mode a principal amount of Series 2003 Bonds with 
Rate Periods ending on or before the Business Day preceding the maturity or redemption date to be redeemed 
sufficient to meet the maturity or redemption and not remarket Series 2003 Bonds so retired and (iii) follow any 
written directions of an Authorized Officer of the Institution, not inconsistent with the preceding clauses (i) and (ii), 
as to the Rate Periods to be made available.  The Trustee will notify the Remarketing Agent of redemptions and will 
provide such other relevant information in its possession as the Remarketing Agent may reasonably request. 

Conversions from the Flexible Mode to a Variable Rate Mode.  The Mode of the Series 2003 Bonds may be 
converted at the election of the Institution from the Flexible Mode to a Variable Rate Mode.  The Institution will 
give written notice of any such conversion to the Authority, the Trustee, the Remarketing Agent, and each rating 
agency then rating the Series 2003 Bonds specifying a Conversion Date which is a Business Day not earlier than the 
day following the expiration of the Flexible Rate Period with the longest remaining term then in effect for the Series 
2003 Bonds to be converted.  Upon such conversion or reconversion, the Series 2003 Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase.  Prior to the proposed Conversion Date, the Remarketing Agent shall not offer 
Flexible Rate Periods for the Series 2003 Bonds to be converted extending beyond the proposed Conversion Date. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the preconditions to conversion to a new Mode described in this subsection 
are not met, or the Institution does not obtain a substitute or replacement Credit Facility for the Series 2003 Bonds to 
be converted to such Mode which meets the requirements for such Mode as set forth in the Agreement, the Trustee 
shall deem the proposed conversion to have failed and shall immediately notify the Remarketing Agent.  In such 
event, the Trustee shall by 10:00 a.m. New York City time on the first Business Day after the proposed Conversion 
Date draw on the Credit Facility an amount which is sufficient to pay the Purchase Price on such date of all Series 
2003 Bonds that were to have been converted and which are secured by the Credit Facility.  In no event shall the 
failure of Series 2003 Bonds to be converted to another Mode for any reason be deemed to be a default or Event of 
Default under the Agreement, so long as the Purchase Price of all Series 2003 Bonds required to be purchased is 
made available as provided above. 

Fixed Rate Mode 

Conversion from Variable Rate Mode or Flexible Mode to Fixed Rate Mode.  The interest rate on the Series 
2003 Bonds may be converted to the Fixed Rate at the election of the Institution and upon the satisfaction of certain 
requirements.  The Remarketing Agent will determine the Fixed Rate at least seven (7) days prior to the Fixed Rate 
Conversion Date.  The Fixed Rate will be the lowest rate which in the judgment of the Remarketing Agent, on the 
basis of prevailing financial market conditions, would permit the sale of the Series 2003 Bonds on the date of such 
determination at par plus accrued interest on the basis of their terms as converted. 

The Institution may elect to convert the interest rate of the Series 2003 Bonds to the Fixed Rate upon written 
notice to the Authority, the Trustee, the Agent Bank, the Remarketing Agent, and each rating agency then rating the 
Series 2003 Bonds given not fewer than eleven (11) days (for Series 2003 Bonds then in the Daily, Weekly or 
Flexible Rate Mode) or not fewer than forty-five (45) nor more than sixty (60) days (for Series 2003 Bonds then in 
the Multiannual Mode) prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date.  In addition, portions of the Series 2003 Bonds may 
be converted as described below.  Series 2003 Bonds to be converted to the Fixed Rate Mode need not be supported 
by a Credit Facility.  On or before the Fixed Rate Conversion Date (i) the Institution will provide the Authority, the 
Remarketing Agent and the Trustee with an opinion of bond counsel to the effect that such conversion will not have 
an adverse impact on the tax-exempt status of the Series 2003 Bonds for federal income tax purposes, (ii) the Letter 
of Credit shall be returned to the Agent Bank, and (iii) the Banks shall certify that the Institution has fulfilled its 
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obligations to the Banks under the Reimbursement Agreement.  In the event of the conversion of the Series 2003 
Bonds to the Fixed Rate, such Series 2003 Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase upon not less than ten 
(10) days’ (if such Series 2003 Bonds are then in the Daily or Weekly Mode) or thirty (30) days’ (if such Series 
2003 Bonds are then in the Multiannual Mode) prior written notice from the Trustee to the Bondowners, which 
notice shall state that the Series 2003 Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase and shall state whether the 
Series 2003 Bonds will be supported by a Credit Facility. 

The Fixed Rate will become effective on the Fixed Rate Conversion Date and will remain in effect for the 
remaining term of the Series 2003 Bonds; provided, however, that conversion to the Fixed Rate will not take effect 
unless at or before 10:00 a.m. New York City time on the proposed Fixed Rate Conversion Date the Trustee shall 
have received an amount equal to the Purchase Price of all of the Series 2003 Bonds being converted. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the preconditions to conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode are not met, the 
Trustee shall deem the proposed conversion to have failed and will immediately notify the Remarketing Agent by 
telephone promptly confirmed in writing.  The Series 2003 Bonds (other than Series 2003 Bonds in the Daily or 
Weekly Mode) shall be subject to mandatory tender and the Trustee shall by 2:00 p.m., New York City time, on the 
proposed Fixed Rate Conversion Date arrange to receive amounts made available under the Credit Facility or paid 
by the Institution which, together with other funds available, are sufficient to pay the Purchase Price on such date of 
all such Series 2003 Bonds.  The Mode on the Series 2003 Bonds that were to have been converted shall remain in 
effect as of the proposed Fixed Rate Conversion Date, and such Series 2003 Bonds shall be remarketed in such 
Mode (other than Series 2003 Bonds in the Daily or Weekly Mode).  Upon the failure of the proposed conversion, if 
the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Daily or Weekly Mode, the Trustee shall promptly notify in writing each 
Bondowner (i) that the conversion has failed and (ii) if the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Weekly Mode, of the new 
Weekly Rate.  In no event shall the failure of Series 2003 Bonds to be converted to the Fixed Rate for any reason be 
deemed to be a default or Event of Default under the Agreement so long as the Purchase Price of all Series 2003 
Bonds subject to mandatory tender for purchase is made available as provided above. 

The Remarketing Agent shall, if it determines that such serialization will achieve a lower net interest cost on the 
Series 2003 Bonds, determine separate Fixed Rates to be assigned to Series 2003 Bonds to be redeemed from 
sinking fund installments in such amounts and in such years as the Remarketing Agent determines will achieve the 
lowest net interest cost on the Series 2003 Bonds; provided, however, that the principal amount of the Series 2003 
Bonds to be so selected shall equal the mandatory sinking fund installments therefor.  Each Bond to be redeemed 
from sinking fund installments in the years to which a particular Fixed Rate is assigned shall be deemed to mature 
on the last date on which any Bond bearing interest at such Fixed Rate is to be redeemed from sinking fund 
installments.  The Remarketing Agent shall determine a separate Fixed Rate for each such maturity of Series 2003 
Bonds.  On the date of determination thereof, the Remarketing Agent shall notify the Trustee electronically or by 
telephone confirmed in writing of the amounts and years assigned to the Series 2003 Bonds and the Fixed Rate.  The 
Trustee shall promptly select, by lot, the particular Series 2003 Bonds or portions thereof to be assigned to the years 
and in the amounts as determined by the Remarketing Agent.  The Trustee shall promptly notify the Institution and 
the Authority in writing of the assigned amounts and years and the Fixed Rate.  The assignment of amounts and 
years and the determination of the Fixed Rate shall be conclusive and binding on the Authority, the Trustee, the 
Institution and the Bondowners. 

Partial Conversion 

The Series 2003 Bonds may be converted in whole or in part from the Flexible Mode or any of the Variable 
Rate Modes to the Fixed Rate Mode upon compliance with certain conditions set forth in the Agreement, provided 
that not less than all of the Bonds in the Daily Mode or Weekly Mode may be converted to the Fixed Rate Mode, the 
Flexible Rate Mode or the Multiannual Mode unless both Banks have consented to the partial conversion and the 
Letter of Credit has been appropriately amended.  In the event the Series 2003 Bonds are in (or are to be converted 
to) more than one Mode, the provisions of this Official Statement and the Agreement relating to the Series 2003 
Bonds in a particular Mode (or to be converted to a particular Mode) shall apply only to the Series 2003 Bonds in 
(or to be converted to) such Mode and, where necessary or appropriate, any reference in this Official Statement and 
the Agreement to the Series 2003 Bonds shall be construed to mean the Series 2003 Bonds in (or to be converted to) 
such Mode. 



 12

In the event of any partial conversion of the Series 2003 Bonds to a new Mode, the particular Series 2003 Bonds 
to be converted shall be selected by the Trustee from all of the Series 2003 Bonds in the Mode from which Series 
2003 Bonds are to be converted and, except in the Flexible Mode, by lot from numbers assigned to each $5,000 of 
principal amount of the Series 2003 Bonds; provided, however, that for so long as Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC 
is the registered owner, the particular Series 2003 Bonds or portions thereof to be converted within a maturity shall 
be selected by DTC, in such manner as DTC may determine.  The principal amount of the Series 2003 Bonds to be 
converted shall be determined so that all of the Series 2003 Bonds shall be in the denominations required in the 
Agreement for the particular Modes.  The selection of the Series 2003 Bonds to be converted shall occur prior to the 
date that notice of mandatory tender is sent by the Trustee pursuant to the Agreement.  The Agreement may be 
amended to permit or facilitate partial conversions of the Series 2003 Bonds without Bondowner consent. 

Optional Tender 

Series 2003 Bonds (other than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds) in the Daily, Weekly and Multiannual Mode 
are subject to tender, at the option of the owner thereof, at a price (the “Purchase Price”) equal to one hundred 
percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Purchase Date (as 
hereinafter defined), upon: 

(1) in the case of Series 2003 Bonds in the Daily Mode, telephonic and facsimile notice by the registered owner 
to the Trustee not later than 9:30 a.m., New York City time, on any Business Day stating that such owner 
irrevocably elects to tender the Series 2003 Bond (or specified portion thereof) and stating the name, address and 
taxpayer identification number of such owner, the number of the Bond and the principal amount (which shall be a 
minimum of $100,000 or any multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof and shall not result in any portion of a Bond not 
tendered being below the minimum of $100,000) being tendered and the Bond will be purchased on the date of such 
notice; 

(2) in the case of Series 2003 Bonds in the Weekly or Multiannual Mode, delivery to, and receipt by, the Trustee 
of a written notice from the registered owner of such Bond (“Bondowner’s Election Notice”) which (a) irrevocably 
offers to sell such Bond or portion thereof by stating the principal amount of such Bond or portion thereof to be sold 
(a “Tendered Bond”), which portion shall be a minimum of $100,000 or any multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof 
and shall not result in any portion of a Bond not tendered being below the minimum of $100,000, and stating the 
date on which the Tendered Bonds shall be purchased (“Purchase Date”), which date shall be (i) in the case of Series 
2003 Bonds in the Weekly Mode, a Business Day at least seven (7) calendar days following delivery of the 
Bondowner’s Election Notice, and (ii) in the case of Series 2003 Bonds in the Multiannual Mode, on the next 
succeeding Effective Date, which shall not be earlier than the seventh calendar day following delivery of the 
Bondowner’s Election Notice, at a Purchase Price equal to the unpaid principal balance thereof plus accrued and 
unpaid interest thereon to the Purchase Date; and 

(3) except as otherwise provided in the Agreement for the Series 2003 Bonds in the Book-Entry-Only System, 
delivery of the Tendered Bond to the office of the Trustee at or prior to 10:00 a.m., on the Delivery Date with an 
appropriate endorsement for transfer or accompanied by a bond power endorsed in blank; provided, however, the 
Tendered Bond shall only be deemed properly tendered hereunder if the Tendered Bond delivered to the Trustee 
conforms in all respects to the description thereof in the Bondowner’s Election Notice.  If the Series 2003 Bonds are 
held in registered form with DTC, they shall be tendered in accordance with the rules and procedures established by 
DTC.  See “THE SERIES 2003 BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System” herein. 

If the Purchase Date is an Interest Payment Date, no accrued interest shall be paid as part of the Purchase Price 
on such date. 

Series 2003 Bonds which are the subject of a Bondowner’s Election Notice described in (2) above, but which 
are not tendered in accordance with (3) above, shall be deemed tendered and all rights of the owner thereof shall be 
satisfied from the deposit with the Trustee of the Purchase Price in trust for the benefit of such owner until the Series 
2003 Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been delivered to or for the account of such owner.  Series 2003 
Bonds to be tendered which are not delivered to the Trustee by the owners thereof shall have no further rights with 
respect to such Series 2003 Bonds except to receive payment of the Purchase Price therefor upon surrender of such 
Series 2003 Bonds to the Trustee. 
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the owners of the Series 2003 Bonds shall have no right to exercise an optional 
tender described therein if the Series 2003 Bonds shall have been accelerated under the Agreement and such 
acceleration shall not have been annulled. 

While the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Flexible Mode and after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, the Registered 
Owner shall have no right to tender this Bond for purchase. 

Mandatory Tender 

Change in Mode.  The Series 2003 Bonds in the Daily Mode, Weekly Mode, Multiannual Mode and Flexible 
Mode (other than Pledged Bonds) are subject to mandatory tender at a price of par plus accrued interest, if any, to 
the Purchase Date on the date of conversion or proposed conversion from one Mode to another Mode and during the 
Multiannual Mode, a conversion from a Rate Period of one length to a Rate Period of a different length, upon not 
less than ten (10) days’ (in the Daily or Weekly Mode) or thirty (30) days’ (in the Multiannual Mode) prior written 
notice from the Trustee to the Bondowners, which notice shall state that the Series 2003 Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase and whether the Series 2003 Bonds will be supported by a Credit Facility.  

Expiration or Substitution of Credit Facility; Default under the Reimbursement Agreement.  The Series 2003 
Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode (except in the Multiannual Mode if not supported by a Credit Facility) and the 
Flexible Mode are subject to mandatory tender for purchase at the Purchase Price (a) on the Interest Payment Date 
immediately preceding the expiration or termination of the Credit Facility (or the second preceding Interest Payment 
Date if the immediately preceding Interest Payment Date is not the greater of two Business Days or five calendar 
days before the expiration of the Credit Facility) if the Credit Facility is not being replaced with a substitute Credit 
Facility and the Trustee has not received an extension of the existing Credit Facility, in either case, at least forty-five 
(45) days prior to such Interest Payment Date or (b) on the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding the 
expiration of the Credit Facility (or the second preceding Interest Payment Date if the immediately preceding 
Interest Payment Date is not the greater of two Business Days or five calendar days before the expiration of the 
Credit Facility) if the Credit Facility is being replaced with a substitute Credit Facility and (c) while the Series 2003 
Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility, on the tenth day (or the next succeeding Business Day if such day is not a 
Business Day) following receipt by the Trustee of a notice from the Agent Bank that an event of default has 
occurred under the Reimbursement Agreement and directing the mandatory purchase of the Series 2003 Bonds.  The 
Trustee will give notice to the Bondowners of the mandatory tender at least ten (10) days (for Series 2003 Bonds 
then in the Daily or Weekly Mode) or thirty (30) days (for Series 2003 Bonds then in the Multiannual Mode) prior to 
the mandatory tender date; provided, however, that notice of mandatory tender by reason of an event of default 
under the Reimbursement Agreement shall be given no later than the third Business Day following the Trustee’s 
receipt of notice from the Agent Bank that an event of default has occurred under the Reimbursement Agreement.  
So long as the Series 2003 Bonds are held in the Book-Entry-Only System the Trustee will only be obligated to 
notify DTC of any such mandatory tender.  

Redemption Prior to Maturity 

The Series 2003 Bonds will be subject to redemption prior to maturity as follows: 

Extraordinary Redemption Without Premium.  The Series 2003 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity from excess moneys transferred from the Construction Fund to the Bond Fund established under the 
Agreement or to the extent moneys are transferred to the Bond Fund at the direction of the Agent Bank pursuant to 
the Reimbursement Agreement upon the occurrence of certain events including a taking in condemnation or damage 
to or destruction of all or part of the project financed by the Bonds.  Such moneys (and earnings thereon) shall be 
used to reimburse the Agent Bank for moneys drawn on the Credit Facility or to redeem an equal amount of Series 
2003 Bonds in whole or in part within one year at a redemption price equal to the principal amount redeemed plus 
accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium.  If the amount so transferred in any one calendar year is 
less than $100,000, the Trustee may, and upon written direction of the Institution shall, apply such amount to 
reimburse the Agent Bank for drawings on the Credit Facility to pay regularly scheduled payments of debt service 
instead of calling Series 2003 Bonds for redemption. 



 14

Mandatory Redemption Without Premium In the Event of Act of Bankruptcy of the Banks.  The Series 2003 
Bonds, if supported by a Credit Facility, are also subject to mandatory redemption if, within thirty (30) days after the 
occurrence of an Act of Bankruptcy of either Bank, a substitute Credit Facility has not been issued to the Trustee.  In 
such event, the Series 2003 Bonds shall be subject to redemption as a whole only from Eligible Funds within one 
hundred thirty (130) days after the occurrence of the Act of Bankruptcy of either Bank, at a redemption price equal 
to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date without premium. 

Optional Redemption.  The Series 2003 Bonds are also subject to redemption prior to maturity, as a whole or in 
part at any time: 

(i) while the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Daily Mode or Weekly Mode, at the option of the Institution, only 
from moneys drawn on the Credit Facility in the minimum denomination of $100,000 or any integral multiple of 
$5,000 in excess thereof at a redemption price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to 
the redemption date, without premium, or 

(ii) except Series 2003 Bonds not subject to redemption prior to maturity as a result of a conversion to the 
Multiannual Mode or the Fixed Rate Mode, at the option of the Authority with the written consent of the Institution 
or by the written direction of the Institution to the Authority and the Trustee.  Such redemption shall be, except in 
the case of Series 2003 Bonds in the Fixed Rate or Multiannual Modes, as a whole or in part at any time in the Mode 
selected by the Institution and, in the Fixed Rate and Multiannual Modes, in whole or in part at any time after the 
applicable No-Call Period set forth in the following schedule, in such order of sinking fund installments as directed 
by the Institution (provided that, if less than all of the Series 2003 Bonds Outstanding of a single maturity shall be 
called for redemption, Series 2003 Bonds to be so redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee by lot or in any 
customary manner of selection as determined by the Trustee), at par plus accrued interest to the redemption date as 
set forth in the following schedule: 

 
Length of Multiannual Rate 
Period/Remaining Maturity in 
Fixed Rate Period 
 

 
 

No-Call Period 

Greater than 10 years 
 

5 years 

Greater than 6, but not greater than 
10 years 
 

3 years 

Greater than 4, but not greater than 6 
years 
 

2 years 

Greater than 3, but not greater than 4 
years 
 

2 years 

Greater than 2, but not greater than 3 
years 
 

1 year 

Greater than 1, but not greater than 2 
years 
 

1 year 

Less than or equal to 1 year 0 years 
 

or a different schedule chosen by the Institution at the time of such conversion if the Institution shall provide the 
Authority and the Trustee with an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that either (i) the adoption of the schedule 
will not affect the exclusion of interest on the Series 2003 Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
or (ii) such actions have been taken as are necessary in connection with the adoption of the schedule to preserve the 
exclusion of interest on the Series 2003 Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 
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Pledged Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Institution, in whole or in part, in principal 
amounts of $100,000 or multiples of $5,000 in excess thereof, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, to the redemption date, without premium. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Installments.  The Series 2003 Bonds shall be redeemed at their principal amounts 
without premium on July 1 of each of the years and in the amounts as follows: 

Year Principal Amount Year Principal Amount 

2006 $  600,000 2020 $1,300,000 

2007 600,000 2021 1,400,000 

2008 600,000 2022 1,500,000 

2009 700,000 2023 1,600,000 

2010 700,000 2024 1,700,000 

2011 800,000 2025 1,800,000 

2012 800,000 2026 1,900,000 

2013 900,000 2027 2,000,000 

2014 900,000 2028 2,100,000 

2015 1,000,000 2029 2,300,000 

2016 1,000,000 2030 2,400,000 

2017 1,100,000 2031 2,600,000 

2018 1,200,000 2032 2,700,000 

2019 1,300,000 2033* 2,900,000 

_____________ 
*Final maturity 
 

The Institution may purchase Series 2003 Bonds and credit them (or any Institution Bonds) against any sinking 
fund installment at the principal amount or applicable redemption price, as the case may be, by delivering them to 
the Trustee for cancellation at least sixty (60) days before the sinking fund installment date.  Series 2003 Bonds 
redeemed at the option of the Institution shall at the direction of the Institution be applied to any sinking fund 
installment. 

Selection of Series 2003 Bonds to Be Redeemed 

In the event of any partial redemption, the Series 2003 Bonds will be redeemed in such order of maturity or 
sinking fund installment as directed by the Institution; provided, however, that Pledged Bonds shall be redeemed 
prior to the redemption of any other Series 2003 Bonds.  The Trustee may provide for the selection for redemption 
of portions of Series 2003 Bonds of a denomination larger than $100,000.  So long as Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC, is the Bondowner, the particular Series 2003 Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed within a maturity shall 
be selected by DTC, in such manner as DTC may determine.  See “THE SERIES 2003 BONDS - Book-Entry-Only 
System” herein. 

Notice of Redemption 

When Series 2003 Bonds are to be redeemed, the Trustee shall give notice to the Bondowners in the name of the 
Authority, which notice shall identify the Series 2003 Bonds to be redeemed, the CUSIP number of such Series 
2003 Bonds, state the date fixed for redemption and specify the office of the Trustee at which such Series 2003 
Bonds will be redeemed.  The notice shall further state that on such date there shall become due and payable upon 
each Series 2003 Bond to be redeemed the redemption price thereof, together with interest accrued to the 
redemption date, and that moneys therefor having been deposited with the Trustee, from and after such date, interest 
thereon shall cease to accrue.  The Trustee shall mail the redemption notice (i) in the case of Series 2003 Bonds in 
the Daily Mode, the Weekly Mode or the Flexible Mode, no fewer than ten (10) days prior to the redemption date 
and (ii) in the case of Series 2003 Bonds in the Multiannual Mode or the Fixed Mode, no more than forty-five (45) 
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or fewer than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, to the registered owners of any Series 2003 Bonds which 
are to be redeemed, at their addresses shown on the registration books maintained by the Trustee.  Failure to mail 
notice to a particular Bondowner, or any defect in the notice to such Bondowner, shall not affect the redemption of 
any other Bond. 

Book-Entry-Only System 

 DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 2003 Bonds.  The Series 2003 Bonds will be issued as fully-
registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each 
maturity of each series of the Series 2003 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be 
deposited with DTC. 

 DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York 
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities and Exchange Act of 
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate 
and municipal debt issues, money market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC’s participants (“Direct 
Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales 
and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and 
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities 
certificates.  Direct Participants includes both U.S. and non-U.S securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The 
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC, in turn is owned by a number of Direct Participants of 
DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation, 
MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC, and EMCC, 
also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, LLC, 
and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.  Access to the DTC system is also available to others such 
as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear 
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect 
Participants”).  DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable its Participants are on 
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.  

 Purchases of the Series 2003 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 
will receive a credit for the Series 2003 Bonds on DTC's records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of 
each Bond (a “Beneficial Owner” and collectively, the “Beneficial Owners”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and 
Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. 
Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well 
as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner 
entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interest in the Series 2003 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries 
made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will 
not receive certificates representing their ownership interest in the Series 2003 Bonds except in the event that use of the 
book-entry system for the Series 2003 Bonds is discontinued. 

 To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name 
of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do 
not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 
2003 Bonds;  DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are 
credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible 
for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

 Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect 
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 
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 Redemption notices shall be sent to Cede & Co.  If less than all of the Series 2003 Bonds are being redeemed, 
DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

 Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Series 2003 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, 
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns 
Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Series 2003 Bonds are 
credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

 Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Series 2003 Bonds will be made to Cede & 
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC's practice is to credit 
Direct Participants' accounts, upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detailed information from the Authority 
or Trustee or Paying Agent on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records.  
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is 
the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the 
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent, the Institution or the Authority, subject to any 
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and 
dividend payments to Cede & Co., (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC) is the responsibility of the Authority, the Trustee or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct 
Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the 
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

 The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that 
the Authority believes to be reliable, but none of the Authority, the Institution, Banks or the Underwriter takes 
responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

 No Responsibility of Authority, Trustee, Institution, Banks and Paying Agent.  None of the Authority, the 
Paying Agent, the Institution, the Banks or the Trustee will have any responsibility or obligations to direct 
participants or the persons for whom they act as nominees with respect to the payments to or the providing of 
notice for direct participants, indirect participants, or beneficial owners. 

 So long as Cede & Co. is the Registered Owner of the Series 2003 Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references 
herein to the Bondowners or Registered Owners of the Bonds shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not mean the 
Beneficial Owners of the Series 2003 Bonds. 

Certificated Bonds 

 DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Series 2003 Bonds at any 
time by giving reasonable notice to the Authority and the Trustee. In addition, the Authority may determine that 
continuation of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository) is not in the best 
interests of the Beneficial Owners. If for either reason the Book-Entry Only system is discontinued, Bond certificates 
will be delivered as described in the Agreement and the Beneficial Owner, upon registration of certificates held in the 
Beneficial Owner’s name, will become the Bondowner.  Thereafter, Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate 
principal amount of Bonds in other authorized denominations and of the same maturity, upon surrender thereof at the 
principal corporate trust office of the Trustee.  The transfer of any Bond may be registered on the books maintained by 
the Trustee for such purpose only upon the assignment in the form satisfactory to the Trustee.  For every exchange or 
registration of transfer of Bonds, the Authority and the Trustee may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any 
tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or registration of transfer, but no 
other charge may be blade to the Bondowner for any exchange or registration of transfer of the Series 2003 Bonds.  
The Trustee will not be required to transfer or exchange any Bond during the notice period preceding any redemption if 
such Bond or any part thereof is eligible to be selected or has been selected for redemption. 
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LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

Letter of Credit 
 
The following description is subject in all respects to the complete terms of the Letter of Credit, the form of which is 

attached hereto as Appendix F – Proposed Form of the Letter of Credit. 
 

Concurrently with the delivery of the Series 2003 Bonds, the Letter of Credit will be issued by the Banks pursuant to 
the Reimbursement Agreement.  See Appendix G – Summary of Certain Provisions of the Reimbursement Agreement.  
The Letter of Credit irrevocably authorizes draws in accordance with its terms in an aggregate amount not exceeding 
$40,964,494 (as reduced and reinstated from time to time in accordance with the provisions of the Letter of Credit, the 
“Available Amount”), of which an amount not exceeding $40,400,000 may be drawn upon with respect to payment of 
the unpaid principal amount or the portion of Purchase Price corresponding to principal of the Series 2003 Bonds, and an 
amount not exceeding $564,494 may be drawn upon with respect to payment of up to 51 days of interest on the Series 
2003 Bonds or the portion of the Purchase Price corresponding to interest on the Series 2003 Bonds (but not more than 
51 days of interest computed at the maximum rate of interest of 10% on the basis of a 365-day year).  Drawings under 
the Letter of Credit will be submitted by the Trustee to State Street Bank and Trust Company, as agent for the Banks (the 
“Agent Bank”).  Each Bank will be obligated severally to fund 50% of each drawing, but not in excess of such Bank’s 
Letter of Credit Commitment Amount (an amount originally equal to 50% of the total Available Amount of the Letter of 
Credit, subject to reduction and reinstatement in a manner similar to the reductions and reinstatements which apply to the 
Available Amount).  Neither Bank will in any event be liable for the other Bank’s share of any drawing. 
 

Subject to the provisions contained in the immediately following paragraph, each drawing under the Letter of Credit 
shall reduce the Available Amount by the amount of such drawing. 
 

After a drawing for the Purchase Price of the Bonds upon an optional or mandatory tender of the Series 2003 Bonds, 
the Available Amount shall be reinstated only upon reimbursement to the Banks for amounts drawn under the Letter of 
Credit and receipt by the Agent Bank of a certificate from the Trustee in the form required under the Letter of Credit.  
With respect to a drawing for interest payable on an Interest Payment Date as a scheduled periodic payment of interest 
on the Series 2003 Bonds, if the Trustee shall not have received, within ten calendar days from the date of such drawing, 
notice from the Agent Bank to the effect that (i) an Event of Default has occurred under the Reimbursement Agreement, 
and (ii) the interest component of the Letter of Credit will not be reinstated, then the Available Amount will 
automatically be reinstated effective the eleventh calendar day from the date of such drawing in an amount equal to the 
amount of such drawing.  The Available Amount shall not be reinstated for any drawing made with respect to a 
redemption. 
 

Termination of Letter of Credit 
 

The Letter of Credit will terminate upon the earliest of (a) the date on which all Available Amounts under the 
Letter of Credit have been drawn, (b) 5:00 p.m. (Boston time) on the date of receipt by the Agent Bank of written notice 
from the Trustee (accompanied by the Letter of Credit) stating that the Trustee has accepted a substitute Credit Facility 
accompanied by the Letter of Credit (of, if later, the effective date of such notice), (c) 5:00 p.m. (Boston time) on the date 
of receipt by the Agent Bank of a certificate from the Trustee (accompanied by the Letter of Credit) that a Conversion 
Date has occurred pursuant to which any Mode (other than a Daily Mode or Weekly Mode) will be in effect, and (d) 
5:00 p.m. (Boston time) on January 23, 2007. 

 
Reimbursement Agreement 
 
The Banks will agree to issue the Letter of Credit pursuant to the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement among the 

Banks, the Institution and the Agent Bank.  Reference is made to the Reimbursement Agreement for complete details of 
the terms thereof.  Attached as Appendix G – Summary of Certain Provisions of the Reimbursement Agreement is a 
brief outline of certain provisions of the Reimbursement Agreement which should not be considered a full statement 
thereof. 
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The Banks 

Attached as Appendix E is a summary description and certain financial information of the Banks. 

Substitute Credit Facility 

The Agreement provides that at any time prior to the expiration of the Letter of Credit, the Institution may 
provide for delivery to the Trustee of a substitute Credit Facility.  The Agreement contains provisions with respect to 
the acceptability of the substitute Credit Facility.  See “Appendix D – SUMMARY OF THE AGREEMENT – 
SUBSTITUTE CREDIT FACILITIES.” 

BONDOWNERS’ RISKS 

General 

Purchase of the Series 2003 Bonds involves certain investment risks.  In order to identify risk factors and make 
an informed investment decision, potential purchasers should be thoroughly familiar with this entire Official 
Statement (including the Appendices hereto) in order to make a judgment as to whether the Series 2003 Bonds are 
an appropriate investment.  Certain of the risks associated with the purchase of the Series 2003 Bonds are described 
below.  The following list, while not setting forth all the factors which must be considered, contains some of the 
factors which should be considered prior to purchasing the Series 2003 Bonds.  This discussion of risk factors is not, 
and is not intended to be, comprehensive or exhaustive. 

Limited Obligations 

The Series 2003 Bonds and the interest thereon are limited obligations of the Authority payable solely and only 
from the revenues and other amounts pledged therefor pursuant to the Agreement.  The Series 2003 Bonds are not 
an indebtedness of the Authority, the Commonwealth or any political subdivision thereof.  None of the Authority, 
the Commonwealth, any political subdivision thereof, the directors, officers, employee and agents of the Authority 
or any person executing the Series 2003 Bonds shall be liable on the Series 2003 Bonds, nor shall the Series 2003 
Bonds be payable out of any funds or properties other than as set forth in the Agreement.  The Series 2003 Bonds 
shall not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional, statutory or charter debt limitation or 
restriction and are not payable in any manner by taxation.  The Authority has no taxing power. 

The Letter of Credit; Default by the Banks 

The Banks will issue the Initial Letter of Credit which will authorize the Trustee to draw on the Banks, in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Initial Letter of Credit, by drafts, periodically in an amount 
equal to the principal of the Series 2003 Bonds (other than Institution Bonds and Pledged Bonds) when due, whether 
at stated maturity or upon redemption or acceleration of the Series 2003 Bonds, the Purchase Price of Series 2003 
Bonds (other than Institution Bonds and Pledged Bonds) tendered for purchase pursuant to the Agreement and up to 
51 days’ accrued interest at the Maximum Interest Rate on the principal amount of the Series 2003 Bonds in the 
Daily or Weekly Modes.  The Letter of Credit is the Bondowners’ primary expected source of payment of 
principal or Purchase Price of and interest on the Series 2003 Bonds in the Daily or Weekly Modes.  The 
obligations of the Banks under the Initial Letter of Credit are several and not joint.  Each Bank is only liable for 50% 
of the amount of each draw.  The Banks’ obligation under the Letter of Credit will be a general obligation of the 
Banks, which will not be guaranteed or secured, in whole or in part, by the United States of America or any agency 
or instrumentality thereof.  Default by either Bank under the Letter of Credit may result in insufficient revenues 
being available to pay the principal or Purchase Price of and accrued and unpaid interest on the Series 2003 Bonds.  
Certain information with respect to the Banks is included in Appendix E to this Official Statement.   

Payment of Debt Service 

The Series 2003 Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority and are payable by the Authority solely from 
payments to be made by the Institution pursuant to the Agreement and from certain funds held by the Trustee under 
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the Agreement.  For so long as the Series 2003 Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode or the Flexible Mode, funds 
pledged under the Agreement include draws by the Trustee on the Credit Facility.  No representation or assurance 
can be given that the Institution will realize revenues in amounts sufficient to make such payments under the 
Agreement.  The realization of future revenues is dependent upon, among other things, the demand for the 
Institution’s educational services, the ability of the Institution to provide the required educational services, 
management capabilities, economic developments in the Institution’s service area, the Institution’s ability to control 
expenses, competition, costs, legislation, governmental regulation and developments affecting the federal or state 
tax-exempt status of non-profit organizations and future changes in other conditions that are unpredictable.  
Unanticipated events and circumstances may occur which cause variations from the Institution’s expectations.  The 
risk factors discussed below should be considered in evaluating the ability of the Institution to make payments of 
debt service in a timely manner. 

Financial Status of the Institution and the Project 

Information with respect to the Institution and the Project is included as Appendix A.  The information was not 
obtained from an independent third party.  The financial success of the Institution and/or the Project may affect the 
risk of an acceleration of the Series 2003 Bonds prior to maturity. 

If the Institution were to file a petition for relief under the Federal Bankruptcy Code, such filing would 
constitute an “Event of Default” under the Reimbursement Agreement permitting, under the terms set forth in the 
Agreement, the mandatory tender for purchase of the Series 2003 Bonds. 

Series 2003 Bonds Not Secured by Real or Personal Property 

The Series 2003 Bonds are not secured by a mortgage lien or security interest in any real or personal property of 
the Institution or any other party.  The mortgage which the Institution may hereafter be required to grant to the 
Agent Bank for the Banks will be for the benefit of the Banks and will not secure the Series 2003 Bonds.  See 
“Appendix G –  SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT.” 

Enforceability of Remedies 

The remedies available to the Trustee, the Banks, the Authority and the Bondowners upon an event of default 
under the Agreement or the Reimbursement Agreement are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which 
are, in turn, often subject to discretion and delay.  Under existing constitutional and statutory laws and judicial 
decisions, including specifically Title 11 of the United States Code (the Federal Bankruptcy Code), a particular 
remedy specified by the Agreement or the Reimbursement Agreement may not be readily available or, if available, 
may be limited or subject to substantial delay.  The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the 
issuance and delivery of the Series 2003 Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal 
instruments by limitations imposed by principles of equity and by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, 
moratorium and similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally. 

The Agreement provides that the Institution shall make payments to the Trustee sufficient to pay the Series 2003 
Bonds and the interest thereon as the same becomes due.  The obligation of the Institution to make such payments is 
not secured by a mortgage lien or security interest in any real or personal property of the Institution or any other 
party. 

No Redemption Upon Loss of Tax Exemption 

As described under “Tax Exemption” herein, non-compliance with certain requirements of the IRC could cause 
interest on the Series 2003 Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the 
date of issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds.  The Series 2003 Bonds are not required to be redeemed and are not 
subject to mandatory acceleration, and the interest rates on the Series 2003 Bonds will not be changed, in the event 
interest thereon is determined to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.  No provision has 
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been made to compensate Bondowners for federal income taxes, interest and/or penalties which may be assessed in 
connection with any such tax liability or such determination or for any other loss or any diminution of gain which 
may occur. 

Early Redemption or Mandatory Tenders 

Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Series 2003 Bonds are subject to redemption or mandatory tender 
for purchase prior to maturity at any time at the option of the Institution (see “THE SERIES 2003 BONDS” herein). 

THE SERIES 2003 BONDS ARE BEING OFFERED ON THE BASIS OF THE FINANCIAL 
STRENGTH OF THE BANKS AND NOT ON THE FINANCIAL STRENGTH OF THE INSTITUTION OR 
ANY OTHER SECURITY NOTWITHSTANDING THE INFORMATION RELATING TO THE 
INSTITUTION INCLUDED HEREIN.  THE HOLDERS OF THE SERIES 2003 BONDS WILL NOT BE 
ABLE TO ASSESS THE LIKELIHOOD THAT PAYMENT OF THE SERIES 2003 BONDS WILL BE 
ACCELERATED BEFORE THE STATED MATURITY THEREOF BECAUSE OF AN EVENT OF 
DEFAULT UNDER THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT, UPON WHICH ACCELERATION THE 
SERIES 2003 BONDS WOULD CEASE TO ACCRUE INTEREST AND WOULD BE PAYABLE AT PAR. 
SEE “THE LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT” HEREIN.  

THE PROJECT 

 For a description of the projects being financed and refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2003 Bonds, see 
Appendix A under the heading “Description of the Projects.” 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Sources of Funds 

Principal amount of the Series 2003 Bonds $40,400,000 

 Total Estimated Sources of Funds $40,400,000 

Uses of Funds 

Deposit to the Construction Fund $35,316,532 
Repayment of Other Indebtedness     4,470,576 
Costs of Issuance, including Underwriter’s Discount and 
   Letter of Credit Fees        612,892 
 
 Total Estimated Uses of Funds $40,400,000 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Authority has determined that no financial or operating data concerning the Authority is material to any 
decision to purchase, hold or sell the Series 2003 Bonds and the Authority will not provide any such information.  
The Institution has undertaken all responsibilities for any continuing disclosure to Bondowners as described below, 
and the Authority shall have no liability to the Bondowners or any other person with respect to such disclosures. 

The Institution has covenanted in the Agreement that it will comply with any continuing disclosure 
requirements under Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission as such rule may apply to the Series 
2003 Bonds upon conversion of the Series 2003 Bonds to the Fixed Rate Mode or from time to time when the Series 
2003 Bonds are in a Multiannual Mode with periods between Effective Dates of more than 270 days. 
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TAX EXEMPTION 

 In the opinion of Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority (“Bond Counsel”), based upon an 
analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, compliance 
with certain covenants, interest on the Series 2003 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”).  Bond Counsel is of the further 
opinion that interest on the Series 2003 Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual 
or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted 
current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income.  

 Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Series 2003 Bonds and any profit on 
the sale of the Series 2003 Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes and that the Series 2003 
Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  Bond Counsel has not opined as to other 
Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Series 2003 Bonds.  Prospective Bondowners should be 
aware, however, that the Series 2003 Bonds are included in the measure of Massachusetts estate and inheritance 
taxes, and the Series 2003 Bonds and the interest thereon is included in the measure of certain Massachusetts 
corporate excise and franchise taxes.  Bond Counsel has not opined as to the taxability of the Series 2003 Bonds or 
the income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts.  A complete copy of the proposed form 
of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix H hereto. 

 The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Series 2003 Bonds.  The Authority and the 
Institution have covenanted to comply with certain restrictions designed to ensure that interest on the Series 2003 
Bonds will not be included in federal gross income.  Failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on 
the Series 2003 Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of 
original issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds.  The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these 
covenants.  Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Agreement and other relevant 
documents may be changed and certain actions (including, without limitation, defeasance of the Series 2003 Bonds) 
may be taken or omitted under the circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such 
documents.  Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or 
not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds may adversely 
affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Series 2003 Bonds.  Further, no assurance can be given that 
pending or future legislation, including amendments to the Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed legislation, 
including amendments to the Code, or any regulatory or administrative development with respect to existing law, 
will not adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Series 2003 Bonds.  Prospective 
Bondowners are urged to consult their own tax advisors with respect to proposals to restructure the federal income 
tax. 

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Series 2003 Bonds is excluded from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, the ownership or 
disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series 2003 Bonds may otherwise affect a Series 2003 
Bondowner’s federal or state tax liability.  The nature and extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon 
the particular tax status of the Series 2003 Bondowner or the Series 2003 Bondowner’s other items of income or 
deduction.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences, and Bondowners should 
consult with their own tax advisors with respect to such consequences. 

LEGALITY OF SERIES 2003 BONDS FOR INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT 

The Act provides that the Series 2003 Bonds are securities in which all public officers and public bodies of the 
Commonwealth and its political subdivisions, all Massachusetts insurance companies, trust companies, savings 
banks, co-operative banks, banking associations, investment companies, executors, administrators, trustees, and 
other fiduciaries may properly and legally invest funds, including capital in their control or belonging to them.  The 
Series 2003 Bonds, under the Act, are securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by 
any Commonwealth or municipal officer or any agency or political subdivision of the Commonwealth for any 
purpose for which the deposit of bonds or obligations of the Commonwealth is now or may hereafter be authorized 
by law. 
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COMMONWEALTH NOT LIABLE ON SERIES 2003 BONDS 

The Series 2003 Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt or liability of the Commonwealth or any 
political subdivision thereof, or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth or any such political 
subdivision, but shall be payable solely from the Revenues derived by the Authority under the Agreement.  Neither 
the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision thereof is pledged to the 
payment of the principal of or the interest on the Series 2003 Bonds.  The Act does not in any way create a so-called 
moral obligation of the Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof to pay debt service in the event of 
default by the Institution.  The Authority does not have taxing power. 

DESCRIPTION OF RATINGS 

The Series 2003 Bonds are expected to be rated “Aa3/VMIG 1” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.  
(“Moody’s”), based upon the issuance of the Letter of Credit by the Banks.  The rating reflects only the views of 
Moody’s and any explanation of the significance of the rating may be obtained from Moody’s at the following 
address: Moody’s, 99 Church Street, New York, New York 10007.  Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on 
information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions made by the rating agency 
itself.  There is no assurance that the rating mentioned above will remain in effect for any given period of time or 
that the rating may not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by Moody’s if in its judgment circumstances so warrant.  
Any downward change in or withdrawal of the rating may have an adverse effect on the market price or 
marketability of the Series 2003 Bonds.  The above rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Series 
2003 Bonds. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Series 2003 Bonds are being purchased for reoffering by J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (the “Underwriter”) 
pursuant to a bond purchase contract between the Authority and the Underwriter.  The Underwriter has agreed to 
purchase the Series 2003 Bonds at an aggregate discount of $136,956 from the public offering prices of the Series 
2003 Bonds set forth on the cover page hereof.  The Underwriter may offer and sell the Series 2003 Bonds to certain 
dealers (including dealers depositing Series 2003 Bonds into investment trusts, certain of which may be sponsored 
or managed by the Underwriter) and others at prices lower than the public offering prices stated on the cover page 
hereof.  The public offering prices set forth on the cover page hereof may be changed after the initial offering by the 
Underwriter. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

All legal matters incidental to the authorization and issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds by the Authority are 
subject to the approval of Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel, whose opinion approving the validity and tax 
exempt status of the Series 2003 Bonds will be delivered with the Series 2003 Bonds.  A copy of the proposed form 
of the opinion is attached hereto as Appendix H.  Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Institution by its 
counsel, Ropes & Gray, Boston, Massachusetts.  Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Underwriter by its 
counsel, Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., Boston, Massachusetts. 

There is not now pending any litigation restraining or enjoining the issuance or delivery of the Series 2003 
Bonds or questioning or affecting the validity of the Series 2003 Bonds or the proceedings and authority under 
which they are to be issued.  Neither the creation, organization, or existence of the Authority, nor the title of the 
present members or other officers of the Authority to their respective offices is being contested.  There is no 
litigation pending which in any manner questions the right of the Authority to make a loan to the Institution to 
finance and refinance the Project in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Agreement.  See Appendix A 
with respect to the absence of material litigation affecting the Institution. 
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MISCELLANEOUS 

The references to the Act and the Agreement are brief summaries of certain provisions thereof.  Such summaries 
do not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the Act and the Agreement for full and complete statements 
of such provisions.  The agreements of the Authority with the Bondowners are fully set forth in the Agreement, and 
neither any advertisement of the Series 2003 Bonds nor this Official Statement is to be construed as constituting an 
agreement with Bondowners.  So far as any statements involve matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so 
stated, they are intended merely as such and not as representations of fact.  Copies of the documents mentioned in 
this paragraph are on file at the offices of the Authority and the Trustee. 

Information relating to DTC and the book-entry-only system described under the heading “THE SERIES 2003 
BONDS--Book-Entry-Only System” is based on information furnished by DTC and is believed to be reliable, but 
none of the Authority, the Underwriter or the Institution makes any representations or warranties whatsoever with 
respect to such information. 

Attached hereto as Appendix A is a letter from the Institution to the Authority which contains certain 
information relating to the Institution and the Project.  With respect to the letter from the Institution, while the 
information contained therein is believed to be reliable, the Authority and, except as set forth on the inside cover 
page, the Underwriter do not make any representations or warranties whatsoever with respect to such information.  
Appendix B to this Official Statement sets forth the audited financial statements of the Institution for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2002, and the report of the independent certified public accountants.  The Authority and the 
Underwriter have relied on the information contained in Appendix A and Appendix B. 

Appendix C – “DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS” and Appendix D – ”SUMMARY OF THE 
AGREEMENT” have been prepared by Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority.  Appendix H 
contains the proposed legal opinion of Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority. 

Appendix E – “CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANKS” has been provided by the Banks, each 
Bank having provided only the information relating to such Bank.  While the information contained therein is 
believed to be reliable, the Authority and the Underwriter do not make any representations or warranties whatsoever 
with respect to such information. 

Appendix F contains a form of the Letter of Credit to be issued by the Banks with respect to the Series 2003 
Bonds.  All appendices are incorporated as an integral part of this Official Statement. 

The Institution has reviewed the portions of this Official Statement describing the Institution and the Project, 
including those sections entitled “THE PROJECT” and “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” and 
has furnished Appendix A to this Official Statement.  At the closing, the Institution will certify that such portions of 
this Official Statement (except for any forecasts and opinions contained herein) do not contain an untrue statement 
of a material fact or omit a statement of material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in the light of 
the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading and that the aforesaid forecasts and opinions are 
believed to be reasonable in light of the experience of the officers of the Institution and the facts known to them at 
that time. 

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by its Executive Director have been duly authorized by the 
Authority. 

MASSACHUSETTS HEALTH AND 
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
 
 
By: /s/ Benson T. Caswell    
 Benson T. Caswell 

Executive Director 



APPENDIX A

CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE INSTITUTION
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Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority
99 Summer Street – Suite 1000
Boston, Massachusetts  02110

January 10, 2003

Dear Members of the Authority:

In connection with the issuance by the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities 
Authority (the “Authority” or “MHEFA”) of its Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds,
Emmanuel College Issue, Series 2003  (the “Series 2003 Bonds”), we are pleased to submit the 
following information pertaining to The Trustees of Emmanuel College (“Emmanuel” or the 
“College”) for inclusion in this Official Statement.  Unless otherwise indicated, all references to 
years are to the fiscal year ending June 30.

INTRODUCTION

History and Background

Emmanuel is a private, nonprofit, co-educational institution of higher education situated 
on a 17-acre campus located in the Longwood Medical and Academic area in the city of Boston, 
Massachusetts.  The College, founded in 1919, was the first Catholic college for women in New 
England. The Massachusetts State Legislature signed the charter giving Emmanuel the power to 
confer degrees in 1919, and the College awarded its first degrees in June, 1923. The Sisters of 
Notre Dame de Namur founded Emmanuel to provide a liberal arts education based on Catholic 
principles to women in the Boston area who might not otherwise have the opportunity to attend 
college. The Sisters of Notre Dame de Namur is a religious order founded by St. Julie Billiart in 
1804 in Belgium.  The first sisters arrived in the United States in 1840.  Today, there are over 
2,000 Sisters of Notre Dame de Namur carrying out the mission of educating youth on five 
continents: Africa, Asia, Europe, North America and South America.

Since 1919, the College has grown from a commuter college enrolling women from the 
Boston region to a residential college enrolling 1,634 men and women (as of fall, 2002) from 
across the United States and from other countries. In September, 2001, Emmanuel admitted men 
for the first time in the College’s history to its undergraduate liberal arts and sciences program, 
and new student enrollment has since increased by ninety-four percent, from 167 first year 
students in the fall of 2000 to 324 first year students in the fall of 2002. The College currently
offers undergraduate liberal arts and sciences education and graduate and professional programs.

In 1975, the College expanded its educational mission beyond undergraduate programs 
and began to offer adult student courses in management, nursing and education.  These co-
educational graduate and professional programs draw on the College’s traditional liberal arts and 
sciences programs to educate students and to fulfill the College’s mission to non-traditional age 
students. While all of the programs are offered on the main campus, certain graduate and 
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professional programs are also offered at leased satellite locations (Quincy, Woburn, Beverly and 
Leominster), and in smaller, temporary locations at four other eastern Massachusetts sites.

In 1996, Emmanuel and four of its neighboring colleges – Massachusetts College of 
Pharmacy and Health Sciences, Simmons College, Wentworth Institute of Technology and 
Wheelock College – joined in a collaboration called “The Colleges of the Fenway”. In 1999,
Massachusetts College of Art became the sixth member of the collaboration.  The collaboration 
benefits students by offering cross-registration at no additional cost.  In addition, students benefit 
from common social events and access to the academic resources and services of all six
institutions.  Thus, Emmanuel’s students enjoy the benefits of a small college environment while 
having access to all of the resources of the members of The Colleges of the Fenway.

GOVERNANCE

Board of Trustees

The College is governed by a body known as the Corporation (the “Corporation”) and by 
a Board of Trustees (the “Board”).  The Corporation, comprised of nine Sisters of Notre Dame 
de Namur (members of the founding order of the College), holds specified reserve powers,
including power to elect trustees, approve the sale, mortgage  or lease of all or substantially all of
the property of the College, and approve amendments of the College’s by- laws. The Corporation 
meets annually in June and periodically throughout the year as needed.

The Board is responsible for the management of the affairs of the College. Members of 
the Board serve for three-year terms. The Nominating Committee of the Board accepts
nominations for new trustees through any member or trustee and, from those nominated, presents
for the approval of the Corporation its nominations for such vacancies as may exist on the Board.
The Board convenes three to four times each academic year to deliberate on the business and 
policies of the College.  Additional meetings are scheduled as necessary. There are six standing 
committees of the Board: the Development Committee, the Educational Affairs Committee, the 
Enrollment and Marketing Committee, the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee and the 
Nominating Committee.  The Executive Committee, comprised of the Board’s Chair and Vice 
Chair, the President, the Secretary/Treasurer and chairs of other Board committees, meets as 
necessary throughout the year and may exercise all of the powers of the Board other than
authorization of capital expenditures not included in the budget approved by the Board.  The 
Finance Committee of the Board generally meets monthly.  The remaining committees meet at 
least three times each year, with additional meetings scheduled as necessary. Currently there are 
24 trustees.
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Current members of the Board, and their principal business or professional affiliation, are 
as follows:

Initial Year
Trustees Appointed Affiliation

C. Michael Daley* 1991 Chief Executive Officer, Lo-Jack
Chair Corporation (retired)

John H. MacKinnon* 1994 Partner, Price Waterhouse (retired)
Vice Chair

Sister Anne Mary Donovan, SND* 1984 Treasurer, Emmanuel College and Alumna
Secretary and Treasurer

Most Reverend John P. Boles 1993 Auxiliary Bishop of Boston

John F. Burke 2000 Senior Vice President of Business 
Services, Staples, Inc.

Sally DeCastro Dias 2002 Superintendent of Schools,
Watertown Public Schools and Alumna

Ronald R. Dion 1994 Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, R.M. Bradley & Co.

Sister Janet Eisner, SND* 1979 President, Emmanuel College and Alumna

James L. Elcock 2001 Executive Vice President, Brokerage 
Group, Meredith & Grew, Inc.

Dr. Elaine El-Khawas* 1986 Professor of Education Policy, 
The George Washington University

Sister Mary Farren, SND 1998 Principal, Notre Dame Academy in 
Tyngsboro

Elin Sullivan Harris* 1998 Community Volunteer and Alumna

C. Richard Harrison 1998 President and Chief Operating
Officer, Parametrics Technology
Corporation

Richard E. Lee* 1984 Emeritus Chair of the Board, 
Health Care Services of New England

Leslie A. McCafferty 1992 Community Volunteer and Alumna
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C. Allen Merritt 2002 Chief Operating Officer, 
Liberty Financial Companies
(retired)

Kathleen Murphy 1997 Director, Entergy Corporation

The Honorable Mary Beatty Muse 1991 Retired Justice, Massachusetts 
Family Probate Court 

Terrence O’Leary 2001 President and Chief Executive
Officer, Greenberg, Seronick,
O'Leary and Partners

Elizabeth Hayes Patterson, Esq. 1994 Professor, Georgetown University
Law Center, and Alumna

Mark A. Quinn 2000 Partner, Ernst & Young LLP

James Roosevelt, Jr., Esq.* 1981 Senior Vice President and General 
Counsel, Tufts Health Plan

Louise Schiavone 1995 CNN Reporter and Freelance
Reporter and Alumna

Sister Susan Thornell, SND* 1997 Director of College Placement,
Mother Caroline Academy and 
Education Center, and Alumna

_____________
*Member of Executive Committee

From time to time, the College enters into transactions with affiliates which may include 
institutions associated with members of the Board.  Management believes that all such
transactions are negotiated at arms length on commercially reasonable terms.  The College has a 
conflict of interest policy, which requires disclosure by trustees of any conflicts of interest and 
abstention from voting on matters related thereto.

Administration

The President of Emmanuel is responsible for administration of the College.  Assis ting
the President in this task are: the Treasurer, the Vice President for Planning and Academic 
Affairs, the Vice President of Finance and Administration/Chief Financial Officer, the Vice 
President for Student Affairs/Dean of Students, the Vice President of Operations and Information 
Technology, the Vice President of Government, Community and Public Relations, the Vice 
President of Institutional Advancement, the Dean of Admissions and the Dean of Arts and 
Sciences.  The position of Vice President of Institutional Advancement is currently vacant and 



A-5

the College has initiated a search for a successor. Community Counseling Services, Inc., a 
national fund-raising management firm, is currently providing strategic guidance to the College
and assistance with preparations for its capital campaign.

Sister Janet Eisner, SND, President of Emmanuel College, age 61.  A Sister of Notre 
Dame de Namur, Sister Janet Eisner has served as President since 1979.  Sister Janet Eisner 
served as Director of Admissions from 1967 to 1971, and she was a member of the English 
Department faculty and Department Chair from 1975 to 1978. From 1971 to 1975, she pursued
her doctorate degree. She received her A.B. from Emmanuel College, a M.A. from Boston 
College, and a Ph.D. in English Language and Literature from the University of Michigan.
Sister Janet Eisner is a graduate of Harvard University’s postdoctoral Institute for Educational 
Management, and Northeastern University has awarded her the honorary degree of Doctor of 
Humane Letters.  During her presidency, she has served on the boards of many regional and 
national organizations and commissions.

John J. Aversa, Vice President of Operations and Information Technology, age 41.
Before being promoted to his current position in 2001, Mr. Aversa served as Director and Vice 
President of Information Technology since 1997.  He came to Emmanuel from the Wakefield 
Public Schools where he served as Director of Information Technology from 1993 to 1997.  He 
also served as Manager of Computing Services, Information Processing Support, at Boston
College from 1989 to 1993, and Director of Academic Computer Sciences at Dean College from 
1985 to 1989.  Mr. Aversa holds a B.A. and an M.S. degree in Computer Science from Boston 
College.

Neil G. Buckley, Jr., Vice President of Finance and Administration, age 44.
Mr. Buckley joined the Emmanuel administration in 1999.  From 1987 to 1999 he was a member 
of the administration of Massasoit Community College, serving as Vice President of
Administration/Chief Financial Officer from 1995 to 1999, Interim President in the spring of 
1997, Comptroller from 1992 to 1995, and Director of Financial Aid from 1987 to 1992.  He also 
served as an Adjunct Faculty Member from 1988 to 1999.  Mr. Buckley previously served as 
Manager of Administrative Services of the Sloan School of Management at the Massachusetts 
Institute of Technology in 1986 to 1987.  From 1977 to 1986 he held finance-related
administrative positions at Suffolk University.  Mr. Buckley holds a M.B.A. and a B.A. from 
Suffolk University.  He attended the year-long Massachusetts Higher Education Executive
Leadership Institute in 1999.

Sister Anne Mary Donovan, SND, Treasurer of Emmanuel College, age 61.  Sister 
Anne Donovan has served as Treasurer of Emmanuel College since 1982.  She served as 
Treasurer of the Boston Province and then as Treasurer of the international congregation of the 
Sisters of Notre Dame de Namur from 1982 to 1997.  Sister Donovan is a graduate of Emmanuel 
College and studied at Oxford University in Oxford, England following her graduation from 
Emmanuel College.  Sister Donovan holds a M.A. in History from the University of New
Hampshire and a M.B.A. from the Boston College Carroll School of Management.  She serves 
on F.L. Putnam Investment Services’ Board of Directors for the Principled Equity Market Fund 
as well as on the Board of Directors for Por Cristo, a nonprofit Catholic agency serving medical
and nutrition needs in Ecuador and the Dominican Republic.
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Mary Louise Hatten, Vice President for Planning and Academic Affairs, age 52.
Dr. Hatten joined the Emmanuel administration in 2000, first serving as Vice President, Planning 
and New Ventures before her appointment to her present position in 2001.  She served as a 
planning consultant to the College during 2000.  Dr. Hatten was also a Visiting Scholar at the 
Harvard University Graduate School of Education from 1992 to 2000.  From 1986 to 2000, Dr. 
Hatten was a Professor at Simmons College Graduate School of Management and also served as 
its Faculty Director of Executive Education from 1997 to 2000.  From 1978 to 1986 she served 
as Associate Professor and Chair (1982 to 1985), Administrative Sciences Department, Boston 
College School of Management. From 1974 to 1978 Dr. Hatten held the position of Assistant 
Professor of Managerial Economics, Boston University School of Management.  She also served 
as a Graduate Instructor, Krannert School of Management, Purdue University, from 1972 to 
1973. Dr. Hatten holds a B.A. in Mathematics and Economics from Dominican University and a
M.S. and a Ph.D. in Economics from Krannert School of Management, Purdue University.
Dr. Hatten has extensive consulting and executive development experience, and she has
published numerous articles and case studies.

Nancy R. Northrup, Dean of Arts and Sciences and Associate Professor of History, age 
56. Dr. Northup joined the Emmanuel administration in 1995.  Before being promoted to her 
current position in 2001, Dr. Northrup served as Dean of Curriculum.  From 1977 to 1995 Dr. 
Northrup served on the faculty of Bentley College, most recently as Adjunct Assistant Professor 
of History and Coordinator of the Gender Issues Council.  Previously she served as Assistant 
Professor of History and Adjunct Instructor of History.  She was Instructor in the History
Department of Tuskegee Institute in Alabama in 1972.  Dr. Northrup came to Emmanuel with 
several years of curriculum and institutional development and administrative experience as a 
member of the Bentley College faculty.  She holds an A.B. degree in History from Mount 
Holyoke College, and a M.A. and a Ph.D. in African History from the University of California, 
Los Angeles.  From 1994 to 1995 she attended the Management Institute for Women in Higher 
Education at Wellesley College.

Patricia A. Rissmeyer, Vice President for Student Affairs and Dean of Students, age 46.
Dr. Rissmeyer joined the Emmanuel administration in 1996.  Before her promotion to her current 
position in 2001, Dr. Rissmeyer served as Dean of Students.  She came to Emmanuel from 
Canisius College in New York where she served as Dean of Students from 1988 to 1996.  From 
1983 to 1988 she served as Director of Residence Life and Housing at Saint Mary’s College in 
Notre Dame, Indiana.  From 1978 to 1983 she held progressively responsible positions in the 
Office of Residential Life/Department of Housing Services of the University of Massachusetts at 
Amherst.  She holds a B.S. from the University of Hartford,  a M.Ed. from the University of 
Massachusetts at Amherst, and a Ph.D. from the State University of New York at Buffalo.

Sandra M. Robbins, Dean of Admissions, age 43.  Prior to her appointment at
Emmanuel in 2000, Ms. Robbins served as the Dean of Admissions at Pine Manor College.
From 1979 to 1999 she worked at Fisher College, most recently as the Director of Enrollment 
Management.  She also served as the Director of Admissions, the Director of Alumni Affairs, the 
Director of Placement, and the Associate Director of Admissions. She holds a B.S. in
Management from Bentley College and an A. S. degree as a legal secretary from Fisher College.
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Sarah McCarthy Welsh, Vice President for Government, Community and Public
Relations, age 41.  Ms. McCarthy Welsh came to the Emmanuel administration in 1999 in the 
position of Director of Communications and Community Relations, and was promoted to her 
current position in the fall of 2001.  She previously served the City of Boston in progressively 
responsible positions in the Mayor’s Office between 1988 and 2001, serving as Deputy Director
of City Council Relations, Director of City Council Relations, and as Deputy Chief of Policy and 
Planning.  From 1984 to 1987 she held the position of Director of Scheduling, Campaign
Coordinator, the Democratic National Committee, Washington, D.C.  She holds a B.A. in
Political Science from The George Washington University.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECTS

The proceeds of the Series 2003 Bonds will be applied (i) to finance and refinance a 
portion of the costs of the renovation of Marian Hall, including the construction of a new student
center and gymnasium (the “Student Center Project”), (ii) to the renovation of St. Joseph’s 
Residence Hall, (iii) to refinance the College’s portion of a 1986 MHEFA pooled loan in the 
amount of $1.079 million and two leases through MHEFA amounting to $3.18 million, and (iv) 
for miscellaneous capital expenditures on the College’s campus (such renovation, refinancing 
and expenditures, together with the Student Center Project, collectively referred to hereinafter as
the “Project”).

The Student Center Project will include a NCAA-compliant gymnasium for both athletic 
team and individual student use, meeting space, dining facilities and underground parking, and 
also includes significant infrastructure updates to Marian Hall.  The Student Center Project is 
being designed by the architectural firm of Goody, Clancy and Associates of Boston,
Massachusetts and is expected to be completed in calendar year 2004.  Walsh Brothers, Inc., a 
general contractor headquartered in Cambridge, Massachusetts, will serve as general contractor 
for the Student Center Project.  Corcoran Jennison Companies, Inc., of Boston, Massachusetts, 
will serve as Emmanuel’s construction manager for the Student Center Project.

The renovation of St. Joseph’s Residence Hall occurred over the past two summers.
Phase I was completed during the summer of 2001 and consisted of the renovation of common 
areas, including lounge space, the creation of a new fitness center and the replacement of all 
windows.  Phase II was completed during the summer of 2002 and included various
infrastructure updates and replacements such as elevators, electrical systems, fire alarms and 
sprinkler systems and the purchase of new furniture. Spagnolo/Gisness & Associates Inc. of 
Boston, Massachusetts served as architect for the renovation of St. Joseph’s Residence Hall and 
Walsh Brothers, Inc. served as general contractor for this portion of the Project.  In addition, 
Corcoran Jennison Companies served as Emmanuel’s construction manager for the renovations.
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DESCRIPTION OF ACADEMIC PROGRAMS

Educational Programs

Emmanuel offers undergraduate liberal arts and sciences programs in its semester-based
program, and offers graduate and professional programs for adult students in evening and 
weekend programs in accelerated formats. The College is comprised of 16 academic
departments granting degrees in 16 majors, in addition to individualized majors.  All liberal arts 
and sciences programs are offered on the Boston campus, while graduate and professional
programs are offered both on the Boston campus and at eight satellite sites in eastern
Massachusetts. The liberal arts and sciences programs award the following degrees:

• Bachelor of Arts
• Bachelor of Fine Arts
• Bachelor of Science

In the graduate and professional programs, students may earn the following degrees:

• Bachelor of Science
• Master of Science in Management
• Master of Arts in Teaching
• Master of Education

The College offers the following majors in liberal arts and sciences disciplines and in 
interdisciplinary areas: American Studies, Art Therapy, Biology, Catholic Studies, Chemistry,
Management, English, Global Studies, Graphic Design and Technology, History, Mathematics,
Political Science, Psychology, Sociology, Spanish, Studio Art, and various individualized
majors.  The graduate and professional programs offer degrees in Business, Nursing,
Management and Education.

Accreditations and Memberships

Emmanuel is accredited by The New England Association of Schools and Colleges, Inc.
(NEASC).  In the fall of 2002, Emmanuel underwent its 10-year re-accreditation survey, a final 
report from which is not expected until the spring of 2003.  Management has no reason to believe 
that the College will not receive re-accreditation in the ordinary course.

Individual College departments are accredited by separate discipline-based accrediting 
organizations, including such organizations as the National League for Nursing and the
Massachusetts Department of Education.  Emmanuel is a member of the following educational 
associations: The Colleges of the Fenway; Association of Independent Colleges and Universities 
of Massachusetts (AICUM); American Library Association (ALA), American Council on
Education, Boston Higher Education Partnership, Council for the Advancement and Support of 
Education (CASE), Eastern College Athletic Conference (ECAC), The Fenway Alliance,
Fenway Library Consortium, Association for Catholic Colleges and Universities, and the
Council for Higher Education.
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FACULTY AND STAFF

During the fall of 2002, the College’s faculty numbered 49 full- time and two half-time
faculty. Of this faculty, 45 full-time and the two half-time faculty taught primarily in the liberal 
arts and sciences undergraduate program.  Twenty-one faculty members, representing 43% of the 
full-time faculty, were tenured. Sixteen faculty members he ld the rank of professor, 12 held the 
rank of associate professor, 16 held the rank of assistant professor, and 3 held the rank of 
instructor.  The College’s strategic plan anticipates the hiring of several  faculty members over 
the next five years in response to anticipated retirements and to provide additional staff for 
programmatic expansion.

The full-time faculty in the undergraduate liberal arts and sciences program is augmented 
as needed by part-time faculty.  During the fall of 2002, the College employed 36 part-time
faculty who provided the equivalent of 15 full- time faculty positions.

In the graduate and professional programs of the College, adjunct faculty account for the 
majority of the faculty. During academic year 2001-2002, graduate and professional programs 
employed 169 adjunct faculty members. Of these, 112 taught in the undergraduate management 
program, five in the nursing program, eight in graduate programs in education, and 44 in the 
graduate management program.

Among the full- time faculty in the liberal arts and sciences program, approximately 80% 
possess the terminal degree in their field. Of the graduate and professional programs faculty, 
47% in the undergraduate management program, 44% in the nursing program, 62.5% in the 
education programs, and 70% in the graduate management program possess the terminal degree 
in their field.

As of the fall of 2002, the College employed 108 full-time and 35 part-time
administrative, professional, and support staff.  Employees of Emmanuel are not represented by 
labor unions.  Management is not aware of any organizing activities and considers its relations 
with its employees to be good.

STUDENT ENROLLMENT AND APPLICATIONS

Enrollment

The following table shows Emmanuel’s fall semester undergraduate and graduate
headcount enrollments and the full-time equivalent (“FTE”) student enrollments.  Undergraduate 
FTEs are calculated based on 12 credit hours per semester, and graduate FTEs are based on nine 
credit hours per semester. The College’s enrollment of credit-seeking students has increased by 
approximately 18% since fall, 1998, due in part to its change in policy to admit male liberal arts 
and sciences undergraduate students.

The College admitted male students for the first time in September of 2001 to its 
undergraduate liberal arts and sciences program. The decision to become a co-educational
institution was initiated following a strategic planning process undertaken by the Board during 
the fall of 2000.  The decision was based on several factors including the Board’s desire to focus 
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on and increase enrollment of undergraduate students, the declining popularity of single sex 
colleges among college age students and other market research indicating that Emmanuel’s 
approach to education would be valued by both women and men.  As of the fall of 2002, the 
student body of the College’s freshmen and sophomore classes in its undergraduate liberal arts 
and sciences program was comprised of approximately 25% male students.

Changing demographics in the Boston metropolitan area, an increasing number of
programs competing for the adult continuing education market, and decisions by the College to 
shrink certain continuing education course offerings has led to a decline in both continuing 
education and graduate enrollment over the last five to ten years. However, adjustments have 
been made in program size and course offerings to accommodate these external pressures and to
attempt to stabilize graduate enrollment at levels that Management believes have generated 
sufficient revenues to cover department operations and contribute to the College ’s other
programs.

Emmanuel College
Student Enrollment

Academic Years 1998/99-2002/03

Undergraduate
Liberal Arts
(traditional)

Continuing Education
(adult learners) Graduate Total

Fall Headcount FTE Headcount FTE Headcount FTE Headcount FTE
1998 453 606.3 989 661.0 216 110.4 1,658 1,377.7
1999 466 631.5 849 543.7 165 84.1 1,480 1,259.3
2000 528 705.0 832 560.8 164 90.6 1,524 1,356.3
2001 694 973.3 615 445.7 140 81.0 1,449 1,500.7
2002 847 1,170.9 614 388.1 173 105.7 1,634 1,629.7

_______________
Source:  College records

Selected Measures of Student Quality. Management believes that the College’s growth in full-
time undergraduate enrollment  during its transition to a co-educational school has been achieved 
while maintaining student quality, as suggested by the following table:

Emmanuel College
Selected Measures of Student Quality

Academic Years 1998/99-2002/03

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
% of enrolled first years in 

top 10% of high school class 20% 10% 12% 10% 12%

% of enrolled first years in 
top 20% of high school class 38% 36% 27% 27% 31%

Avg. Combined SAT 1003 1017 989 1009 1035

Average GPA of incoming first 
year class

3.18 3.27 3.09 3.17 3.21

_______________
Source:  College records
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Geographic Distribution and Increased Representation. The geographic distribution for full-
time undergraduate students enrolled for the 1998 through 2002 academic years is as follows:

Emmanuel College
Change in Geographic Distribution
Academic Years 1998/99-2002/03

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Massachusetts 74.6% 73.8% 70.7% 69.4% 68.5%

Other New England States 15.0% 15.4% 18.9% 18.5% 19.7%

Mid-Atlantic States 5.5% 5.6% 6.6% 7.6% 7.8%

Other States 4.9% 5.2% 3.8% 4.5% 4.0%

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
_______________
Source:  College records

Applications, Acceptances and Admissions

The following table indicates the College’s application, acceptance and matriculation 
statistics from the fall semester of 1998 to the fall semester of 2002.

Emmanuel College – Undergraduate (Traditional)
Selected Admissions Statistics

Academic Years 1998/99-2002/03

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Applications 593 573 610 1601 1847

Acceptances 432 442 499 1042 1210

Acceptance Rate 73% 77% 82% 65% 65%

Enrollments 173 160 192 317 375

Matriculation Rate 40% 36% 38% 30% 31%

_______________
Source:  College records

The College’s annual strategic plan includes efforts to increase both the volume and 
quality of student applications and enrollment.  Between the fall of 1998 and the fall of 2002, the 
College has experienced an increase in first year applications of over 300%, and first year 
enrollment has increased over 200% during the same period.  The average profile of an entering 
first-year student for academic year 2002-03 is a combined SAT score of 1035 and a GPA of 
3.21.
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While there can be no assurance that the College will achieve its goal of increasing 
enrollment, Management is taking steps to manage the challenges that would accompany such 
growth.  These steps include construction of the Project and consideration of non-renewal of 
leases to third parties of various buildings currently owned by the College.

Competing Institutions

The institutions that the College consider to be its primary competitors are: Bridgewater
State College, Merrimack College, Northeastern University, Regis College, Salem State College, 
Suffolk University and University of Massachusetts at Amherst. To distinguish itself from its 
principal competitors, Emmanuel has emphasized its unique Catholic mission, its location in 
Boston for both scholastic and extracurricular enrichment, a committed faculty and small class 
size. The College also seeks to distinguish itself in terms of ability to provide personalized
academic advising and professional counseling for both undergraduate and graduate students.
The College attempts to attract students seeking a professional course of study with a strong core 
curriculum in liberal arts and helps interested students obtain external internship opportunities.

TUITION AND FEES

For the academic years 1998/99–2002/03, Emmanuel’s full-time undergraduate
(traditional) tuition and fees are listed below. The average annual tuition increase has been less 
than 6% during this period.

Emmanuel College – Undergraduate  (Traditional)
Schedule of Tuition

Academic Years 1998/99-2002/03

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Tuition $14,904 $15,488 $16,112 $16,800 $17,800

Per Student Room Rates 7,025 7,180 7,390 7,650 8,000

General Student Fees per year 300 300 300 300 300

Total $22,229 $22,968 $23,802 $24,750 $26,100
_______________
Source:  College records
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For the academic years 1998/99–2002/03, Emmanuel’s adult (continuing education) and 
graduate tuition and fees are listed below. The average annual tuition increase has been less than
5% during this period.

Emmanuel College – Non-traditional  students
Schedule of Tuition

Academic Years 1998/99-2002/03

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Undergraduate (Continuing 
Education)

$840 $860 $860 $894 $930

Nursing 984 1,000 1,000 1,040 1,080

Graduate 1,266 1,290 1,290 1,341 1,395

_______________
Source:  College records

FINANCIAL AID

The College demonstrates its commitment to student financial accessibility by channeling 
considerable financial resources into its financial aid program while maintaining a tuition
discount rate within the national average as based on data from NACUBO’s Business Officer
(February, 2001).  During the past five academic years, an average of 81% of traditional
undergraduate and 22% of graduate and professional students applied for need-based financial 
aid with an average of 85% of traditional undergraduates who applied receiving Emmanuel 
funded assistance. A chart showing financial aid awarded in recent academic years is set forth 
below:

Financial Aid – Five-Year Summary
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Grants & Scholarships
Emmanuel Funded* $2,387,347 $2,960,867 $3,285,826 $3,971,352 $5,085,724
Other Funding $846,239 $962,472 $952,493 $1,189,764 $1,706,575
Total Grants and Scholarships $3,233,586 $3,923,339 $4,238,319 $5,161,116 $6,792,299

Student Employment

Emmanuel College Funded $211,764 $167,246 $184,813 $159,929 $210,342
Other Funding $132,524 $165,003 $132,088 $141,400 $159,935
Total Student Employment $344,288 $332,249 $317,201 $301,329 $370,277

Loans
Student Loans $3,112,763 $2,890,064 $3,157,800 $3,280,607 $3,960,990
Parent Loans $290,942 $430,121 $442,836 $697,771 $1,248,223
Total Loans $3,403,705 $3,320,185 $3,600,636 $3,978,378 $5,209,213
_______________
Source:  College records
*Includes endowed and restricted scholarships.
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FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2002 and the report of Emmanuel’s
independent auditors, KPMG LLP, are included as Appendix B to this Official Statement. The
Condensed Schedule of Financial Position and Schedule of Activities presented below have been 
derived from the audited financial statements of the College.  This summary information should 
be read in conjunction with the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2002 for the 
College and the Notes thereto which are presented in Appendix B of this Official Statement and 
are hereby incorporated by reference.

CONDENSED SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of June 30,

2000 2001 2002
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $1,358,070 $1,975,477 $684,271
Student Accounts Receivable, net 794,776 692,305 698,734
Contributions Receivable, net 737,030 2,104,284 1,773,909
Other Receivables 613,508 249,813 254,487

Other Assets 372,930 433,340 806,211

Student Loan Receivables, net 1,717,686 1,796,218 1,780,969

Deposits with Bond Trustees 81,016 2,747,496 1,577,932
Long-term Investments, at market
(Note 1) 8,642,202 61,994,621 58,594,249

Land, Buildings & Equipment, net 18,538,474 18,177,665 26,228,648

Total Assets: $32,855,692 $90,171,219 $92,399,410

Liabilities, Deferred Revenue and Net Assets
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $1,557,804 $2,186,583 $3,579,003
Student Deposits and Deferred Revenue 850,594 536,248 611,494
Long-term Debt 4,205,731 7,240,508 6,009,643

Refundable U.S. Government Grants   1,673,857    1,727,396    1,752,296
Total Liabilities: $8,287,986 $11,690,735 $11,952,436

Deferred Lease Revenue (Note 1) --- 51,368,059 50,678,554

Net Assets:
Unrestricted $18,987,391 $19,422,592 $21,972,628

Temporarily Restricted 2,459,654 2,443,981 2,252,757
Permanently Restricted 3,120,661 5,245,852 5,543,035
Total Net Assets $24,567,706 $27,112,425 $29,768,420

Total Liabilities, Deferred Revenue
    and Net Assets: $32,855,692 $90,171,219 $92,399,410
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Note 1: In connection with the College’s 75-year land leases entered in 2001 with Merck & Co., Inc., the College
received a net amount of $51,712,811, which has been deferred and will be amortized to unrestricted revenue on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.  The College recognized $689,505 and $344,752 of lease revenue from this 
transaction for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.  The net proceeds were placed in long-term
investments.

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
For the years endedJune 30,

2000 2001 2002

Revenue:
Tuition and Fees $12,657,918 $13,099,430 $15,880,598
Less Scholarships, Grants and Other 
Aid (3,714,689) (4,391,040) (5,500,574)
     Net Tuition and Fees 8,943,229 8,708,390 10,380,024

Contributions 1,910,433 4,154,496 1,548,764
Contributed Services 190,469 203,433 188,390
Government Grants 406,036 473,996 447,417
Conferences 152,972 216,257 65,494
Investment Earnings 595,115 493,041 1,685,847
Leases and Contracts 4,919,740 5,226,200 4,407,992
Room and Board 3,176,924 3,803,930 4,722,899
Other Income 272,072 334,638 263,454

Total Revenue: $20,566,990 $23,614,381 $23,710,281

Expenses:
Instruction $4,896,864 $4,911,958 $5,088,737
Academic Support 2,978,138 2,911,450 2,901,399
Student Services 2,724,185 3,168,824 3,346,901
Institutional Support 4,482,789 4,983,546 5,509,056

Fundraising 1,130,482 1,257,006 1,367,570
Room & Board 2,573,653 2,702,649 2,840,623
Total Expenses: $18,786,111 $19,935,433 $21,054,286

Fixed Asset Depreciation 
Adjustment (Note 2) (1,134,229)

_________ _________ _________

Change in Net Assets: $ 1,780,879 $ 2,544,719 $ 2,655,995

Note 2:  In fiscal year 2001, the College reviewed the depreciable lives of its fixed assets effective July 1, 2000 and
based on that review, changed its depreciation methodology to more closely match the estimated remaining useful
lives of its fixed assets , resulting in a non-operating adjustment of $1,134,229.

Management’s Discussion of Operations

During the three-year period ended June 30, 2002, the College experienced significant 
growth in many aspects of college life.  Total full- time undergraduate student enrollment grew in 
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each successive year during this period from 705 FTE students enrolled in fall 2000 to 1,170.9
FTE students enrolled in the fall semester of 2002.  While this growth has occurred, the College 
has downsized the scope of operations for graduate and continuing education programs (adult
learners) so that total headcount has remained relatively stable between 1,450 and 1,650 students 
a semester.

From fiscal year 2000 to fiscal year 2002, Total Revenue increased $3.1 million, or 
approximately 15%.  This increase was primarily due to increased student enrollment levels and
the additional investment earnings deriving from the Merck lease payments.  During the same 
period, Total Expenses increased $2.3 million, or approximately 12%.  The increase in Total
Expenses is primarily attributable to corresponding increases in academic and student support 
services.

The College has experienced an increase in Long-term Investments of $50.0 million, or 
approximately 580%, during the period from fiscal year 2000 to fiscal year 2002.  This increase 
is primarily attributable to the long-term lease payments the College received for the portion of 
its land and facilities that it leased to Merck & Co., Inc. in 2001, which lease arrangement is 
more fully described in Note 1 above and under “Plant Assets and Facilities” below.  Total 
Assets have increased over the period from fiscal year 2000 to fiscal year 2002 by $59.5 million, 
or approximately 180%.  This increase is primarily due to the revenue the College derives from 
the lease payments and increased tuition revenue.  Total Liabilities have increased over the same 
period by $3.7 million, or approximately 44%. Outstanding obligations under a pooled loan and 
two leases through MHEFA, which are anticipated to be refinanced with a portion of the 
proceeds of the Series 2003 Bonds, account for this increase.

As discussed in greater detail below, Emmanuel operates according to a strategic plan 
which it believes enables it to effectively and efficiently manage student enrollment, operating 
expenses and other financial aspects of the College.

Accounting, Budget and Administration

The development of the College’s annual operating budget begins in the late fall/winter 
of the preceding academic year.  The process involves academic and administrative department 
heads, vice presidents and deans, the Faculty Budget Committee, the President’s Executive 
Committee and the Board.

Late in the spring, a preliminary budget is presented to the President, the Executive 
Committee, the Board’s Finance Committee and the Faculty Budget Committee for review.  The 
Board generally grants final approval to the new budget in May of each year.

In addition to the development of the annual operating budget to monitor College
financial operations, the College has also developed a five-year financial plan.  This document 
was first developed in the summer of 2001.  The five-year financial plan was developed to assist 
in the strategic decision making process.  The plan has been updated several times and it is the 
College’s goal to review and update it at least twice annually.

The five-year financial plan evolved from a strategic planning process began by the 
College in academic year 1998-89, which engaged faculty, administration and staff members in 
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all aspects of the process. The current five-year financial plan (for fiscal years 2002 through 
2007) sets as a goal the increase in full- time liberal arts and sciences enrollment to 1,200
students and the stabilization and increase of graduate and professional program (continuing
education) enrollment  to 1,000 students.  As of the fall of 2002, undergraduate enrollment was 
847 students and graduate/professional (continuing education) enrollment was 787 students.
While Management believes that progress is being made on accomplishing the goals of the 
College’s strategic plan, no assurances can be made that such goals will be reached or that the 
College will be able to implement these or other facets of its strategic plan.

Fund Raising

The total philanthropic support to Emmanuel for the period 1998 through 2002 was 
$11,484,793.  The following table indicates total contributions, including cash and pledges, made
to the College for fiscal years 1998 through 2002:

Emmanuel College
Fund Raising

Fiscal years 1998-2002

Contributions

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Unrestricted $760,537 $1,132,828 $785,935 $1,253,524 $923,546

Temporarily
Restricted 817,202 779,496 788,240 775,781 328,035

Permanently
Restricted 336,712 44,325 336,258 2,125,191 297,183

________ ________ ________ ________ ________

Total $1,914,451 $1,956,649 $1,910,433 $4,154,496 $1,548,764

The increase in total fundraising revenue from 2000 to 2001 is primarily attributable to a 
$2.1 million dollar gift from a charitable donation for the establishment of the Caroline A. Lynch 
Institute.

Investments

The investment accounts of the College are managed by an independent investment 
advisory firm, F.L. Putnam Investment Management Company of Newton, Massachusetts. The
Finance Committee of the Board meets periodically with the investment manager to discuss and 
review investment strategy and policies as well as asset allocation.
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The following table shows the College’s long-term investments for fiscal years 1998-
2002:

Emmanuel College
Long-Term Investments
Fiscal Years 1998-2002

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Cash and Cash Equivalents -- $1,000,436 $1,077,864 $52,089,711 $17,332,899

Equity Securities and Mutual Funds $3,664,960 4,773,144 4,778,509 4,944,385 16,666,999
Corporate Debt Securities 939,640 1,400,352 1,819,163 2,630,779 16,276,203
U.S. Government and Agency Debt
   Securities 959,028 1,106,294 668,858 2,148,442 8,149,438

Municipal Debt Securities 487,354       316,730       297,808       181,304       168,710
Total Investments $6,050,982 $8,596,956 $8,642,202 $61,994,621 $58,594,249

From June 30, 1998 to June 30, 2002, the market value of the College’s endowment fund
grew nearly ten-fold to $58,594,249.  The significant increase in the long-term investment 
balance from 2000 to 2001 is primarily attributable to the College’s lease of a portion of its land 
and facilities to Merck & Co., Inc.

In September, 2002, the College acquired Julie Hall (formerly the Libby Building, 
previously owned by Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center), an approximately 50,000 square-
foot building located adjacent to the campus, to refurbish it for dormitory use for a cash purchase 
price of $14,750,000.

The College has also spent a portion of its investment funds in connection with the 
Project described above, which funds it anticipates being reimbursed with the proceeds of the 
Series 2003 Bonds.

The asset allocation of the investment portfolio at market value as of September 30, 2002 
was as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents   $8,818,974
Equity securities and mutual funds     9,932,733
Corporate debt securities   14,462,208
U.S. government and agency debt securities     6,933,483
Municipal debt securities        164,617

TOTAL $40,312,015

Plant Assets and Facilities

Located in the Longwood Medical/Fenway Area of Boston, Emmanuel’s campus consists
of approximately 17 acres. The main Emmanuel College campus consists of eight buildings, 
comprising more than 500,000 square feet of space.  These buildings are situated in the heart of 
the city's medical, academic and scientific community.  This urban location affords many
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academic and extra-curricular opportunities to students while still offering the comfort of a self-
contained campus.

In addition to the main campus, graduate and professional programs are offered at eight 
locations.  The four permanent sites, in Quincy, Woburn, Beverly and Leominster, are leased 
space in office parks.  Hotel space is used in Mansfield, Framingham, and Andover, and a 
corporate conference room and training facility is used in Charlestown.

The College leases approximately 120 dormitory rooms in St. Ann’s Hall located on the 
main campus to the Massachusetts College of Pharmacy and Health Sciences pursuant to a 2002-
03 academic-year lease for approximately $1,000,000.  The College expects to enter into a 
similar lease for the 2003-04 academic year.

Approximately four contiguous acres of the College’s campus (the “Endowment
Campus”) have been leased by Emmanuel to Merck & Co., Inc.  (“Merck”) and to a joint venture 
of Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center, Inc. (“BIDMC”) and Children’s Hospital
(“Children’s”).  The Endowment Campus consists of three “lease parcels”, Parcels A, B and C, 
and a roadway parcel providing access to the lease parcels.

Pursuant to a lease originally entered into in 1986, BIDMC and Children’s ground lease 
Parcel C of the Endowment Campus (the “Alumnae Hall Lease”).  Parcel C is presently
improved by an approximately 50,000 square feet building known as Alumnae Hall and
presently used for research laboratories and a parking garage with a capacity of 328 spaces.  The 
term of the Alumnae Hall Lease expires on December 31, 2007.  Annual rent payable under the 
Alumnae Hall Lease in respect of the research building was $1,899,750 through December 31, 
2002 which rate increased to $2,792,250 on and as of January 1, 2003 and remains fixed at such 
rate through the end of the lease term.  Annual rent payable under the Alumnae Hall Lease in 
respect of the parking deck and surface parking spaces located on Parcel C was $350,000 
through December 31, 2002 and decreases annually thereafter to $216,812 in 2007.

On May 15, 2001, Emmanuel leased Parcel B to Merck, pursuant to a 75-year ground 
lease in consideration for pre-paid rent of approximately $27,500,000.

On June 27, 2001, Emmanuel leased Parcel A to Merck, pursuant to a 75-year ground 
lease in consideration for pre-paid rent of approximately $28,000,000.

The College views the revenues derived from the Endowment Campus as a source of 
funds which it can use to implement its strategic plan.

Management has no current plans to construct significant future buildings (other than the 
Project) in the next three to five years.

The College has been notified by the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (the 
"MWRA") that certain of the College's wastewater discharges do not comply with the effluent 
limitations established in the industrial discharge permit that MWRA has issued to the College. 
The College is currently negotiating with the MWRA concerning a proposed agreement to 
perform ongoing monitoring of its wastewater discharges and to take certain corrective steps. 
While there can be no assurance that final agreement with the MWRA will be reached on terms 
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satisfactory to the College or at all, Management currently estimates the cost of complying with 
the MWRA's requirements to be less than $50,000.

Outstanding Indebtedness

As of June 30, 2002, the College’s outstanding debt was as follows:

• $1,332,904 loan from the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority
(“MHEFA”) Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Capital Program Issue, Series B and 
Series C. This loan is expected to be repaid with a portion of the proceeds of the Series 
2003 Bonds.

• $1,373,605 capital lease through MHEFA.  This lease is expected to be repaid with a 
portion of the proceeds of the Series 2003 Bonds.

• $3,283,495 capital lease through MHEFA.  This lease is expected to be repaid with a 
portion of the proceeds of the Series 2003 Bonds.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Notre Dame Training School and Boston Province of the Sisters of Notre Dame, Inc. 
(the “Sisters”) provide services to the College for which they are not fully compensated.  The 
excess of the fair value of the services performed over the amounts paid to the Sisters a
contingent liability of the College.  As of June 30, 2002, this contingent liability approximated 
$9,162,000, and is represented by a note which becomes payable on demand under limited 
circumstances.  Payment of amounts owing pursuant to the note is materially restricted so long as 
the letter of credit being issued in connection with the Series 2003 Bonds is outstanding.

Retirement Plans

The College participates in programs with the Teachers Insurance and Annuity
Association (TIAA) and the College Retirement Equities Fund (CREF) for the benefit of its 
employees.  This is a defined contribution retirement plan for all qualified (as defined in the 
plan) benefit-eligible employees.  Eligible employees may contribute 5% of their base annual 
salary, in which case the College contributes 9% of each eligible employees’ base annual salary.
The College’s expenses for this plan were approximately $562,000 for the year ended June 30, 
2002.

Insurance

The College carries insurance policies, including real and personal property, general
comprehensive liability, educator’s legal liability, worker’s compensation, and employer’s
liability as well as automobile insurance, umbrella liability, limited professional liability and 
athletic insurance.
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Litigation

The College is not aware of any litigation pending or threatened wherein any unfavorable
decision would adversely impact its ability to meet its obligations with respect to the Series 2003 
Bonds or would have a material adverse impact on the financial condition of the College.

This letter and the information herein are submitted to the  Authority for inclusion in its 
Official Statement relating to its Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Emmanuel College 
Issue, Series 2003.  The use of this letter by the Authority in connection with the initial sale and 
public offering of the Series 2003 Bonds, and its execution and delivery by the undersigned 
officers of Emmanuel, have been duly authorized by the Board of Trustees of Emmanuel.

THE TRUSTEES OF EMMANUEL COLLEGE

By:   /s/  Sr. Janet Eisner
       Sr. Janet Eisner, SND
       President

By:    /s/  Neil G. Buckley, Jr.
       Neil G. Buckley, Jr.

Vice President of Finance and
Administration
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Board of Trustees 
Emmanuel College: 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Emmanuel College (the College) as 
of June 30, 2002, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the College’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized comparative 
information has been derived from the College’s 2001 financial statements and, in our report dated 
August 31, 2001, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the College as of June 30, 2002, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

August 30, 2002 

99 High Street Telephone 617 988 1000
Boston, MA 02110-2371 Fax 617 988 0800

KPMG LLP. KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, is
a member of KPMG International, a Swiss association.



EMMANUEL COLLEGE

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2002
(with comparative amounts as of June 30, 2001)

Assets 2002 2001

Cash and cash equivalents $ 684,271   1,975,477   
Student accounts receivable, net (note 3) 698,734   692,305   
Contributions receivable, net (note 3) 1,773,909   2,104,284   
Other receivables 254,487   249,813   
Other assets 806,211   433,340   
Student loans receivable, net (notes 3 and 11) 1,780,969   1,796,218   
Deposits with bond trustees 1,577,932   2,747,496   
Long-term investments, at market (note 4) 58,594,249   61,994,621   
Land, buildings, and equipment, net (notes 5 and 6) 26,228,648   18,177,665   

Total assets $ 92,399,410   90,171,219   

Liabilities, Deferred Revenue, and Net Assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,579,003   2,186,583   
Student deposits and deferred revenue 611,494   536,248   
Long-term debt (note 6) 6,009,643   7,240,508   
Refundable U.S. government grants (note 11) 1,752,296   1,727,396   

Total liabilities 11,952,436   11,690,735   

Deferred lease revenue (note 7) 50,678,554   51,368,059   

Net assets:
Unrestricted 21,972,628   19,422,592   
Temporarily restricted (note 9) 2,252,757   2,443,981   
Permanently restricted (note 10) 5,543,035   5,245,852   

Total net assets 29,768,420   27,112,425   
Total liabilities, deferred revenue, and net assets $ 92,399,410   90,171,219   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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EMMANUEL COLLEGE

Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2002
(with comparative totals for year ended June 30, 2001)

2002
Temporarily Permanently 2001

Unrestricted restricted restricted Total Total

Operating:
Revenues:

Tuition and fees $ 15,880,598   —    —    15,880,598   13,099,430   
Less scholarships, grants and 

other aid (5,500,574)  —    —    (5,500,574)  (4,391,040)  

Net tuition and fees 10,380,024   —    —    10,380,024   8,708,390   

Contributions 923,546   328,035   297,183   1,548,764   4,154,496   
Contributed services (note 12) 188,390   —    —    188,390   203,433   
Government grants 447,417   —    —    447,417   473,996   
Conferences 65,494   —    —    65,494   216,257   
Investment earnings (note 4) 1,902,061   (216,214)  —    1,685,847   493,041   
Leases and contracts (note 7) 4,407,992   —    —    4,407,992   5,226,200   
Room and board 4,722,899   —    —    4,722,899   3,803,930   
Other income 263,454   —    —    263,454   334,638   
Net assets released from restrictions 303,045   (303,045)  —    —    —    

Total revenues 23,604,322   (191,224)  297,183   23,710,281   23,614,381   

Expenses:
Instruction 5,088,737   —    —    5,088,737   4,911,958   
Academic support 2,901,399   —    —    2,901,399   2,911,450   
Student services 3,346,901   —    —    3,346,901   3,168,824   
Institutional support 5,509,056   —    —    5,509,056   4,983,546   
Fundraising 1,367,570   —    —    1,367,570   1,257,006   
Room and board 2,840,623   —    —    2,840,623   2,702,649   

Total expenses 21,054,286   —    —    21,054,286   19,935,433   

Change in net assets from 
operating activities 2,550,036   (191,224)  297,183   2,655,995   3,678,948   

Nonoperating:
Fixed asset depreciation adjustment

(note 5) —    —    —    —    (1,134,229)  

Change in net assets 2,550,036   (191,224)  297,183   2,655,995   2,544,719   

Net assets at beginning of year 19,422,592   2,443,981   5,245,852   27,112,425   24,567,706   
Net assets at end of year $ 21,972,628   2,252,757   5,543,035   29,768,420   27,112,425   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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EMMANUEL COLLEGE

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2002
(with comparative totals for year ended June 30, 2001)

2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $ 2,655,995   2,544,719   
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation, including valuation adjustment 1,366,675   2,239,324   
Amortization of deferred lease revenue (689,505)  (344,752)  
Net realized and unrealized losses on investments 845,974   276,995   
Contributions restricted for long-term investment (297,183)  (2,125,191)  
Change in student accounts receivable, net (6,429)  102,471   
Change in contributions receivable, net 330,375   (1,367,254)  
Change in other receivables and other assets (377,545)  303,285   
Change in accounts payable and accrued expenses (236,699)  628,779   
Change in student deposits and deferred revenue 75,246   (314,346)  

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,666,904   1,944,030   

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sales of investments 11,211,651   3,128,024   
Purchases of investments (8,657,253)  (56,757,438)  
Change in student loans receivable, net 15,249   (78,532)  
Purchases of land, building, and equipment (7,788,539)  (1,878,515)  
Change in deposits with bond trustees 1,169,564   (2,666,480)  

Net cash used in investing activities (4,049,328)  (58,252,941)  

Cash flows from financing activities:
Contributions restricted for long-term investment 297,183   2,125,191   
Proceeds from debt issuance —    4,000,000   
Payments on long-term debt (1,230,865)  (965,223)  
Proceeds from long-term leases, net of costs —    51,712,811   
Increase in refundable U.S. government grants 24,900   53,539   

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (908,782)  56,926,318   

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (1,291,206)  617,407   

Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of year 1,975,477   1,358,070   
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of year $ 684,271   1,975,477   

Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid for interest $ 380,865   314,406   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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EMMANUEL COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2002 

 5 (Continued) 

(1) Organization 

Emmanuel College (the College), located in Boston, Massachusetts, educates students in a dynamic 
co-educational learning environment shaped by a liberal arts and sciences curriculum that emphasizes 
career development. As a Catholic college, the College prepares students with the skills to succeed in 
tomorrow’s world and the social conscience to make a difference in that world. This College education is 
rooted in strong human values and continues to reflect the founding educational mission of the Sisters of 
Notre Dame de Namur (the Sisters) who opened the College in 1919. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Financial Statement Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting and have 
been prepared to focus on the College as a whole and to present balances and transactions according 
to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

Unrestricted net assets represent those assets that the College may use at its discretion. 

Temporarily restricted net assets result from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by 
the College is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be 
fulfilled and removed by actions of the College pursuant to those stipulations. Net appreciation 
(depreciation) of permanently restricted long-term investments is recognized within the temporarily 
restricted net asset category until such monies are available for expenditure under the College’s 
spending policy and a qualifying expenditure is incurred. 

Permanently restricted net assets result from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by 
the College is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can 
be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the College. 

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at their 
net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years 
are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are 
computed using a risk-free interest rate applicable to the year in which the promise is expected to be 
received. Amortization of the discount is included in contribution revenue. Conditional promises to 
give are not included as revenue until such time as the conditions are substantially met. All 
contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the 
donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for specific 
purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that increases those 
net asset classes. When a qualifying expenditure occurs or a time restriction expires, temporarily 
restricted assets are recognized in unrestricted net assets as “net assets released from restrictions” in 
the statement of activities. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same time period in which the 
contribution is received, the contribution is reported as an unrestricted contribution. It is the policy of 
the College to reflect as an expenditure an amount representing the fair value of services performed 
by members of the Sisters, with a corresponding amount included as contributed services revenue. 



EMMANUEL COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2002 

 6 (Continued) 

Furthermore, dividends, interest, and realized and unrealized gains on long-term investments are 
reported as follows: 

Increases in permanently restricted net assets if the terms of the contribution require these to 
be added to the principal; 

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets if the terms of the contribution, or the College’s 
interpretation of relevant state law, imposes restrictions on the use of the income and gains; 
and

Increase in unrestricted net assets in all other cases. 

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The College considers highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the date of 
purchase to be cash equivalents and carries them at cost, which approximates market value. 

(c) Investments 

All long-term investments have been reported in the financial statements at their current market 
value in the case of marketable securities and at estimated fair value for certain nonmarketable 
securities. The market value of publicly traded securities is based upon quotes from the principal 
exchanges on which the security is traded. The net increase in realized and unrealized appreciation in 
the market value of such investments has been included in the statement of activities in the 
appropriate net asset classification. 

The College has relied upon the Massachusetts Attorney General’s interpretation of relevant state 
law as generally permitting the spending of gains on permanently restricted net assets over a 
stipulated period of time. State law allows the Board of Trustees to appropriate all of the income and 
a specified percentage of the net appreciation as is prudent considering the College’s long- and 
short-term needs, present and anticipated financial requirements, expected total return on its 
investments, price level trends and general economic conditions. Under the College’s spending 
policy, which is deemed to be within the guidelines specified under State law, a percentage of 
permanently restricted long-term investments is appropriated annually as determined by the 
College’s Board of Trustees. 

(d) Deferred Income 

The College recognizes revenues from summer school and its conference center in the fiscal year in 
which the programs are predominantly conducted. 

In May and June of 2001, the College executed agreements to lease some of its land to Merck & 
Company over a 75-year period. Payment was received in advance, and this amount, net of costs 
incurred, will be amortized to unrestricted revenue over the life of the lease. 

(e) Income Taxes 

The College is a tax-exempt organization as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code (the Code) and is generally exempt from income taxes pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2002 
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(f) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, as of 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(g) Land, Buildings, and Equipment 

Land, buildings, major plant renovations and major repairs, and equipment are stated at cost at the 
date of acquisition or renovation, or at fair market value as of the date of donation in the case of a 
contribution. Minor renovations and repairs are charged to operations and maintenance as incurred. 
Depreciation of plant and equipment is computed on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of 
the respective assets, as follows: 

Asset  Life 

Land improvements  20 years 
Buildings and improvements  35 years 
Furniture and equipment  5 years 

(h) Allocations 

The College adheres to the AICPA’s Not-for-Profit Organizations Audit and Accounting Guide in 
reporting expenses by their functional classification. Accordingly, depreciation, interest, and 
operations and maintenance expenses have been allocated to functional classifications based on 
square footage utilized. 

(3) Receivables 

(a) Student Accounts and Student Loans 

Student accounts receivable are net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $126,828 and 
$127,566 as of June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Student loans receivable are net of an allowance for uncollectible loans of $181,000 as of both 
June 30, 2002 and 2001. 
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(b) Contributions 

Contributions receivable as of June 30 are comprised of the following: 

  2002  2001 
    

Amounts due in:     
Less than one year $ 66,258  49,137 
One to five years  1,898,445  2,316,126 

    

  1,964,703  2,365,263 
    

Less present value discount and allowance for 
uncollectible pledges  (190,794)  (260,979) 

    

Contributions receivable, net $ 1,773,909  2,104,284 

(4) Long-Term Investments 

The College’s investments as of June 30 are summarized as follows: 

  2002  2001 
  Cost  Market value  Cost  Market value

         

Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,334,797  17,332,899  52,090,224  52,089,711 
Equity securities and 

mutual funds  16,457,056  16,666,999  4,251,863  4,944,385 
Corporate debt securities  16,016,490  16,276,203  2,601,184  2,630,779 
U.S. government and 

agency debt securities  8,045,530  8,149,438  2,115,828  2,148,442 
Municipal debt securities  161,247  168,710  176,223  181,304 
         

Total investments $ 58,015,120  58,594,249  61,235,322  61,994,621 

Investments by net asset class as of June 30 are as follows: 

  2002  2001 
    

Permanently restricted $ 4,041,455  3,684,257 
Temporarily restricted  981,246  1,199,737 
Unrestricted  53,571,548  57,110,627 

    

Total, at market $ 58,594,249  61,994,621 
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The following summarizes the investment return for the years ended June 30: 

  2002  2001 
    

Interest and dividends, net of fees $ 2,531,821  770,036 
Net realized and unrealized loss  (845,974)  (276,995) 

    

Total investment return $ 1,685,847  493,041 

Total investment management and advisory fees were $241,930 and $51,566 for the years ended June 30, 
2002 and 2001, respectively. 

(5) Land, Buildings, and Equipment 

Land, buildings, and equipment as of June 30 are as follows: 

  2002  2001 
    

Land and improvements $ 3,161,692  2,944,801 
Buildings and improvements  36,445,436  29,337,427 
Furniture and equipment  7,883,853  6,917,147 
Collection of art  81,000  81,000 
Construction in progress  795,645  — 

    

  48,367,626  39,280,375 
    

Less accumulated depreciation  (22,138,978)  (21,102,710)
    

Land, buildings, and equipment, net $ 26,228,648  18,177,665 

Depreciation expense charged to operations was $1,366,675 and $1,105,095 for the years ended June 30, 
2002 and 2001, respectively. Management reviewed the depreciable lives of its fixed assets effective 
July 1, 2000 and based on that review, wrote down its fixed assets by $1,134,229 in fiscal year 2001.  

In May of 2002, the Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center (BIDMC) accepted the College’s offer to buy a 
building for $14,750,000. In July and August of 2002, the College deposited approximately 5% of the 
purchase price to BIDMC. The College expects the closing on the property to occur in September of 2002. 
The building is expected to be converted into a dormitory for approximately 200 students. 
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(6) Long-Term Debt 

Outstanding debt as of June 30 is as follows: 

  2002  2001 
    

Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
Bonds of 1986 (a) $ 1,332,904  1,743,849 

Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
lease (b)  1,373,605  1,723,996 

Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
lease (c)  3,283,495  3,768,579 

Other (d)  19,639  4,084 
    

Total long-term debt $ 6,009,643  7,240,508 

(a) In 1986, the College entered into an agreement for $5,200,000 in Massachusetts Health and 
Educational Facilities Authority (MHEFA) Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Capital Asset 
Program Issue, Series B and Series C. The MHEFA bonds are payable in monthly installments of 
principal and interest through May 1, 2005. The interest rate as of June 30, 2002 was 2.3%. The note 
repayment may be accelerated in the event that the bank providing a liquidity facility for certain 
obligations of MHEFA does not extend the existing agreement. 

The College has obtained an irrevocable letter of credit from a bank to secure the Bonds payable to 
MHEFA. The letter of credit is for an amount equal to the balance of the loan proceeds disbursed by 
MHEFA and the interest thereon for 210 days. The amount of the letter of credit may be reduced 
quarterly upon the bank’s receipt of the Trustee’s certification of payments made by the College. At 
June 30, 2002 and 2001, the letter of credit was $1,739,847 and $2,187,627, respectively. The letter 
of credit is secured by a mortgage on a building belonging to the College and assignment of certain 
lease income. 

(b) In 1998, the College borrowed $2,527,200 from MHEFA. This MHEFA obligation is payable in 
semiannual installments of principal and interest through August 14, 2005 at a rate of 5.05%. 
MHEFA has a security interest in property as collateral. 

(c) In fiscal 2001, the College borrowed $4,000,000 from MHEFA. This MHEFA obligation is payable 
in semiannual installments of principal and interest through July 13, 2007 at a rate of 6.34%. 
MHEFA has a security interest in property as collateral. 
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The required annual principal payments on MHEFA Bonds and leases for each of the next five years 
and thereafter are as follows: 

Year ending June 30:   
2003 $ 1,325,287 
2004  1,409,230 
2005  1,411,662 
2006  833,859 
2007  662,752 
Thereafter  347,214 

Total $ 5,990,004 

(d) In fiscal 2002, the College purchased an automobile for $30,679 and obtained zero percent financing 
for three years. The remaining principal payments for the financing are as follows: 

Year ending June 30:   
2003 $ 8,126 
2004  8,126 
2005  3,387 

Total $ 19,639 

(e) The College has entered into a number of operating leases, primarily for instructional space. Total 
lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 amounted to approximately $275,000 and 
$324,000, respectively. The College’s lease obligations for each of the remaining years as of 
June 30, 2002 are as follows: 

Year ending June 30:   
2003 $ 308,885 
2004  275,921 
2005  221,620 
2006 and thereafter  287,997 

(7) Lease Revenue 

In connection with the College’s land leases entered into in May and June of 2001, Merck & Company 
agreed to pay the College a total of $55,538,001 upon inception of the leases. Legal, broker and other costs 
related to the transactions, in the amount of $3,825,190, were paid from this amount at the respective 
closings. The net amount received by the College, $51,712,811, has been deferred and will be amortized to 
unrestricted revenue on a straight-line basis over 75 years using a half-year convention. The College 
recognized $689,505 and $344,752 of lease revenue from this transaction for the years ended June 30, 
2002 and 2001, respectively.



EMMANUEL COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2002 

 12 (Continued) 

In addition, the College has leased certain land and buildings to unrelated parties in the form of operating 
leases. Minimum lease revenues under these leases through the end of the lease terms are as follows: 

Year ending June 30:   
2003 $ 3,863,101 
2004  3,209,344 
2005  2,878,064 
2006  2,873,656 
2007  2,869,116 
Thereafter  1,433,406 

(8) Retirement Plan 

Through its membership in the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association, the College has a defined 
contribution retirement plan for all qualified (as defined) full-time employees. The College’s contribution 
is equal to 9% of each eligible employee’s basic annual salary. The expense of this plan approximated 
$562,000 and $404,000 for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

(9) Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30 consisted of the following: 

  2002  2001 
    

Purpose restrictions:     
Academic support $ 542,444  503,420 
Student scholarships  587,277  652,564 
Instruction  62,128  32,025 
Annuity agreements  34,566  50,355 
Other  130,442  16,779 

Time restrictions  425,475  490,135 
Unappropriated investment gains  470,425  698,703 

    

 $ 2,252,757  2,443,981 

Unspent long-term investment gains on permanently restricted net assets are classified as temporarily 
restricted until the College appropriates and spends such sums in accordance with the terms of the 
underlying contributions, at which time, they will be released to unrestricted revenues. 
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(10) Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

Permanently restricted net assets as of June 30 consisted of the following: 

  2002  2001 
    

Assets for which earnings are restricted as to purpose:     
Student aid $ 4,020,566  3,460,666 
Instruction  16,743  16,743 
Other  241,861  206,848 

Contributions receivable  1,263,865  1,561,595 
    

Total $ 5,543,035  5,245,852 

(11) Student Loans 

Student loans include funds advanced to the College by the U.S. government under the Federal Perkins 
Loan Program (the Program). Student loans under the Program are subject to significant restrictions. Such 
funds are reloaned by the College after collection, but in the event that the College no longer participates in 
the Program, the amounts are generally refundable to the U.S. government. 

(12) Commitments and Contingencies 

Since the inception of the College, the Sisters have provided services for which they have not been fully 
compensated. For reporting purposes, the excess of the fair value of the services performed over the 
amounts paid to the Sisters is recorded as contributed services revenue. Prior to 1982, the amount of  
the aggregate uncompensated services was reflected in the College’s financial statements as a 
noninterest-bearing indebtedness payable to the Sisters. A change in accounting for the indebtedness 
payable to the Sisters was effected as of July 1, 1982, removing the indebtedness because of the contingent 
nature of the College’s liability to the Sisters. 

Beginning on July 1, 1982, the calculation of aggregate contingent liability has been increased by the 
annual amount of the uncompensated services of the Sisters. As of June 30, 2002, the total contingent 
liability of the College under the terms of its liability to the Sisters approximated $9,162,000. The liability 
becomes payable on demand in certain circumstances which generally relate to termination of operations, 
merger with another institution, dissolution of the Board of Trustees, or loss of majority control by the 
Sisters. The liability is represented by a note which is secured by a mortgage on substantially all property 
and equipment, a portion of which is subordinated to the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities 
Authority Bonds (see note 6). 
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APPENDIX C

C-1

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS

In addition to terms defined elsewhere in this Official Statement, the following terms have the following
meanings in this Official Statement, unless context otherwise requires.

“Act” means Chapter 614 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1968, as amended from time to time.

“Act of Bankruptcy of the Bank” means the Bank shall become insolvent or fail to pay its debts generally
as such debts become due or shall admit in writing its inability to pay any of its indebtedness or shall consent to or
petition for or apply to any authority for the appointment of a receiver, liquidator, trustee or similar official for itself
or for all or any substantial part of its properties or assets or any such trustee, receiver, liquidator or similar official
is otherwise appointed or insolvency, reorganization, arrangement or liquidation proceedings (or similar
proceedings) shall be instituted by or against either Bank.

“Agent Bank” means State Street Bank and Trust Company, as agent for the Banks under the
Reimbursement Agreement, and any other agent designated by the issuer or issuers of a Credit Facility; provided,
however, that if no agent is designated, Agent Bank shall mean the issuer of a Credit Facility.

“Authorized Officer” means: (i) in the case of the Authority, the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary,
Executive Director, Director of Financing Programs, Director of Administration and Finance or General Counsel,
and when used with reference to an act or document of the Authority also means any other person authorized to
perform the act or execute the document; and (ii) in the case of the Institution, the Chairman or other presiding
officer of the Board of Trustees, the President, Director or other chief executive or administrative officer, any Vice
President or Vice Chairman, the Treasurer or other chief financial officer or any Assistant Treasurer, and when used
with reference to an act or document of the Institution, also means any other person authorized to perform the act or
execute the document.

“Banks” collectively, State Street Bank and Trust Company and Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York
Branch, and individually, either State Street Bank and Trust Company or Allied Irish Bank, in their capacity as
issuer or issuers of the Letter of Credit, and any other issuer or issuers of a Credit Facility.

“Bank Rate” means, on any date, the per annum rate of interest on such date applicable to the Institution’s
reimbursement obligations under the Letter of Credit, as described in the Reimbursement Agreement.

“BMA Index” means The Bond Market Association Municipal Swap Index as of the most recent date for
which such index was published or such other weekly, high-grade index comprised of seven-day, tax-exempt
variable rate demand notes produced by Municipal Market Data, Inc., or its successor, or as otherwise designated by
The Bond Market Association; provided, however, that, if such index is no longer produced by Municipal Market
Data, Inc. or its successor, then “BMA Index” shall mean such other reasonably comparable index selected by the
Authority.

“Bond Counsel” means any attorney at law or firm of attorneys selected by the Authority, of nationally
recognized standing in matters pertaining to the federal tax exemption of interest on bonds issued by states and
political subdivisions, and duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state of the United States,
but shall not include counsel for the Institution.

“Bond Fund” means the fund so established pursuant to the Agreement.

“Bond Year” means each one year period (or shorter period from the date of issue of a series of Bonds)
ending on January 23.

“Bondowners” or “Owners” means the registered owners of the Bonds from time to time as shown in the
books kept by the Trustee as bond registrar and transfer agent.

“Bonds” means the $40,400,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate
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Demand Revenue Bonds, Emmanuel College Issue, Series 2003, dated as of the date of their original delivery and
any Bond or Bonds duly issued in exchange or replacement therefor.

“Business Day” means a day (i) that is a day on which banks are not required or authorized to close in New
York, New York or Boston, Massachusetts, (ii) that is a day on which banking institutions in all of the cities in
which the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee and, if applicable, the principal offices of the Remarketing
Agent and the Bank are located are not required or authorized to remain closed and (iii) that is a day on which the
New York Stock Exchange is not closed.

“Commonwealth” means The Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

“Conversion Date” means the dated on which a new Mode becomes effective.

“Credit Facility” means the Letter of Credit and any substitute irrevocable transferable letter of credit
delivered to the Trustee pursuant to the Agreement and then in effect.

“Daily Mode” has the meaning set forth in the form of Variable and Flexible Rate Bonds.

“Daily Rate” means a rate of interest set by the Remarketing Agent for a period of one day.

“Default” has the meaning given such term in Appendix D to the Official Statement under the heading
“Default by the Institution.”

“Delivery Date” means, with respect to a Bond tendered for purchase at the election of the Bondowner, the
Purchase Date or any subsequent Business Day on which such Bond is delivered to the Trustee as provided in the
form of Variable and Flexible Rate Bonds in the Agreement.

“Eligible Funds” means (i) amounts drawn on any Credit Facility; (ii) amounts paid to the Trustee pursuant
to the Agreement which have been held by it for a period of at least 123 days during which no Event of Bankruptcy
has occurred; and (iii) amounts which if applied to the payment of the Bonds would not, in the opinion of nationally
recognized counsel experienced in bankruptcy matters selected by the Institution and satisfactory to the Trustee, be
subject to avoidance as a preference under the United States Bankruptcy Code upon an Event of Bankruptcy. The
Trustee shall maintain records of Eligible Funds held by it.

“Environmental and Indemnity Agreement” means the Environmental Compliance and Indemnity
Agreement dated as of December 10, 2002 among the Banks and Institution.

“Event of Bankruptcy” means the filing of a petition in bankruptcy or the commencement of a proceeding
under the United States Bankruptcy Code or any other applicable law concerning insolvency, reorganization or
bankruptcy by or against the Institution, any affiliates thereof, any guarantor of the Bonds (other than the Bank) or
the Authority, as debtor.

“Event of Default” has the meaning given such term in Appendix D to the Official Statement under the
heading “Default by the Institution.”

“Fixed Rate” means a rate or rates of interest on the Bonds that is fixed for the remaining term or terms of
the Bonds.

“Fixed Rate Conversion Date” means the date upon which the Fixed Rate first becomes effective for the
Bonds.

“Flexible Rate” means a rate of interest set by the Remarketing Agent for periods of from one to 270 days.

“Government or Equivalent Obligations” means (i) obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States;
and (ii) certificates evidencing ownership of the right to the payment of the principal of and interest on obligations
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described in clause (i), provided that such obligations are held in the custody of a bank or trust company satisfactory
to the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be, in a special account separate from the general assets of such
custodian.

“Hedge Agreement” means an interest rate swap, cap, collar, floor, forward, or other hedging agreement,
arrangement or security, however denominated, expressly identified pursuant to its terms as being entered into in
connection with and in order to hedge interest rate fluctuations on all or a portion of any Indebtedness, and with a
counterparty which is rated at least “A” by Moody’s or S&P.

“Initial Administrative Fee” means the fee, in the amount of $47,133, payable from the Expense Fund to
the Authority, for its initial services in regard to the issuance of the Bonds.

“Institution Bond” means any Bond registered to the Institution pursuant to the Agreement.

“Interest Payment Date” means, with respect to the Bonds, February 3, 2003 and thereafter (i) when this
bond is in the Weekly Mode, the first Business Day of each calendar month, (ii) when this bond is in the Daily
Mode, the first Business Day of each calendar month, (iii) when this bond is in the Multiannual Mode, each January
1 and July 1, (iv) when this bond is in the Flexible Mode, the first Business Day following the end of the period
during which a Flexible Rate is in effect as to this bond; and (v) with respect to each such Mode, the Maturity Date.

“IRC” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as it may be amended and applied to the Bonds from
time to time.

“Letter of Credit” means initially the $40,964,494 irrevocable letter of credit issued by the Banks for the
benefit of the Trustee supporting the Bonds in the Daily and Weekly Modes.

“Maximum Interest Rate” means the maximum interest rate on Bonds in the Modes supported by a Credit
Facility which rate is initially 10% per annum. The Maximum Interest Rate may be adjusted at any time by the
Institution by filing with the Authority and the Trustee a certificate stating the new Maximum Interest Rate. In no
event shall an increase in the Maximum Interest Rate be permitted to cause the amount entitled to be drawn under a
Credit Facility to be less than the minimum required amount specified in the Agreement.

“Mode” means the period for and the manner in which the interest rates on the Bonds are set and includes
the Flexible Mode, the Variable Rate Mode and the Fixed Rate Mode. The Variable Rate Mode includes the Daily
Mode, the Weekly Mode and the Multiannual Mode.

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or any successor rating agency.

“Multiannual Mode” means the Mode in which the interest rate on the Bonds is fixed for periods of six
months or multiples thereof designated by the Institution.

“Opinion of Bond Counsel” means an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the matter or action in
question will not have an adverse impact on the tax-exempt status of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes.

“Outstanding,” when used to modify Bonds, refers to Bonds issued under the Agreement, excluding: (i)
Bonds which have been exchanged or replaced, or delivered to the Trustee for credit against a principal payment or
a sinking fund installment; (ii) Bonds which have been paid; (iii) Bonds which have become due and for the
payment of which moneys have been duly provided; (iv) Bonds deemed tendered for purchase and not delivered to
the Trustee on the Purchase Date, provided sufficient funds for payment of the Purchase Price are on deposit with
the Trustee; and (v) Bonds for which there have been irrevocably set aside sufficient funds or Government or
Equivalent Obligations bearing interest at such rates, and with such maturities as will provide sufficient funds to pay
or redeem them; provided, however, that if any such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to maturity, the Authority shall
have taken all action necessary to redeem such Bonds and notice of such redemption shall have been duly mailed in
accordance with the Agreement or irrevocable instructions so to mail shall have been given to the Trustee.



C-4

“Paying Agent” means Citizens Bank of Massachusetts.

“Permitted Investments” has the meaning given such term in Appendix D to the Official Statement under
the heading “Investments.”

“Pledged Bond” means any Bond purchased with proceeds provided by the Credit Facility which is
registered to the Bank or its designee pursuant to the Agreement.

“Principal Payment Date” means the day on which principal shall be payable on the Bonds according to
their terms so long as any of such Bonds shall be Outstanding.

“Project” means the acquisition of land, site development, construction or alteration of buildings or the
acquisition or installation of furnishings and equipment, or any combination of the foregoing, in connection with the
following:

Existing Part of the Project: the projects originally financed by the Authority’s (i) Master Lease and
Schedule No. 1 dated August 14, 1998, (ii) Master Lease and Schedules No. 1 and No. 2 dated July 13,
2000 and (iii) Capital Asset Program Loan, Series C, which consisted of: (a) the financing of miscellaneous
computer, academic and building systems equipment, together with miscellaneous improvements to various
buildings located on the Institution’s main campus; (b) the acquisition of a facility known as the President’s
House; (c) the replacement of windows and building systems equipment, installation of an elevator and
renovations to the College’s main administrative building; (d) the renovation and equipping of Marian Hall;
and

New Part of the Project (a) the construction of an approximately 52,400 square-foot gymnasium and
student center, including the construction of dining facilities and an underground parking garage; (b) the
financing of infrastructure improvements to the existing portions of Marian Hall; (c) the renovation of St.
Joseph’s Residence Hall, including the renovation of common areas, the creation of a new fitness center,
the replacement of all windows, infrastructure improvements and the purchase of new furniture; and (d) the
financing of routine capital construction, renovations and equipping of various facilities.

“Project Costs” means the costs of issuing the Bonds and carrying out the Project, including repayment of
external loans and internal advances for the same to the extent permitted by the Agreement, working capital
expenditures directly related to the Project, and interest prior to, during and for up to one year after construction is
substantially complete, but excluding general administrative expenses, overhead of the Institution and interest on
internal advances.

“Project Officer” means the Vice President of Finance and Administration of the Institution or an alternate
or successor appointed by the Institution.

“Purchase Date” means, while the Bonds are in a Flexible Mode or Variable Rate Mode, the date on which
Bonds shall be required to be purchased following a mandatory or optional tender.

“Purchase Price” shall mean the price at which Bonds tendered for purchase by the owner thereof shall be
purchased, equal to the principal amount of the Bond to be purchased plus accrued interest thereon, if any, to the
Purchase Date.

“Rebate Year” means the one year period (or shorter period beginning on the date of issue) ending on June
30.

“Record Date” has the meaning set forth in the forms of the Bonds.

“Reimbursement Agreement” means (i) Reimbursement Agreement dated as of December 10, 2002 among
the Banks, the Institution and the Agent Bank and any amendments and supplements thereto and (ii) any letter of
credit agreement or reimbursement agreement by and between the Institution and any substitute Bank, and any
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amendments and supplements thereto.

“Remarketing Agent” means J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., in its capacity as remarketing agent under the
Remarketing Agreement, its successors and assigns.

“Remarketing Agreement” means the Remarketing Agreement dated as of December 10, 2002 among the
Institution, the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to
time.

“Revenues” means all rates, mortgage payments, rents, fees, charges, and other income and receipts,
including proceeds of insurance, eminent domain and sale, and including proceeds derived from any security
provided under the Agreement, payable to the Authority or the Trustee under the Agreement, excluding
administrative fees of the Authority, fees of the Trustee, reimbursements to the Authority or the Trustee for expenses
incurred by the Authority or the Trustee, and indemnification of the Authority and the Trustee.

“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., or any
successor rating agency.

“Tendered Bond” means any Bond with respect to which the Bondowner has elected to require purchase
pursuant to the Agreement.

“Trustee” means Citizens Bank of Massachusetts, as trustee under the Agreement and its successors in such
capacity.

“UCC” means the Massachusetts Uniform Commercial Code.

“Variable Rate” means the rate of interest that is set daily, weekly, or multiannually as provided in the
Agreement.

“Weekly Rate” means the rate of interest set by the Remarketing Agent for a period of one week.
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APPENDIX D

SUMMARY OF THE AGREEMENT

The following is a brief summary, prepared by Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority, of
certain provisions of the Agreement (the “Agreement” or “LTA”), pertaining to the Bonds and the Project. The
summary does not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the Agreement for full and complete statements
of such and all provisions.

Establishment of Funds

The following funds have been established and shall be maintained with the Trustee for the account for the
Institution, to be held in trust by the Trustee and applied subject to the provisions of the Agreement:

Bond Fund; and

Rebate Fund.

A Construction Fund and Expense Fund have been established with the Authority to be held by the
Authority in trust for the account of the Institution and applied subject to the provisions of the Agreement. (Sections
303, 304, 305, 306 and 401)

Construction Fund

The moneys in the Construction Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund shall be held in trust
and, except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, shall be applied by the Authority solely to the payment or
reimbursement of Project Costs. If there is an Event of Default known to the Authority with respect to payments to
the Rebate Fund, Bond Fund or to the Authority, the Paying Agent or the Trustee, the Authority may use the
Construction Fund without requisition to make up the deficiency, and the Institution shall restore the funds so used.
Moneys remaining in the Construction Fund after completion of the Project will be transferred to the Bond Fund.
(Section 401)

Bond Fund

The moneys in the Bond Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund shall be held in trust and,
except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, shall be applied by the Trustee solely to pay principal, Purchase
Price of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds. In case any moneys deposited with the Trustee for the
payment of the Purchase Price or principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Bond remain unclaimed for two
years after such Purchase Price, principal, premium or interest has been paid or has become due and payable, the
Trustee may, and upon receipt of a written request by an Authorized Officer shall, pay over to the Institution the
amount so deposited and thereupon the Trustee and the Authority shall be released from any further liability with
respect to the payment of such Purchase Price or principal, premium or interest and the owner of such Bond shall be
entitled (subject to any applicable statute of limitations) to look only to the Institution as an unsecured creditor for
the payment thereof. (Section 303)

Rebate Fund

A Rebate Fund shall be established by the Trustee for the purpose of complying with IRC Section 148(f)
and the regulations thereunder. Amounts in the Rebate Fund shall not be available to pay principal, interest, or
redemption premium on the Bonds. Within forty-five (45) days after the close of each Rebate Year (or any earlier
date that may be necessary to make a required payment to the United States), the Institution shall compute and
certify to the Authority and the Trustee in reasonable detail the amount payable to the Rebate Fund, if any, for such
Rebate Year and the Institution deposit such amount into the Rebate Fund.
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No later than sixty (60) days after the close of the fifth Rebate Year following the date of issue of the
Bonds (or any earlier date that may be required to comply with the applicable rules and regulations) and the close of
each fifth Rebate Year thereafter, the Trustee shall pay from the Rebate Fund to the United States on behalf of the
Authority the full amount of rebate then required to be paid as certified and directed by the Institution in accordance
with the Agreement. Within sixty (60) days after the Bonds have been paid in full, the Trustee shall pay to the
United States from the Rebate Fund on behalf of the Authority the full amount of rebate then required to be paid as
certified by the Institution. If on any rebate payment date the amount in the Rebate Fund will be insufficient to pay
the amount required to be paid, the Institution shall pay the amount of such deficiency to the Trustee for deposit into
the Rebate Fund prior to the Rebate Payment Date.

No later than fifteen (15) days prior to each date on which a payment could become due under the forgoing
paragraph, the Institution shall deliver to the Authority and the Trustee a certificate either summarizing the
determination that no amount is required to be paid or specifying the amount then required to be paid pursuant to the
Agreement. If an amount is required to be paid, the Trustee shall make such payment on the Rebate Payment Date
from the Rebate Fund or other funds provided by the Institution. (Section 304)

Expense Fund

The moneys in the Expense Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund shall be held in trust and,
except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, shall be applied by the Authority solely to the payment or
reimbursement of the costs of issuing the Bonds. The Authority shall pay from the Expense Fund the costs of
issuing the Bonds, including the Initial Administrative Fee, the reasonable fees and expenses of financial
consultants, bond counsel and counsel to the Bank, the reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee incurred prior to
the completion of the Project in accordance with the Agreement, any recording or similar fees and any expenses of
the Institution in connection with the issuance of the Bonds which are approved by the Authority. Earnings on the
Expense Fund shall not be applied to pay costs of issuance of the Bond, but shall be transferred to the Construction
Fund as provided in the Agreement. After all costs of issuing the Bonds have been paid any amounts remaining in
the Expense Fund shall be transferred to the Construction Fund. To the extent the Expense Fund is insufficient to
pay any of the above costs, the Institution shall be liable for the deficiency and shall pay such deficiency as directed
by the Authority. (Section 305)

Application of Moneys

If, in addition to moneys drawn on the Credit Facility (if any), available moneys in the Bond Fund are not
sufficient on any day to pay all principal premium, if any, and interest on the Outstanding Bonds then due or
overdue, such moneys shall, after payment of all amounts owing to the Trustee and the Authority under the
Agreement, be applied first to the payment of interest, including interest on overdue principal, in the order in which
the same became due (pro rata with respect to interest which became due at the same time) and second to the
payment of principal and redemption premiums, if any, without regard to the order in which the same became due in
each case pro rata among Bondowners, provided, however, that amounts drawn on the Credit Facility (if any), debt
service payments made by the Institution and amounts the Remarketing Agent has received for the purchase of
Tendered Bonds shall be applied exclusively to pay interest and principal on the Bonds and, with respect to amounts
drawn on the Credit Facility, in accordance with the Credit Facility. If the owners of any Bonds have received all
payments of principal and interest that have become due and payable from a draw on the Credit Facility, the Banks
shall be treated as the owner of such Bonds. In the event there exist Pledged Bonds or Institution Bonds on the date
of any application of moneys under this section, moneys otherwise to be paid to the Institution or to the Bank shall
be applied as follows: first, so long as all payments due on Bonds supported by a Credit Facility have been made,
pro rata to all Bondowners other than the Institution (but including the Banks to the extent provided in the preceding
sentence), otherwise first, pro rata to all Bondowners other than the Bank and the Institution, second (and
irrespective of which clause first applies), if any balance remains, to the Banks in fulfillment of any obligations
owed to it under the Reimbursement Agreement or any Pledged Bonds (to the extent not satisfied pursuant to clause
first), and third, if any further balance remains, to the Institution in respect of any Institution Bonds. Whenever
overdue interest is to be paid on the Bonds, the Trustee may establish a special record date as provided in the forms
of Bonds. The Trustee shall give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the fixing of any such date and special
record date. When interest or a portion of the principal is to be paid on an overdue Bond, the Trustee may require
presentation of the Bond for endorsement of the payment. Prior to any payment to be made to the Banks pursuant to
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clause second of the sixth preceding sentence, the Trustee may require a certificate from the Banks as to amounts
due under the Reimbursement Agreement, and the Trustee may rely conclusively thereon. (Section 306)

Payments by the Institution

Payment of Debt Service by the Institution. While the Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility and are in
the Daily Mode, Weekly Mode or Flexible Mode, the Institution shall make payments in immediately available
funds to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund no later than the opening of business on the Business Day next
preceding each Interest Payment Date, in an amount equal to the interest payment then coming due on such Bonds,
plus 1/12th of the annual installment of principal next coming due, if any, by redemption pursuant to the Agreement.
While the Bonds are in the Multiannual Mode or the Fixed Rate Mode (whether or not they are supported by a
Credit Facility), on or before December 15 and June 15 in each year, the Institution shall pay to the Trustee for
deposit in the Bond Fund an amount equal to the interest coming due on such Bonds on the next January 1 or July 1,
as the case may be, plus any principal coming due by redemption pursuant to the Agreement.

Payment of Debt Service. The Trustee shall apply Eligible Funds, and to the extent necessary other funds,
from the Bond Fund for the payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest payable on the Bonds (whether at
maturity, upon redemption or acceleration, on an Interest Payment Date, or otherwise) as provided in the Agreement
to the extent amounts drawn on the Credit Facility are insufficient to pay the same. The Trustee shall apply to the
payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest on Bonds, in the following order (i) moneys drawn on the Credit
Facility, (ii) Eligible Funds on deposit in the Bond Fund other than moneys drawn on the Credit Facility, and (iii)
any other moneys in the Bond Fund; provided, however, that in no event shall the Trustee use any moneys other
than Eligible Funds to pay principal of, premium, if any, or interest on Bonds supported by a Credit Facility.

Institution’s Purchase of Bonds. If the amount drawn on the Credit Facility and deposited with the Trustee,
together with all other amounts (including remarketing proceeds) received by the Trustee for the purchase of Bonds
supported by a Credit Facility and tendered pursuant to the Agreement is not sufficient to pay the Purchase Price of
such Bonds on the Purchase Date, the Trustee shall before 3:00 p.m. on such Purchase Date, notify the Institution
and the Remarketing Agent of such deficiency electronically or by telephone promptly confirmed in writing. The
Institution shall pay to the Trustee in immediately available funds by 4:00 p.m. on the Purchase Date an amount
equal to the Purchase Price of such Bonds less the amount, if any, available to pay the Purchase Price in accordance
with Section 310 from the proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds or from drawings on the Credit Facility, as
reported by the Trustee. Bonds so purchased with moneys furnished by the Institution shall be Institution Bonds.
(Section 307)

The Credit Facility

Drawings on the Credit Facility. If a Credit Facility is available for the Bonds, the Trustee shall not later
than 10:00 on the Business Day next preceding any date on which payments of the principal of, or interest on the
Bonds are due, whether at maturity, on an Interest Payment Date, by acceleration, redemption, or otherwise, draw on
the Credit Facility an amount sufficient to pay in full the principal of, and interest then coming due on the Bonds.
The Trustee shall immediately notify the Institution electronically or by telephone promptly confirmed in writing if
it has not been paid by the Agent Bank for such a draw on the Letter of Credit by 1:00 p.m. on the date such
payment on the Bonds is due.

All amounts received by the Trustee under any Credit Facility shall be held in a fund separate and apart
from all other amounts held by the Trustee (the “Credit Facility Fund”), shall be invested as provided in the
Agreement and shall be used solely to pay the Purchase Price or principal of and interest on the Bonds for which the
Credit Facility is available. Principal and Purchase Price of and interest on Institution Bonds and Pledged Bonds
shall not be paid from amounts drawn on a Credit Facility, and the Trustee shall not draw on a Credit Facility for
any such amounts. (Section 307)

Substitute Credit Facility. Upon satisfaction of the requirements described herein, the Institution may
(except during the period between the giving of notice of mandatory tender for purchase on account of the expiration
of the Credit Facility and the Purchase Date) replace a Credit Facility then in effect with a substitute Credit Facility;
provided, however, that (1) the Credit Facility being replaced shall in no event be terminated or released until the
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Institution has given not less than forty-five (45) days’ written notice to the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent, and
the Trustee has received the proceeds of all outstanding drawings on the Credit Facility being replaced; (2) the
Trustee has given not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice of the termination or release of the Credit Facility to
owners of the Bonds and the identity of the provider of the substitute Credit Facility to owners of such Bonds; and
(3) the provider of the substitute Credit Facility purchases all Outstanding Pledged Bonds, at par plus accrued
interest at the Bank Rate, on the effective date of the substitute Credit Facility. The extension of an existing Credit
Facility shall not constitute a substitute Credit Facility.

Prior to the replacement of any Credit Facility the Institution shall have delivered to the Trustee: (i) an
opinion of counsel for the issuer of the substitute Credit Facility to the effect that it constitutes a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the issuer enforceable in accordance with its terms; (ii) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the
effect that the issuance of a substitute Credit Facility will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds
from gross income for federal income tax purposes; (iii) a certificate of the Bank that all amounts due under the
Reimbursement Agreement have been paid and that the Institution has fulfilled all its obligations arising out of the
Reimbursement Agreement and (iv) evidence of the rating of the Bonds with the substitute Credit Facility by S&P.

Each Credit Facility must: (i) be an irrevocable, unconditional obligation of a financial institution; (ii) be on
terms no less favorable to the Trustee than the Letter of Credit and entitle the Trustee to draw upon or demand
payment and receive in immediately available funds an amount equal to the sum of the principal amount of the
Bonds supported by the Credit Facility and not less than forty-five (45) days’ accrued interest at the Maximum
Interest Rate on the principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding in the Weekly or Monthly Mode or two hundred
ten (210) days’ accrued interest (or such lesser or greater number of days as may be required by any rating agency
rating the Bonds in the Multiannual or Fixed Rate Mode) at the actual Multiannual or Fixed Rate on the principal
amount of Bonds then Outstanding in the Multiannual or Fixed Rate Mode, as the case may be; and (iii) provide for
a term which may not expire in less than one year and which may not expire or be terminated prior to the fifth
Business Day after the mandatory tender for purchase as provided in the Agreement. The Institution shall not enter
into any Reimbursement Agreement or agree to any amendment of a Reimbursement Agreement which in any way
limits the obligation of the Bank to provide funds under the Credit Facility without the prior written consent of the
owners of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding and entitled to the benefit thereof. (Section 316)

Investments

Pending their use under the Agreement, moneys in the Funds and Accounts established pursuant to the
Agreement may be invested by the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be, in Permitted Investments maturing
or redeemable at the option of the holder at or before the time when such moneys are expected to be needed and
shall be so invested pursuant to written direction of the Institution if there is not then an Event of Default known to
the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be.

Moneys received by the Trustee under any Credit Facility and amounts the Remarketing Agent has
received for the purchase of Tendered Bonds shall either be held uninvested or be invested in investments described
in clause (i) of the definition of “Government or Equivalent Obligations” with a maturity of not more than the lessor
of thirty (30) days or when needed.

Except as set forth below, any interest realized on investments in any Fund and any profit realized upon the
sale or other disposition thereof shall be credited to the Fund with respect to which they were earned and any loss
shall be charged thereto. Earnings (which for this purpose include net profit and are after deduction of net loss) on
the Expense Fund shall be transferred to the Construction Fund not less often than quarterly.

The term “Permitted Investments” means (A) Government or Equivalent Obligations or shares of any open-
end or closed-end management type investment company or trust registered under 15 U.S.C. §80(a)-1 et seq.,
provided that the portfolio of such investment company or trust is limited to Government or Equivalent Obligations
and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such obligations, and provided further that such investment
company or trust shall take custody of such collateral either directly or through a custodian satisfactory to the
Trustee, (B) “tax exempt bonds” as defined in IRC §150(a)(6), other than “specified private activity bonds” as
defined in IRC §57(a)(5)(C), rated at least AA or Aa2 by S&P and Moody’s, respectively, or the equivalent by any
other nationally recognized rating agency, at the time of acquisition thereof or shares of a so-called money market or
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mutual fund that do not constitute “investment property” within the meaning of IRC §148(b)(2), provided either that
the fund has all of its assets invested in such “tax exempt bonds” of such rating quality or, if such obligations are not
so rated, that the fund has comparable creditworthiness through insurance or otherwise and which fund is rated
AAm or AAm-G if rated by S&P, (C) negotiable certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit issued by a
nationally or state-chartered bank or a state or federal savings and loan association or by a state-licensed branch of a
foreign bank, which have assets of not less than $1,000,000,000, provided that the senior debt obligations of the
issuing institution are rated “Aa3” or “AA-” or better by Moody’s or S&P and mature not more than two years after
the date of purchase, (D) bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank (otherwise
known as bankers acceptances), provided that such bankers acceptances may not exceed 180 days maturity, and
provided further that the accepting bank has the highest short-term letter and numerical rating as provided by
Moody’s or S&P, (E) Repurchase Agreements, (F) money market funds rated at least Aam or Aam-G by S&P, (G)
investment agreements with providers rated at least AA and AA2 by S&P and Moody’s, respectively, (H)
collateralized investment agreements with providers rated at least A and A2 by S&P and Moody’s, respectively, (I)
Federal Agency Securities and participation certificates issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association,
Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal Farm Credit Bank System, Student
Loan Marketing Association, World Bank or Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation, and (J) commercial paper
which is rated at the time of purchase at least A-1+ by S&P or P-1 by Moody’s and which matures not more than
270 days after the date of purchase. The term “Repurchase Agreement” shall mean a written agreement under which
a bank or trust company which has a capital and surplus of not less than $50,000,000 or a government bond dealer
reporting to, trading with, and recognized as a primary dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York sells to,
and agrees to repurchase from the Authority or the Trustee obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States or
other securities identified in the Section; provided that the market value of such obligations is at the time of entering
into the agreement at least one hundred and three percent (103%) of the repurchase price specified in the agreement
and that such obligations are segregated from the unencumbered assets of such bank or trust company or
government bond dealer; and provided further that unless the agreement is with a bank or trust company, such
agreement shall require the repurchase to occur on demand or on a date certain which is not later than one (1) year
after such agreement is entered into and shall expressly authorize the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be, to
liquidate the purchased obligations in the event of the insolvency of the party required to repurchase such
obligations or the commencement against such party of a case under the federal Bankruptcy Code or the
appointment of or taking possession by a trustee or custodian in a case against such party under the Bankruptcy
Code. Any such investments may be purchased from or through the Trustee.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Permitted Investments shall not include the following:

(i) Government or Equivalent Obligations, certificates of deposit and bankers’ acceptances, in each case
with yields lower than either (1) the yield available on comparable obligations then offered by the United States
Treasury, or (2) the highest yield published or posted by the provider of the Permitted Investments to be currently
available from the provider on reasonably comparable investments;

(ii) Any demand deposit or similar account with a bank, trust company or broker, unless (1) the account is
used for holding funds for a short period of time until such funds are reinvested or spent, and (2) substantially all the
funds in the account are withdrawn for reinvestment or expenditure within fifteen (15) days of their deposit therein;
or

(iii) Repurchase Agreements, unless (1) at least three (3) bids are obtained on the proposed Repurchase
Agreement from persons other than those with an interest in the Bonds, (2) the highest yielding Repurchase
Agreement for which a qualifying bid is received is purchased, (3) the provider of the Repurchase Agreement
certifies that the yield on the Repurchase Agreement is not less than the yield then available from the provider on
reasonably comparable repurchase agreements, if any, offered to persons who are purchasing the agreement from a
source other than proceeds of tax-exempt bonds, (4) the terms of the Repurchase Agreement, including collateral
requirements, are reasonable, and (5) a written record of the yield offered by each bidder is maintained. (Section
314)
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Insurance

The Institution shall maintain insurance in such amounts and covering such risks as are customarily insured
against by similar institutions.

Default by the Institution

“Event of Default” means any one of the events set forth below and “Default” means any Event of Default
without regard to any lapse of time or notice.

(i) Debt Service on Bonds; Required Purchase. Any principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any
Bond shall not be paid when due, whether at maturity, by acceleration, upon redemption or otherwise or any
Purchase Price for Bonds shall not be paid as provided in the Agreement.

(ii) Other Obligations. The Institution shall fail to make any other required payment to the Trustee,
and such failure is not remedied within seven (7) days after written notice thereof is given by the Authority or the
Trustee to the Institution, or the Institution shall fail to perform its obligations under the Agreement, and such failure
is not remedied within seven (7) days after written notice thereof is given by the Authority or the Trustee to the
Institution; or the Institution shall fail to observe or perform any of its other agreements, covenants or obligations
under the Agreement and such failure is not remedied within sixty (60) days after written notice thereof is given by
the Authority or the Trustee to the Institution.

(iii) Warranties. There shall be a material breach of warranty made in the Agreement by the Institution
as of the date it was intended to be effective and the breach is not cured within sixty (60) days after written notice
thereof is given by the Authority or the Trustee to the Institution.

(iv) Voluntary Bankruptcy. The Institution shall commence a voluntary case under the federal
bankruptcy laws, or shall become insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they become due, or shall make an
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall apply for, consent to or acquiesce in the appointment of, or taking
possession by, a trustee, receiver, custodian or similar official or agent for itself or any substantial part of its
property.

(v) Appointment of Receiver. A trustee, receiver, custodian or similar official or agent shall be
appointed for the Institution or for any substantial part of its property and such trustee or receiver shall not be
discharged within sixty (60) days.

(vi) Involuntary Bankruptcy. The Institution shall have an order or decree for relief in an involuntary
case under the federal bankruptcy laws entered against it, or a petition seeking reorganization, readjustment,
arrangement, composition, or other similar relief as to it under the federal bankruptcy laws or any similar law for the
relief of debtors shall be brought against it and shall be consented to by it or shall remain undismissed for sixty (60)
days.

(vii) Reimbursement Agreement. While any Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility, the Trustee shall
have received written notice from any Bank or the Agent Bank, as applicable, of the occurrence of an Event of
Default, as such term is defined under the Reimbursement Agreement and directing the Trustee to cause an
acceleration of the Bonds.

(viii) Non-Reinstatement under the Credit Facility. While the Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility,
the Trustee shall receive written notice from the Bank or Agent Bank, as the case may be, within ten (10) calendar
days after a drawing under the Credit Facility that the Bank or Banks have not reinstated the amount so drawn.

At any time before an acceleration, the Trustee may waive a Default under the Agreement and its
consequences by written notice to the Institution, and in the absence of inconsistent instructions from the Agent
Bank or the Bondowners pursuant to Sections 606 or 901 shall do so upon written instruction of the Agent Bank or
the Owners of at least twenty-five per cent (25%) in principal amount of such Bonds Outstanding. No waiver under
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this section shall affect the right of the Trustee or the Authority to enforce the payment of any amounts owing to it.
The Trustee shall not waive any Event of Default under Paragraphs (i), (iv), (v), (vi) or (viii) above. The Trustee
shall not waive any Event of Default under Paragraph (vii) as above without the consent of the Agent Bank. While
the Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility, the Trustee shall not waive any Event of Default unless the Credit
Facility, if previously drawn upon in connection with the Default, has been fully reinstated. (Section 601)

Remedies for Events of Default

If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing:

(i) Acceleration

(a) Bonds Supported by a Credit Facility. If the Event of Default is one described in
paragraphs (i), (vii) or (viii) under the heading “Default by the Institution” above, the principal of the Bonds that are
supported by the Credit Facility and Pledged Bonds and accrued interest thereon shall automatically become
immediately due and payable without any further notice or action. So long as a Credit Facility is in effect and the
Banks or the Agent Bank have not failed to honor a properly presented and conforming drawing thereunder, no
acceleration shall be declared by reason of an Event of Default described in Paragraphs (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) or (vi)
under the heading “Default by the Institution” above, without the prior written consent of the Agent Bank.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if an Event of Default described in paragraph (i) under the heading “Default
by the Institution” above occurs due to the failure of the Trustee to receive sufficient funds for the payment of the
Purchase Price of all Bonds supported by a Credit Facility tendered for purchase on any Purchase Date, the Trustee
shall immediately draw under the Credit Facility an amount equal to such deficiency (except to the extent that one or
more drawings have been made previously in respect of the same deficiency), plus one day’s accrued interest on
such Bonds, and only if such Event of Default is not cured by the close of business on the next Business Day shall
there be such an automatic acceleration of the payment of principal of and accrued interest on the Bonds.

(b) Bonds Not Supported by a Credit Facility. If the Bonds are not supported by a Credit
Facility, and if the Event of Default is one described in Paragraphs (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) or (vi) under the heading
“Default by the Institution”, the Trustee may, and upon the written request of the Bondowners of at least twenty-five
per cent (25%) in principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding shall, by written notice to the Institution and the
Authority declare immediately due and payable the principal of such Outstanding Bonds and the accrued interest
thereon, whereupon the same shall become immediately due and payable without any further action or notice. If at
any time after such acceleration and before any judgment or decree for the payment of moneys with respect thereto
has been entered all amounts payable to the Authority and the Trustee hereunder and on Bonds subject to
acceleration under this section (except principal of and interest on the Bonds which are due solely by reason of such
acceleration) shall have been paid or provided for by deposit with the Trustee and all existing Defaults shall have
been cured or waived, then the Bondowners representing a majority in principal amount of the Bonds subject to
acceleration may annul such acceleration and its consequences by written notice to the Authority, the Trustee and
the Institution. Such annulment shall be binding upon the Authority, the Trustee and all of the Bondowners, but no
such annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent Default or impair any right or remedy consequent thereto.

(ii) Rights as a Secured Party. Subject to the rights of the Banks, the Trustee may exercise all of the
rights and remedies of a secured party under the UCC.

Proceedings by Bondowners

No Bondowner shall have any right to institute any legal proceedings for the enforcement of the Agreement
or any applicable remedy hereunder, unless the Bondowners have directed the Authority to act and furnished the
Authority indemnity as provided in the Agreement and have afforded the Authority reasonable opportunity to
proceed, and the Authority shall thereafter fail or refuse to take such action. No Bondowner shall have any right to
institute any legal proceedings for the enforcement of the obligations of the Authority under the Agreement or any
applicable remedy hereunder, unless the Bondowners have directed the Trustee to act and furnished the Trustee
indemnity as provided in Subsection 702(d) and have afforded the Trustee reasonable opportunity to proceed, and
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the Trustee shall thereafter fail or refuse to take such action. Subject to the foregoing, any Bondowner may by any
available legal proceedings enforce and protect its rights hereunder and under the laws of The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. Any request, consent or vote of the owner of any Bond shall bind all future owners of such Bond.
Bonds owned or held by or for the account of the Authority, the Institution shall not be deemed Outstanding Bonds
for the purpose of any consent or other action by Bondowners, except that for such purposes Bank Bonds shall be
treated as Outstanding and shall be deemed to be owned by the Banks. So long as no Default exists under paragraph
(i) of the heading “Default by the Institution” above with respect to any Bonds supported by a Credit Facility, the
Banks and not the Bondowners shall be treated as the Owner of all Bonds entitled to the benefits of such Credit
Facility for the purpose of any consent or other action by Bondowners, unless such consent or other action either
(A) would affect some, but not all, of the Bonds Outstanding, or (B) would be governed by Clauses (i) through (iv)
under the heading “Amendment” below. (Section 902)

Tax Status

The Institution has represented and warranted in the Agreement that (i) it is an organization described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and it is not a “private foundation” as defined in Section 509 of the IRC; (ii) it has
received letters from the Internal Revenue Service to that effect; (iii) such letters have not been modified, limited or
revoked; (iv) it is in compliance with all terms, conditions and limitations, if any, contained in such letters; (v) the
facts and circumstances which form the basis of such letters continue substantially to exist as represented to the
Internal Revenue Service; and (vi) it is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the IRC. To the
extent consistent with its status as a nonprofit educational institution, the Institution has agreed that it will not take
any action or omit to take any action if such action or omission would cause any revocation or adverse modification
of such federal income tax status of the Institution.

Maintenance of Corporate Existence

The Institution has agreed in the Agreement to maintain its existence as a nonprofit corporation qualified to
do business in Massachusetts and not to dissolve, dispose of or spin off all or substantially all of its assets, or
consolidate with or merge into another entity or entities, or permit one or more other entities to consolidate with or
merge into it, except that it may consolidate with or merge into one or more other entities or permit one or more
other entities to consolidate with or merge into it, or transfer all or substantially all of its assets to one or more other
entities (and thereafter dissolve or not dissolve as it may elect), if (i) the surviving, resulting or transferee entity or
entities each is a corporation having the status and powers set forth in the Agreement, (ii) the transaction does not
result in a conflict, breach or default referred to in the Agreement, iii) the surviving, resulting or transferee entity or
entities each (a) assumes by written agreement with the Authority and the Trustee all the obligations of the
Institution hereunder, (b) notifies the Authority and the Trustee of any change in the name of the Institution, and (c)
executes, delivers, registers, records and files such other instruments as the Authority or the Trustee may reasonably
require to confirm, perfect or maintain the security granted under the Agreement. (Section 1005)

Amendment

Without Bondowners’ Consent. The parties may from time to time, without the consent of any Bondowner,
amend the Agreement in order to (i) cure any ambiguity, defect or omission in the Agreement that does not
materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners, (ii) grant additional rights or security to the Trustee for
the benefit of the Bondowners, (iii) add additional Events of Default as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions
of the Agreement and which shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners, (iv) qualify the
Agreement under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or corresponding provisions of federal laws from
time to time in effect, (v) effective upon any Conversion Date, make any amendment affecting only the Bonds being
converted, (vi) to add provisions relating to the partial conversion of Bonds or to add a new Mode which do not
impair the security for the Bonds, (vii) amend or modify the provisions of the Agreement, so long as the Trustee and
Authority are provided with an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that (a) such amendment or modification does
not adversely affect the federal tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds or (b) such amendment or modification is
required to preserve the federal tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds, (viii) modify or delete any provision in
the Agreement if, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, such modification or deletion is necessary in order to comply
with regulations under or official interpretations of the IRC, provided the Trustee determines that the amendment
will not materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners or (ix) make such other provisions in regard to
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matters or questions arising under the Agreement as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of the Agreement
and which shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners. The Institution acting alone may
amend the Maximum Interest Rate to a higher interest rate without Bondowner consent, provided that, if a Credit
Facility is then in effect, it entitles the Trustee to draw upon or demand and receive in immediately available funds
an amount equal to the principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding plus a number of days of accrued interest at
such amended Maximum Interest Rate at least equal to the number of days required to be covered under the
Agreement.

With Bondowners’ Consent. Except as set forth in the Agreement, the parties may from time to time amend
the Agreement with the consent of the owners of more than 50% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds
Outstanding; provided, that no amendment shall be made which adversely affects the rights of some but less than all
the Bonds Outstanding without the consent of the owners of more than 50% in aggregate principal amount of the
Bonds so affected; and provided further, that no amendment of the Agreement shall be effective to (i) change the
principal, premium or interest on any Bonds, (ii) change the interest payment dates, maturity dates or purchase or
redemption provisions of any Bonds, (iii) reduce the percentage of Bondowners whose consent is required for the
amendment of the Agreement or (iv) modify the lien upon or pledge of the payments and other revenues assigned
and pledged hereunder (including any Credit Facility), without the consent, in each case, of the owner of each Bond
which would be affected by the action proposed to be taken.

So long as a Credit Facility supports the Bonds no amendment to the Agreement shall be made without the
consent of the Agent Bank. So long as no Default under paragraph (i) of the heading “Default by the Institution”
above exists with respect to any Bonds supported by a Credit Facility, the Banks and not the Bondowners shall be
deemed to be the owner of all Bonds entitled to the benefits of such Credit Facility for the purpose of granting
waivers and consents and consenting to any amendment, by Bondowners except amendments referred to in clauses
(i) through (iv) of the first paragraph of the preceding paragraph. (Section 1101)

Defeasance

When there are in the Bond Fund sufficient funds and/or Government or Equivalent Obligations described
in clause (i) of the definition thereof in such principal amounts, bearing interest at such rates and with such
maturities (including with respect to any Bonds in the Daily or Weekly Mode, maturities no greater than one (1) day
or seven (7) days, as applicable, to fund the payment of the Purchase Price) as will provide, without reinvestment,
sufficient funds to pay the Purchase Price, principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds in full as and
when such amounts become due, and when all the rights hereunder of the Authority and the Trustee (including the
right to receive payments under the Agreement) have been provided for, upon written notice from the Institution to
the Authority, the Trustee and the Agent Bank so long as the Credit Facility is in effect, the Bondowners shall cease
to be entitled to any benefit or security under the Agreement except the right to receive payment of the funds
deposited and held for payment and other rights set forth below as rights which by their nature cannot be satisfied
prior to or simultaneously with termination of the lien hereof (including obligations of the Institution under the
Agreement), the security interests created by the Agreement (except in such funds and investments) shall terminate,
the Bonds shall be deemed paid, and the Authority and the Trustee shall execute and deliver such instruments as
may be necessary to discharge the lien and security interests created hereunder; provided, however, that (a) with
respect to any Bonds that are supported by a Credit Facility, all such funds and obligations in the Bond Fund shall be
Eligible Funds; (b) if any such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, the Authority shall have taken
all action necessary to redeem such Bonds and notice of such redemption shall have been duly mailed in accordance
with the Agreement or irrevocable instructions so to mail shall have been given to the Trustee; and (c) if the Bonds
bear interest at a Variable Rate or the Flexible Rate, the Trustee shall have received written confirmation from S&P
and/or Moody’s, if the Bonds are then rated by S&P and/or Moody’s, that the proposed defeasance will not in and of
itself cause a reduction or withdrawal of the rating then in effect on the Bonds. Upon such defeasance, the funds and
investments required to pay or redeem the Bonds in full shall be irrevocably set aside for that purpose, subject,
however, to Subsection 303(c) hereof, and moneys held for defeasance shall be invested only as provided above in
this section. Any funds or property held by the Trustee and not required for payment or redemption of the Bonds in
full shall, after satisfaction of all the rights of the Authority and the Trustee and after allowance for payment into the
Rebate Fund, be distributed to the Institution upon such indemnification, if any, as the Authority or the Trustee may
reasonably require. (Section 203)
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APPENDIX E 
 
 

CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANKS 
 
 

ALLIED IRISH BANKS, p.l.c. 
 

THIS DOCUMENT REPRESENTS ONLY A SUMMARY OF THE INFORMATION REFERRED TO HEREIN.  
EXCEPT TO THE LIMITED EXTENT DESCRIBED HEREIN, THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT ATTEMPT TO 
DESCRIBE THE BUSINESS OR ANALYZE THE CONDITION, FINANCIAL OR OTHERWISE, OF ALLIED 
IRISH BANKS, p.l.c. (“AIB”) OR OTHERWISE DESCRIBE ANY RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH AIB.  EACH 
BONDHOLDER MUST RELY ON THAT HOLDER’S OWN KNOWLEDGE, INVESTIGATION AND 
EXAMINATION OF AIB AND AIB’S CREDITWORTHINESS. 
 

AIB reports its financial information on a consolidated basis which includes AIB and certain affiliates and 
subsidiaries (“AIB Group”).  AIB Group provides a diverse and comprehensive range of banking, financial and 
related services principally in Ireland, Britain, Poland and the United States.  AIB Group is currently organized into 
six (6) divisions: Republic of Ireland; Great Britain & Northern Ireland; USA (which includes AIB’s New York 
Branch); Poland; Group Technology & E-Business; and Capital Markets. 
 

AIB is the largest banking corporation organized under the laws of Ireland. As of December 31, 2001, AIB’s 
total assets were EUR88.8 billion. Pre-tax profits for the year ending December 31, 2001 amounted to EUR612 
million. Profit after tax was EUR484 million. Before the exceptional item discussed below, AIB’s pre-tax profits for 
the year ending December 31, 2001 amounted to EUR1,401 million; profit after tax was EUR997 million; return on 
equity was 20.5% and return on assets was 1.28%.  
 

On February 6, 2002, AIB announced that investigations had commenced into foreign exchange trading 
operations at its US subsidiary, ALLFIRST Bank. The investigations have indicated that certain suspected 
fraudulent activities have given rise to losses in the amount of $691.2million.  In accordance with Irish GAAP, the 
total costs arising from the suspected fraud have been reflected by way of an exceptional charge of EUR789 million 
(tax credit EUR276 million) in the accounts for the year ended December 31, 2001.  The reduction in attributable 
profit was EUR513 million.  
 

On September 26, 2002, AIB and M&T Bank Corporation (“M&T”) [NYSE:MTB] Buffalo, New York jointly 
announced the merger of M&T and Allfirst Financial Inc. (“Allfirst”) which will create a mid-Atlantic banking 
franchise with over seven hundred (700) branches in six (6) states and the District of Columbia (“Enlarged M&T”).  
The Enlarged M&T will be among the top twenty (20) commercial banking companies in the United States with 
pro-forma combined assets of approximately $49 billion as of June 30, 2002.  As part of the transaction, AIB will 
receive $866 million in cash as well as a 22.5% stake in the Enlarged M&T organization.  The transaction is subject 
to the approval of the shareholders of AIB and M&T and is conditioned upon obtaining all necessary  Irish and U.S. 
governmental approvals.  The transaction is scheduled to close in the first quarter of 2003.   

 
AIB’s New York Branch files quarterly reports on Form FFIEC-002 (“Call Reports”) with the Federal Reserve 

Bank of New York, 33 Liberty Street, New York, NY 10001, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) 
at 452 Fifth Avenue, 21st Floor, New York, NY 10018 and with the New York State Banking Department at 2 
Rector Street, New York, NY 10006.  The Call Reports are publicly available.  
 

AIB is an Irish registered public limited company and its ordinary shares are quoted on the Dublin and London 
stock exchanges.  The Group’s ordinary shares (symbol AIB) and non-cumulative preference shares (symbol AIBPr) 
are traded in the USA on the New York Stock Exchange in the form of American Depository Shares (“ADS”) and 
each ADS is evidenced by an American Depositary Receipt (“ADR”).  AIB, as a foreign private issuer of securities 
in the United States, is required to file an annual report on Form 20-F with the U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”) pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) within 6 
months after the end of each fiscal year.  Moreover, a foreign issuer, unlike domestic companies, is required to 
submit to the SEC under the Exchange Act on Form 6-K, only those interim reports and other materials that the 
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issuer prepares in accordance with home country or home market requirements or delivers to its security holders.  
Exchange Act documents filed by AIB are publicly available at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC 
at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Judiciary Plaza, Washington, D.C. 20549 and at its regional offices at 233 Broadway, New 
York, NY 10279 and 500 West Madison Street, Suite 1400, Chicago, IL  60661.  Copies of documents filed by AIB 
with the SEC may also be accessed electronically by means of the SEC’s home page on the Internet at 
“http://www.sec.gov”. 
 

Any of the documents referred to herein (other than exhibits to such documents) are available upon request, 
without charge, by writing to Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch, 405 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10022.  
Additional information about AIB, including a copy of AIB Group’s Annual Report and Form 20-F, is presently 
available on the Internet at “http://www.aib.ie”. 
 
 Note: The rate as at 12/31/01 - EUR1 = $0.8858 
 
STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY 
 
 State Street Bank and Trust Company (“State Street”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of State Street Corporation 
(the “Corporation”), provides banking, securities processing and investment management services to a broad base of 
customers worldwide.  State Street combines information processing with banking to process and manage virtually 
all types of financial assets.  In addition to financial processing services, State Street provides a full range of capital 
market services to businesses and financial institutions in New England and selected national and international 
markets.  At December 31, 2001, State Street and its consolidated subsidiaries had total assets of $69.896 billion, 
total deposits (including deposits in foreign offices) of $38.559 billion, total loans and lease finance assets net of 
unearned income, allowance and reserve for possible credit losses of approximately $5.283 billion and total equity 
capital of $3.845 billion. 
 
 State Street’s Consolidated Reports of Condition for Insured Commercial and State Chartered Savings Banks 
FFIEC 031 for December 31, 2001, as submitted to the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston, are incorporated by 
reference in this Appendix and shall be deemed to be a part hereof. 
 
 In addition, all reports filed by State Street pursuant to 12 U.S.C. §324 after the date of this Official Statement 
shall be deemed to be incorporated herein by reference and shall be deemed to be a part hereof from the date of 
filing of any such report. 
 
 Additional information, including financial information relating to the Corporation and State Street is set forth 
in the Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.  Such report and all 
reports filed by the Corporation pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 
after the date of this Official Statement are incorporated herein by reference and shall be deemed a part hereof from 
the date of filing of any such report.  Each of the Letter of Credit and Reimbursement Agreement is an obligation of 
State Street and not of the Corporation. 
 
 Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall be 
deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this Official Statement to the extent that a statement contained 
herein or in any subsequently filed document that also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein 
modifies or supersedes such statement.  Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so 
modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Official Statement. 
 
 State Street hereby undertakes to provide, without charge to each person to whom a copy of this Official 
Statement has been delivered, on the written request of any such person, a copy of any or all of the documents 
referred to above which have been or may be incorporated in this Official Statement by reference, other than 
exhibits to such documents.  Written requests for such copies should be directed to Investor Relations, State Street 
Corporation, 225 Franklin Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02110, (617) 786-3000. 
 
 Neither State Street not its affiliates make any representation as to the contents of this Official Statement 
(expect as to this Appendix), the suitability of the Series 2003 Bonds for any investor, the feasibility or performance 
of any project or compliance with any securities or tax laws and regulations.  
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PROPOSED FORM OF THE LETTER OF CREDIT 

IRREVOCABLE DIRECT PAY LETTER OF CREDIT 
State Street Bank and Trust Company: No. ILC-1233/BSN 

Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch: No. C-548 

DATE OF ISSUE:  January 23, 2003 

Amount/Currency:
Up to USD $40,964,494.00 
Up to Forty Million Nine Hundred Sixty-Four 
Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-Four and 
00/100 US Dollars 
(Up to $20,482,247.00 as to State Street Bank 
and Trust Company and up to $20,482,247.00 
as to Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York 
Branch)

Date and Place of Expiry: 
January 23, 2007 (or, if not a Business Day, the 
next succeeding Business Day) at the counters 
of the Agent 

BENEFICIARY:

Citizens Bank of Massachusetts, as Trustee under 
  Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of 
  December 10, 2002 
One Citizens Plaza 
Providence, RI  02903 
Attention:  Corporate Trust Dept. 

Dear Sirs and Madams:

At the request and for the account of The Trustees of Emmanuel College, 400 The 
Fenway, Boston, MA 02115 (the “Borrower”), the undersigned State Street Bank and Trust 
Company and Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch (each, a “Bank” and, collectively, the 
“Banks”) hereby severally, but not jointly, establish in favor of Citizens Bank of Massachusetts, 
as Trustee (the “Trustee”) under the below-defined Indenture pursuant to which $40,400,000.00 
in aggregate principal amount of Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Emmanuel College Issue, Series 2003 (the “Bonds”) are 
being issued by Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Issuer”), this 
Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of Credit (this “Letter of Credit”) in the amount of $40,964,494.00 
(the “Stated Amount”), of which (1) $40,400,000.00 (as from time to time reduced or reinstated 
as provided in this Letter of Credit, the “Principal Component”) shall support the payment of the 
principal or portion of the purchase price corresponding to principal of the Bonds, and 
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(2) $564,494.00 (as from time to time reduced or reinstated as provided in this Letter of Credit, 
the “Interest Component”) shall support the payment of up to 51 days’ interest on the Bonds or 
portion of the purchase price corresponding to interest at an assumed rate of 10% per annum,
effective immediately and expiring at 5:00 P.M. (Boston time) on the below-defined Stated 
Termination Date or earlier as hereinafter provided.  Each Bank severally, but not jointly, hereby 
irrevocably authorizes the Trustee to draw on this Letter of Credit with respect to such Bank, in 
accordance with the terms hereof, in an aggregate amount not to exceed the amount set forth 
opposite such Bank’s name on the signature page of this Letter of Credit (as such amount may be 
reduced or reinstated as provided herein, such Bank’s “Letter of Credit Commitment”; and the 
sum of such amounts being collectively referred to herein as the “Aggregate Letter of Credit 
Commitment”).  Any payment pursuant to a drawing under this Letter of Credit will be made by 
the Banks and each Bank will pay from its own funds, and not from any separate funds of the 
Issuer or the Borrower; provided that the Agent (as defined below) may pay a drawing from its 
own funds on behalf of any Bank and be reimbursed by such Bank as described in the 
Reimbursement Agreement.  As used herein, the term “Indenture” will be deemed to mean that 
certain Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of December 10, 2002 among the Issuer, the 
Borrower and the Trustee.  As used herein, the term “Stated Termination Date” means January 
23, 2007 (or, if not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day). 

The Banks hereby irrevocably authorize the Trustee to draw on the Banks, in an 
aggregate amount not to exceed the Stated Amount of this Letter of Credit set forth above and in 
accordance with the terms and conditions and subject to the reductions in amount as hereinafter 
set forth, (1) in one drawing per month (subject to the provisions contained in the next following 
paragraph) by the Trustee’s draft (in the form of Annex A attached hereto), payable at sight on a 
Business Day, and accompanied by a written and completed certificate signed by the Trustee in 
the form of Annex B attached hereto (such draft accompanied by such certificate being an 
“Interest Drawing”), an amount not exceeding the Interest Component, representing 51 days’ 
interest on the Bonds, computed at an assumed rate of 10% per annum; (2) in one or more
drawings by one or more of the Trustee’s drafts (in the form of Annex A attached hereto), 
payable at sight on a Business Day, and accompanied by a written and completed certificate 
signed by the Trustee in the form of Annex C attached hereto (any such draft accompanied by 
such certificate being a “Tender Drawing”), an aggregate amount not exceeding the sum of the 
Principal Component and the Interest Component; (3) in one or more drawings by one or more
of the Trustee’s drafts (in the form of Annex A attached hereto), payable at sight on a Business 
Day, and accompanied by a written and completed certificate signed by the Trustee in the form
of Annex D attached hereto (any such draft accompanied by such certificate being a “Partial 
Redemption Drawing”), an aggregate amount not exceeding the sum of the Principal Component
and the Interest Component; and (4) in a single drawing by the Trustee’s draft (in the form of 
Annex A attached hereto), payable at sight on a Business Day, and accompanied by a written and 
completed certificate signed by the Trustee in the form of Annex E attached hereto (such draft 
accompanied by such certificate being a “Final Drawing”, and any Interest Drawing, Tender 
Drawing, Partial Redemption Drawing or Final Drawing referred to herein being a “Drawing”), 
an amount not exceeding the sum of the Principal Component and the Interest Component.  Each 
such Drawing shall cover principal of and/or interest on the Bonds and shall be submitted to 
State Street Bank and Trust Company, as agent (the “Agent”) for the Banks, at the times, in the 
manner and to the address provided for below.  “Business Day” means any day (i) that is not a 
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Saturday or Sunday, (ii) on which banks are not required or authorized to close in New York, 
New York or in Boston, Massachusetts, (iii) on which banking institutions in each of the cities in 
which the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee is located, the principal office of the 
Remarketing Agent (as defined in the Indenture) is located, the principal office of each Bank is 
located and/or the office of the Agent specified herein for draws hereunder is located are not 
required or authorized to remain closed and (iv) on which the New York Stock Exchange is not 
closed.  Upon receipt of any Drawing properly made hereunder, the Agent shall (except as 
otherwise expressly provided below) thereafter promptly deliver notice in writing (or by 
telephone promptly confirmed in writing) to each Bank of its allocable share of the amount
demanded for payment, such “allocable share” being an amount equal to the product of (x) the 
amount of the relevant Drawing multiplied by (y) that percentage (such Bank’s “Letter of Credit 
Percentage”) which is set forth opposite such Bank’s name on the signature page hereto.  Each 
Bank’s Letter of Credit Percentage shall be a percentage equal to a fraction the numerator of 
which is equal to such Bank’s Letter of Credit Commitment and the denominator of which shall 
equal the Aggregate Letter of Credit Commitment.  The Aggregate Letter of Credit Commitment
shall be reduced or reinstated in the same manner as the Stated Amount is reduced or increased 
hereunder.  Each Bank’s Letter of Credit Commitment shall be reduced or reinstated in the same
manner as the Aggregate Letter of Credit Commitment so that each Bank’s Letter of Credit 
Commitment shall be 50% of the Aggregate Letter of Credit Commitment (except that if a Bank 
which does not honor its allocable share of a properly submitted Draft there will not be a 
corresponding reduction in such Bank’s Letter of Credit Commitment).  No Bank shall in any 
event be liable for payments hereunder in excess of its Letter of Credit Commitment, as reduced 
or reinstated as provided herein.  Each Drawing (as defined below) submitted by the Trustee to 
the Agent hereunder will be deemed a drawing on each of the Banks severally in an amount
equal to such Bank’s Letter of Credit Percentage of such Drawing, each such Bank to be 
responsible only for its respective Letter of Credit Percentage of such Drawing.  No Bank shall 
be liable to pay any amount drawn upon the other Bank and unpaid for any reason (including, 
but not limited to, wrongful dishonor) by the other Bank, and no demand for payment may be 
made upon any Bank for any amount previously demanded from the other Bank and unpaid by 
said other Bank.  Each Bank shall remit its respective allocable portion of each Drawing to the 
Agent and, to the extent actually received, the Agent shall remit the same as directed by the 
Trustee in the sight draft submitted as part of such Drawing (unless the Agent has previously 
remitted its own funds to the Trustee in order to pay such Bank’s allocable portion of the 
relevant drawing, in which event the Agent shall use the amount so received from such Bank to 
reimburse itself for the amount of its own funds so paid to the Trustee).  Paragraph 21(i)(B) of 
the below-defined Reimbursement Agreement provides, in effect, that under the circumstances
described therein, the Agent may pay a Drawing from its own funds and may elect not to advise 
the Banks of such Drawing and not to require payments from each Bank in respect thereof, 
provided that such failure to advise the Banks shall in no way release any Bank from its 
respective obligations under this Letter of Credit with respect to such Drawing if such Bank is 
later notified by the Agent of such Drawing in accordance with the terms of the Reimbursement
Agreement.  Upon such notification, each Bank shall pay to the Agent its allocable share of such 
Drawing as provided above for the account of the Agent. 

If the Trustee shall draw on the Banks by the Trustee’s Interest Drawing under clause (1) 
of the first sentence of the immediately preceding paragraph and the Trustee shall not have 
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received from the Agent within ten (10) calendar days from the date of the Banks honoring such 
drawing a written notice to the effect that a default exists under the reimbursement agreement
(the “Reimbursement Agreement”) among the Borrower, the Banks and the Agent and that the 
Interest Component of this Letter of Credit will not be reinstated, the Trustee’s right to draw on 
the Banks in a single drawing by an Interest Drawing under said clause (1) shall be automatically
reinstated and, effective the eleventh (11th) calendar day from the date of the honoring of such 
drawing, the Trustee shall again be authorized to draw on the Banks by an Interest Drawing in 
accordance with said clause (1); provided, however, that the Interest Component of this Letter of 
Credit shall be decreased as hereinafter provided in connection with amounts drawn pursuant to 
any Partial Redemption Drawings or Tender Drawings.  The automatic reinstatement of the 
Trustee’s right to draw on the Banks by an Interest Drawing shall be applicable to successive 
drawings by Interest Drawings under clause (1) of the first sentence of the immediately
preceding paragraph so long as this Letter of Credit shall not have terminated as set forth below. 

Upon any Bank honoring its allocable share of any Tender Drawing or Partial 
Redemption Drawing presented by the Trustee hereunder, (i) the Principal Component of this 
Letter of Credit and the amounts available to be drawn hereunder by the Trustee by any 
subsequent Drawing shall be automatically decreased by an amount equal to the amount so 
drawn on such Bank relating to principal of the Bonds, and (ii) the Interest Component of this 
Letter of Credit and the amounts available to be drawn hereunder by the Trustee with respect to 
interest on the Bonds by any subsequent Drawing shall be automatically decreased by an amount
equal to the portion of the Interest Component relating to Bonds purchased or redeemed with the 
proceeds of such Tender Drawing or Partial Redemption Drawing, but shall automatically
reinstate as follows:

(A)  with respect to any decrease upon payment of any Tender Drawing, the 
amount of the Principal Component of this Letter of Credit and the portion of the Interest 
Component relating thereto shall be increased when and to the extent, but only when and 
to the extent, that the Banks are reimbursed by or on behalf of the Borrower for any 
amount drawn hereunder by any Tender Drawing in respect of principal.  Any amount
received by the Banks from or on behalf of the Borrower in reimbursement of amounts
drawn hereunder by any Tender Drawing in respect of principal shall, if accompanied by 
the Trustee’s completed certificate signed by the Trustee in the form of Annex F attached 
hereto, be applied to the extent of the amount indicated therein to reimburse the Banks 
for amounts drawn hereunder by the Trustee’s Tender Drawing; and 

(B)  with respect to any decrease upon payment of any Partial Redemption
Drawing or upon any Final Drawing, neither the amount of the Principal Component
relating thereto nor the related Interest Component shall be reinstated. 

Funds from the Banks under this Letter of Credit are available to the Trustee against 
presentation of an Interest Drawing, a Tender Drawing, a Partial Redemption Drawing and a 
Final Drawing.  Each sight draft drawn under this Letter of Credit must bear on its face the 
clause “Drawn under State Street Bank and Trust Company Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of 
Credit No. ILC-1233/BSN and Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch Irrevocable Direct 
Pay Letter of Credit No. C-548.”  Each Drawing shall be presented to the Agent at the following 
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address:  State Street Bank and Trust Company, 225 Franklin Street, Boston, MA 02110, 
attention: Global Trade Banking.  A Drawing shall be deemed to have been presented on the date 
actually received by the Agent.  Presentation will also be deemed made upon the Agent’s receipt 
of the Trustee’s telecopier transmission to the Agent (at Fax No. (617) 451-2127) of a facsimile
of the appropriate sight draft and drawing certificate properly completed and signed, together 
with (i) the Trustee’s undertaking to send to the Agent by nationally recognized overnight 
courier, for receipt on the next following Business Day, the signed originals of such documents
and (ii) the Trustee’s telephonic advice to the Agent (at 617-664-3871 or such other number as 
the Agent shall specify to the Trustee) of the Trustee’s sending of the above-described telecopier 
transmission; provided, however, that the Trustee’s failure to give such telephonic notice shall 
not affect the obligation of the Banks to fund their allocable shares of a Drawing which is 
otherwise made in strict conformity with the terms thereof.  Presentation may not be made in any 
manner other than as provided in this paragraph.  If the Agent receives any Drawing (other than 
a Tender Drawing) at the Agent’s aforesaid office, all in strict conformity with the terms and 
conditions of this Letter of Credit, not later than 10:00 A.M. (Boston time) on a Business Day 
(provided that this Letter of Credit has not then terminated), the Banks will cause payment of
same by 1:00 P.M. (Boston time) on the next following Business Day in accordance with the 
Trustee’s payment instructions.  If the Agent receives any Drawing (other than a Tender 
Drawing) at such office, all in strict conformity with the terms and conditions of this Letter of 
Credit, after 10:00 A.M. (Boston time) on a Business Day (provided that this Letter of Credit has 
not then terminated), the Banks will cause payment of same by 12:00 noon (Boston time) on the 
second succeeding Business Day in accordance with the Trustee’s payment instructions.  Except 
with respect to optional tender of Bonds which are in Daily Mode (as defined in the Indenture), 
if the Agent receives any Tender Drawing at its aforesaid office, all in strict conformity with the 
terms and conditions of this Letter of Credit, not later than 10:00 A.M. (Boston time) on any 
Business Day (provided that this Letter of Credit has not then terminated), the Banks (or the 
Agent if it chooses to pay from its own funds, as provided above) will cause payment of same by 
1:00 P.M. (Boston time) on the same Business Day in accordance with the Trustee’s payment
instructions.  If the Agent receives any Tender Drawing with respect to optional tender of Bonds 
in Daily Mode at aforesaid office of the Agent, all in strict conformity with the terms and 
conditions of this Letter of Credit, not later than 10:30 A.M. (Boston time) on any Business Day 
(provided that this Letter of Credit has not then terminated), the Banks (or the Agent if it chooses 
to pay from its own funds, as provided above) will cause payment of same by 1:00 P.M. (Boston 
time) on the same Business Day in accordance with the Trustee’s payment instructions.  A 
Tender Drawing so received after 10:00 A.M. (Boston time) (10:30 A.M. (Boston time) in the 
case of a Tender Drawing with respect to optional tender of Bonds in Daily Mode) on any 
Business Day will be deemed, for the purposes of this paragraph and the next following
paragraph, to have been received on the succeeding Business Day.  If requested by the Trustee, 
payment under this Letter of Credit may be made by wire transfer of Federal Reserve Bank funds 
to the Trustee’s account in a bank on the Federal Reserve wire system or by deposit of same day 
funds into a designated account that the Trustee maintains with the Agent.  As used in this Letter 
of Credit “cause payment” shall mean (i) the deposit of same day funds into a designated account 
with the Agent, if such deposit is requested; or (ii) if wire transfer is requested, the entry of an 
appropriate wire transfer in the Federal Reserve wire system and the obtaining of a Federal 
Reserve reference number.
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Upon the earliest of (i) the date on which the Banks honor a Final Drawing presented 
hereunder accompanied by this Letter of Credit, (ii) 5:00 p.m. (Boston time) on the date on 
which the Agent receives a certificate signed by the Trustee accompanied by this Letter of Credit 
stating that the Borrower has provided and the Trustee has accepted a substitute or replacement
“Credit Facility” (as defined in the Indenture) in accordance with the terms of the Indenture (or, 
if later, 5:00 p.m. (Boston time) on the effective date of such certificate), (iii) 5:00 p.m. (Boston 
time) on the date on which the Agent receives a certificate signed by the Trustee accompanied by 
this Letter of Credit stating that a Conversion Date (as defined in the Indenture) has occurred 
pursuant to the Indenture to any Mode (as defined in the Indenture) (other than a Daily Mode or 
Weekly Mode, each as defined in the Indenture), or (iv) 5:00 p.m. (Boston time) on the Stated 
Termination Date, this Letter of Credit shall terminate.

This Letter of Credit is transferable in its entirety (but not in part) to any transferee whom
the Trustee certifies to the Agent has succeeded the Trustee as trustee under the Indenture, and 
may be successively transferred.  Transfer of the available balance under this Letter of Credit to 
such transferee shall be effected by the presentation to the Agent of this Letter of Credit 
accompanied by a certificate in the form of Annex G attached hereto.  Upon such presentation, 
the Agent shall forthwith transfer the same to such transferee.  A transfer fee is payable to the 
Agent as set forth in the Banks’ reimbursement agreement with the Borrower. 

This Letter of Credit sets forth in full the Banks’ and the Agent’s undertakings, and such 
undertakings shall not in any way be modified, amended, amplified or limited by reference to 
any document, instrument or agreement referred to herein (including, without limitation, the 
Bonds), except only the Drawings referred to herein, which are hereby incorporated by 
reference; and any such reference shall not be deemed to incorporate herein by reference any 
document, instrument or agreement except for such Drawings. 

Only the Trustee (or a transferee permitted by the terms of this Letter of Credit) may
make drawings under this Letter of Credit.  Upon payment by a Bank to the Trustee or to the 
Trustee’s account of such Bank’s allocable share of the amount specified in a sight draft drawn 
hereunder, such Bank shall be fully discharged on its obligation under this Letter of Credit with 
respect to such draft, and such Bank shall not thereafter be obligated to make any further 
payments under this Letter of Credit in respect of such draft to the Trustee or to any other person 
who may have made to such Bank or the Agent or who makes to such Bank or the Agent a 
demand for payment of principal of, or interest on, any Bond. 

This Letter of Credit shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, including 
the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect in the State of New York, except that (a) Article 
11(a) of the Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits (1993 Revision) (“UCP”), 
International Chamber of Commerce Publication No. 500, shall govern solely with respect to the 
presentation of drawings by telecopy transmission; (b) notwithstanding the provisions of Article 
17 of the UCP, if this Letter of Credit expires during an interruption of business (as described in 
Article 17 of the UCP), the Banks agree to effect payment under this Letter of Credit if a 
drawing which strictly conforms to the terms and conditions of this Letter of Credit is made
within 15 days after the resumption of business; (c) this Letter of Credit will not terminate
because of a failure to make any permitted drawings hereunder as provided in Article 41 of the 
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UCP; and (d) notwithstanding the provisions of Sub-Article 48(d) of the UCP, the consent of a 
prior Trustee will not be required in connection with the amendment of this Letter of Credit 
following a transfer of said Letter of Credit to any successor Trustee.  By your acceptance of this 
Letter of Credit, you and any transferee who has succeeded you as Trustee under the Indenture 
agree to waive, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any right you may have to a trial 
by jury in respect of any litigation arising directly or indirectly under or in connection with this 
Letter of Credit. 

Communications with respect to this Letter of Credit shall be in writing and shall be 
addressed to the Agent at State Street Bank and Trust Company, 225 Franklin Street, Boston, 
MA 02110, attention: Global Trade Banking, and shall specifically refer to the number of this 
Letter of Credit.  Copies of all communications given by the Trustee to the Agent under this 
Letter of Credit shall be simultaneously sent to the Banks at the respective addresses set forth 
below, specifically referring therein to this Letter of Credit and to each Bank’s Letter of Credit 
Number:

Credit Matters, Extensions 
and Amendments Administrative Matters

State Street Bank and Trust Company
225 Franklin Street 
Municipal Finance, M-18 
Boston, MA  02110 
Attn:  Timothy L. Batler, Managing 
 Director 

State Street Bank and Trust Company
225 Franklin Street 
Municipal Finance, M-18 
Boston, MA  02110 
Attn:  Thomas Henderson, Associate 

Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York 
Branch

405 Park Avenue 
New York, New York  10022 
Attn:  Letter of Credit Department

with a copy to: 

Not-for-Profit Group 
Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York 

Branch
405 Park Avenue 
New York, New York  10022 

Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York 
Branch

405 Park Avenue 
New York, New York  10022 
Attn:  Letter of Credit Department

with a copy to: 

Not-for-Profit Group 
Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York 

Branch
405 Park Avenue 
New York, New York  10022 
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provided that the failure of the Banks to receive such copies of any communications received by 
the Agent shall not affect the obligations of the Banks hereunder. 

Very truly yours, 

STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST 
COMPANY, as Agent 

By:____________________________________
 Name:
 Title: 

By:____________________________________
 Name:
 Title: 

BANKS:

Letter of Credit Commitment:
$20,482,247.00, of which $20,200,000.00 is 
available for payment of principal of the Bonds 
and $282,247.00 is available for payment of 
interest

Letter of Credit Percentage:  50% 

STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST 
COMPANY

By:__________________________________
Name:
Title:

By:__________________________________
Name:
Title:

Letter of Credit Commitment:
$20,482,247.00, of which $20,200,000.00 is 
available for payment of principal of the Bonds 
and $282,247.00 is available for payment of 
interest

Letter of Credit Percentage:  50% 

ALLIED IRISH BANKS, P.L.C., NEW YORK 
BRANCH

By:__________________________________
 Name:
 Title: 

By:__________________________________
 Name:
 Title: 
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Annex A

[Form of Sight Draft] 

DRAWN UNDER STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY 
IRREVOCABLE DIRECT PAY LETTER OF CREDIT NO. ILC-1233/BSN 

AND ALLIED IRISH BANKS, P.L.C., NEW YORK BRANCH 
IRRECOVABLE DIRECT PAY LETTER OF CREDIT NO. C-548 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED 

Pay on Demand to 

_________________________, as trustee 

(U.S. $_________________) 

State Street Bank and Trust Company Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of Credit No. ILC-
1233/BSN dated January 23, 2003 

Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of Credit No. C-548 
dated January 23, 2003 

TO: State Street Bank and Trust Company, as Agent 
225 Franklin Street 
Boston, MA  02110 
Attention:  Global Trade Banking 

      ___________________, as Trustee

      By:_________________________ 
      Authorized Officer 

The signature below constitutes an endorsement of this sight draft. 

      ___________________, as Trustee

      By:_________________________ 
      Authorized Officer 

Dated:_________________

[Insert payment instructions.]
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Annex B

[Form of Certificate for Interest Drawing] 

“CERTIFICATE FOR DRAWING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PAYMENT 
OF UP TO 51 DAYS’ INTEREST 

Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of Credit No.: 
State Street Bank and Trust Company: No. ILC-1233/BSN 
Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch:  No. C-548 

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to State Street Bank and Trust Company and Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New 
York Branch (collectively, the ‘Banks’), with respect to the above-referenced Irrevocable Direct 
Pay Letter of Credit (the ‘Letter of Credit’; the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined 
herein being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Banks in favor of the Trustee, as 
follows:

(1) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The Trustee is making a drawing under the Letter of Credit with respect to a 
payment of interest on Bonds, which payment is due and payable or which will become
due and payable on the date specified as follows:  [date].  As of the record date for such 
interest payment, none of such Bonds to which this drawing relates were Institution 
Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in the Indenture. 

(3) [The Interest Drawing of which this Certificate is a part is the first Interest 
Drawing presented by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit, and covers interest on the 
Bonds accruing on and after January 23, 2003.]*  OR  [Not less than 10 days has elapsed 
since the Interest Drawing last presented by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit was 
honored and paid by the Banks and the Trustee has not received within ten days after 
payment of such Interest Drawing a notice from the Agent that a default exists under the 
Reimbursement Agreement and that the Interest Component of the Letter of Credit will 
not be reinstated.]**

(4) The amount of the Interest Drawing of which this Certificate is a part is 
$_____________.  Said amount was computed in compliance with the terms and 
conditions of the Bonds and the Indenture and does not exceed the amount available to be 
drawn by the Trustee as the Interest Component under the Letter of Credit. 

* To be used in the Certificate relating to the first Interest Drawing only.
** To be used in each Certificate relating to each Interest Drawing other than the first Interest
      Drawing. 
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(5) Upon receipt by the undersigned of any monies demanded hereby, (a) the 
undersigned will apply the same directly to the payment when due of the interest amount
owing on account of the Bonds on an interest payment date, (b) no portion of said monies
shall be applied by the undersigned for any other purpose, and (c) no portion of said 
monies shall be commingled with other funds held by the undersigned. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this Certificate as of
the     day of , 20__. 

[  ] 

       as Trustee

By:________________________________”
Name:
Title:
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Annex C

[Form of Certificate for Tender Drawing] 

“CERTIFICATE FOR DRAWING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PAYMENT OF 
THE PURCHASE PRICE OF BONDS TENDERED AT THE OPTION OF 

THE HOLDERS THEREOF OR PURSUANT TO MANDATORY TENDER 

Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of Credit No.: 
State Street Bank and Trust Company: No. ILC-1233/BSN 
Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch:  No. C-548 

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to State Street Bank and Trust Company and Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New 
York Branch (collectively, the ‘Banks’), with respect to the above-referenced Irrevocable Direct 
Pay Letter of Credit (the ‘Letter of Credit’; the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined 
herein being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Banks in favor of the Trustee, as 
follows:

(1) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The Trustee is making a drawing under the Letter of Credit with respect to a 
payment, upon a tender of all or less than all of the Bonds that are Outstanding (as defined in the 
Indenture) (other than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in the 
Indenture), of the unpaid principal amount of, and up to 51 days’ interest on, the Bonds to be 
purchased as a result of [optional tender pursuant to the terms of Section 301(f) of the Indenture] 
[mandatory tender pursuant to the terms of Section 301(g) of the Indenture].* 

(3) The amount of the Tender Drawing of which this Certificate is a part is equal to 
the sum of (i) $____________ being drawn in respect of the payment of unpaid principal of 
Bonds (other than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in the 
Indenture) to be purchased as a result of a tender, plus (ii) $___________ being drawn in respect 
of the payment of interest on such Bonds. 

(4) The Trustee shall register or cause to be registered in the name of the Agent, or its 
designee, as pledgee of the Borrower, as provided in Section 311 of the Indenture, and shall 
deliver or cause to be delivered to the Agent or its designee a principal amount of Bonds equal to 
the principal amount of the Tender Drawing of which this Certificate is a part as promptly as 
practicable, and in any event within three (3) Business Days after presentation of said Tender 
Drawing.

(5) Upon receipt by the undersigned of any monies demanded hereby, (a) the 
undersigned will apply the same directly to the payment when due of the purchase price of, and 

* Select one 
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interest on, Bonds tendered pursuant to the Indenture (or, to the extent not needed for that 
purpose, will be returned to the Agent for the account of the Banks), (b) no portion of said 
monies shall be applied by the undersigned for any other purpose, and (c) no portion of said 
monies shall be commingled with other funds held by the undersigned. 

(6) The amount of the Tender Drawing of which this Certificate is a part was 
computed in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds and the Indenture and does 
not exceed the amount available to be drawn by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit; the 
amount being drawn hereby in respect of interest does not exceed the Interest Component and 
the amount being drawn hereby in respect of principal does not exceed the Principal Component.

The Trustee acknowledges that, pursuant to the terms of the Letter of Credit, upon a 
Bank’s honoring of its allocable share of the Tender Drawing of which this Certificate is a part, 
the amount of the Letter of Credit (and such Bank’s Letter of Credit Commitment) and the 
amounts available to be drawn by the Trustee thereunder by any subsequent Drawing are 
automatically decreased, subject to reinstatement as set forth in the Letter of Credit. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this Certificate as of
the _____ day of _________________, _____. 

[     ]
 _______________________________ 

as Trustee

 By:_____________________________” 
Name:
Title:
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Annex D

[Form of Certificate for Partial Redemption Drawing] 

“CERTIFICATE FOR DRAWING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PAYMENT 
OF PRINCIPAL AND UP TO 51 DAYS’ INTEREST UPON PARTIAL 

REDEMPTION

Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of Credit No.: 
State Street Bank and Trust Company: No. ILC-1233/BSN 
Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch:  No. C-548 

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to State Street Bank and Trust Company and Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New 
York Branch (collectively, the ‘Banks’), with respect to the above-referenced Irrevocable Direct 
Pay Letter of Credit (the ‘Letter of Credit’; the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined 
herein being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Banks in favor of the Trustee, as 
follows:

(1) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The Trustee is making a drawing under the Letter of Credit with respect to a 
payment, upon redemption of less than all of the Bonds that are Outstanding (as defined in the 
Indenture), of the unpaid principal amount of, and up to 51 days’ interest on, the Bonds to be 
redeemed pursuant to Section 309 of the Indenture (other than Institution Bonds or Pledged 
Bonds, as those terms are defined in the Indenture). 

(3) The amount of the Partial Redemption Drawing of which this Certificate is a part 
is equal to the sum of (i) $____________ being drawn in respect of the payment of unpaid 
principal of Bonds (other than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in 
the Indenture) to be redeemed, plus (ii) $_________ being drawn in respect of the payment of 
interest on such Bonds. 

(4) The amount of the Partial Redemption Drawing of which this Certificate is a part 
was computed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds and the Indenture and 
does not exceed the amount available to be drawn by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit; the 
amount being drawn hereby in respect of interest does not exceed the Interest Component and 
the amount being drawn hereby in respect of principal does not exceed the Principal Component.

(5) This Certificate and the Partial Redemption Drawing of which it is a part are 
being presented to the Banks for payment on a date on which the unpaid principal amount of and 
interest on Bonds to be redeemed are due and payable under the Indenture upon redemption of 
less than all of the Bonds that are Outstanding (as defined in the Indenture). 
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(6) Upon receipt by the undersigned of any monies demanded hereby, (a) the 
undersigned will apply the same directly to the payment when due of the principal amount of, 
and interest on, Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to the Indenture, (b) no portion of said monies
shall be applied by the undersigned for any other purpose, and (c) no portion of said monies shall 
be commingled with other funds held by the undersigned. 

The Trustee acknowledges that, pursuant to the terms of the Letter of Credit, upon a 
Bank’s honoring its allocable share of the Partial Redemption Drawing of which this Certificate 
is a part, the amount of the Letter of Credit and the amounts available to be drawn by the Trustee 
thereunder by any subsequent Drawing (and such Bank’s Letter of Credit Commitment) are 
automatically and permanently decreased by the amounts set forth in the Letter of Credit. The 
Trustee acknowledges, that pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence, upon the Banks 
honoring said Partial Redemption Drawing (a) the Principal Component of the Letter of Credit is 
being permanently reduced by $_____________ (the amount set forth in clause (i) of Paragraph 
3 above), and (b) the maximum amount to which the Interest Component can be reinstated under 
the Letter of Credit is being permanently reduced by $___________ (the product of (x) the 
amount set forth in clause (i) of Paragraph 3 above, times (y) 0.10, times (z) 51/365). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this Certificate as of
the _______ day of _________, 20 _____. 

 [  ] 

 as Trustee

 By:__________________________” 
     Name:
     Title: 
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Annex E

[Form of Certificate for Final Drawing] 

“CERTIFICATE FOR DRAWING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PAYMENT OF 
PRINCIPAL AND UP TO 51 DAYS’ INTEREST, UPON STATED OR ACCELERATED 

MATURITY OR OPTIONAL OR MANDATORY REDEMPTION AS A WHOLE

Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of Credit No.: 
State Street Bank and Trust Company: No. ILC-1233/BSN 
Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch:  No. C-548 

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to State Street Bank and Trust Company and Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New 
York Branch (collectively, the ‘Banks’), with respect to the above-referenced Irrevocable Direct 
Pay Letter of Credit (the ‘Letter of Credit’; the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined 
herein being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Banks in favor of the Trustee, as 
follows:

(l) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The Trustee is making a drawing under the Letter of Credit with respect to a 
payment*

[ ] upon stated maturity, pursuant to Section 301(a) of the Indenture, 

[ ] upon acceleration, pursuant to Section 602 of the Indenture, 

[ ] upon optional redemption in whole, pursuant to Section 309 of the Indenture, 

[ ] upon mandatory redemption in whole, pursuant to Section 309 of the 
Indenture,

of the unpaid principal amount of and up to 51 days’ interest on, all of the Bonds that are 
Outstanding within the meaning of the Indenture (other than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, 
as those terms are defined in the Indenture). 

(3) The amount of the Final Drawing of which this Certificate is a part is equal to the 
sum of (i) $_____________ being drawn in respect of the payment of unpaid principal of Bonds 
(other than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in the Indenture), plus 
(ii) $_________ being drawn in respect of the payment of interest on such Bonds. 

* Check applicable Section.
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(4) The amount of the Final Drawing of which this Certificate is a part was computed
in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds and the Indenture and does not exceed 
the amount available to be drawn by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit; the amount being 
drawn hereby in respect of interest does not exceed the Interest Component and the amount
being drawn hereby in respect of principal of Bonds does not exceed the Principal Component.

(5) Upon receipt by the undersigned of any monies demanded hereby, (a) the 
undersigned will apply the same directly to the payment when due of the principal amount of, 
and interest on, the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, (b) no portion of such monies shall be 
applied by the undersigned for any other purpose, and (c) no portion of such monies shall be 
commingled with other funds held by the undersigned. 

The Trustee acknowledges that, pursuant to the terms of the Letter of Credit, upon any 
Bank’s honoring its allocable share of the Final Drawing of which this Certificate is a part, the 
Letter of Credit is automatically terminated as to such Bank and no further amounts are available 
to be drawn from such Bank by the Trustee thereunder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this Certificate as of
the _____________ day of ____________, _____. 

 [  ] 

 as Trustee

 By:_________________________” 
     Name:

Title:

F-17



Annex F

[Form of Reinstatement Certificate for Tender Drawing]

“CERTIFICATE FOR THE REINSTATEMENT OF AMOUNTS AVAILABLE UNDER 
IRREVOCABLE DIRECT PAY LETTER OF CREDIT NO.: 

State Street Bank and Trust Company: No. ILC-1233/BSN 
Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch:  No. C-548 

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to State Street Bank and Trust Company and Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New 
York Branch (collectively, the ‘Banks’), with respect to the above-referenced Irrevocable Direct 
Pay Letter of Credit (the ‘Letter of Credit’; the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined 
herein being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Banks in favor of the Trustee, as 
follows:

(1) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The amount of $__________ paid to the Agent, for the account of the Banks, 
today by or on behalf of the Borrower is a payment made to reimburse the Banks, pursuant to 
Section 2(f) of the Reimbursement Agreement, for amounts drawn under the Letter of Credit by 
one or more Tender Drawings.  Of such amount, $___________ represents the aggregate 
principal amount of Bonds resold or to be resold on behalf of the Borrower.  The Trustee hereby 
requests that the Banks reinstate the Principal Component of the Letter of Credit upon receipt of 
such payment in an amount equal to said principal amount of Bonds and that the Banks reinstate 
the portion of the Interest Component of the Letter of Credit relating to such principal amount of 
Bonds.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this Certificate as of 
the __________ day of ___________, _____. 

 [__________________________] 
 as Trustee

 By:_______________________” 
     Name:

Title:
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Annex G

[Form of Transfer Certificate]

“INSTRUCTION TO TRANSFER 

            [Date]

State Street Bank and Trust Company, as Agent 
225 Franklin Street 
Boston, MA  02110 
Attention:  Global Trade Banking 

Re:  Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of Credit No.: 
State Street Bank and Trust Company: No. ILC-1233/BSN 
Allied Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch:  No. C-548 

Gentlemen:

For value received, the undersigned beneficiary hereby irrevocably transfers to the 
following (the Transferee): 

________________________________
[Name of Transferee] 

__________________________________
[Address]

`

all rights of the undersigned beneficiary to draw under the above-captioned Letter of Credit (the 
‘Letter of Credit’) in its entirety.  The Transferee has succeeded the undersigned as Trustee 
under the Indenture (as defined in the Letter of Credit). 
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By this transfer, all rights of the undersigned beneficiary in the Letter of Credit are 
transferred to the Transferee and the Transferee shall have the sole rights as beneficiary thereof, 
including sole rights relating to any amendments of the Letter of Credit, whether increases in the 
amount to be drawn thereunder, extensions of the expiration date thereof, or other amendments,
and whether such amendments now exist or are made after the date hereof.  All amendments of 
the Letter of Credit are to be delivered directly to the Transferee without necessity of any 
consent of or notice to the undersigned beneficiary.  The undersigned hereby certifies that the 
Transferee has become successor Trustee under the Indenture, and has accepted such 
appointment in writing. 

The original of the Letter of Credit is returned herewith, and in accordance therewith we 
ask the Agent (as defined in the Letter of Credit) to endorse the within transfer on the reverse 
thereof, and forward it directly to the Transferee with the Agent’s customary notice of transfer. 

SIGNATURE AUTHENTICATED 

_____________________________________
(Bank)

Very truly yours, 

[             ], as predecessor Trustee 

By:_________________________________
 Authorized Officer

We certify that we have succeeded [predecessor Trustee] as trustee under the Indenture. 

[Name of Transferee] 

By: ”
Authorized Officer

ACCEPTED BY: 
STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY, as Agent 

By:_________________________________
 Authorized Signature
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APPENDIX G 
 

 
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF 

THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

 The Trustees of Emmanuel College (the “Institution”) is entering into a Reimbursement Agreement with Allied 
Irish Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch and State Street Bank and Trust Company (collectively, the “Banks”) and 
State Street Bank and Trust Company, as Agent (the “Agent Bank”) pursuant to which the Institution has agreed to 
reimburse the Banks for sums drawn on the Letter of Credit.  The Reimbursement Agreement also provides for 
commitment fees, drawing fees, transfer fees and other fees and charges.  The Institution’s obligations under the 
Reimbursement Agreement will be secured by collateral assignments of the construction contract, architect’s 
contract and development agreement for improvements to Marian Hall, the new athletic center and the new student 
center. 

 The Reimbursement Agreement sets forth conditions to the issuance of the Letter of Credit and certain 
representations and warranties which are to be true at the closing date.  Such representations and warranties include 
representations as to:  due organization, legal existence and legal capacity of the Institution; due corporate approval, 
execution and delivery of financing documents; enforceability of financing documents; no litigation; compliance 
with applicable agreements; payment of taxes; compliance with laws; obtaining permits; no violation of 
Regulation U; lack of encumbrances; accuracy of financial information; no adverse changes; no ERISA violation; no 
burdensome contracts; principal place of business of the Institution and locations of collateral; environmental 
matters; no casualty or condemnation; no adverse easements or restrictions on the Institution’s defined Project 
Property (which includes a portion of the Institution’s academic campus including St. Joseph’s Hall and Marian 
Hall); utility services and access to the Project Property; no flood zone; intellectual property matters; solvency of the 
Institution; and accuracy of information furnished. 

 The Reimbursement Agreement also contains affirmative and negative covenants and reporting requirements.  
Affirmative covenants of the Institution include:  payment of amounts due to the Banks and the Agent Bank; 
payment of taxes, charges and other obligations; maintenance of insurance; maintenance of the Institution’s legal 
existence and qualification; compliance with laws; maintenance of accreditation; the Agent Bank’s rights of access 
and inspection; maintenance of proper books and records; maintenance and repair of property; rate covenant; 
continued conduct of business by the Institution and a prohibition against the Institution undertaking unrelated new 
lines of business; maintenance of satisfactory management; providing further assurances; maintenance by the 
Institution of a debt service coverage ratio of not less than 1.50 to 1; maintenance by the Institution of a minimum 
level of operating cash described therein; compliance with the Banks’ disbursement requirements; a requirement as 
to the granting of a real estate mortgage on the Project Property upon the occurrence of certain events; requirements 
as to environmental site assessments and appraisals if a mortgage is granted; reports and remediation plans in certain 
circumstances; and annual updates to the Institution’s rating.  Negative covenants include:  limitation on further 
indebtedness, subject to exceptions and baskets described therein; limitation on further liens, subject to exceptions 
described therein; limitation on guaranties, subject to exceptions described therein; prohibition against dissolution or 
merger and limitations on asset dispositions as described therein; prohibitions against factoring; limitations on loans 
to other persons and investments in other persons, subject to exceptions described therein; prohibition against asset 
write-ups and changes in fiscal year; limitations on adverse changes to ERISA plans; prohibition against change in 
principal place of business or location of assets, change in name, legal structure or jurisdiction of incorporation or 
other similar changes, unless the Agent Bank is given notice and such documentation as it may require in order to 
protect any existing security interests; prohibition against sale-leaseback transactions; limitations on formation of 
subsidiaries, investment in subsidiaries and membership in partnerships; limitations on transactions with affiliates; 
requirements relating to environmental hazards; limitations on changes to proposed Project; limitations on payment 
of distributions; prohibition against becoming a subsidiary of another entity other than the Sisters of Notre Dame de 
Namur; and limitations on capital expenditures.  Reporting requirements include requirements to furnish: annual 
audited financial statements of the Institution; semi-annual management-prepared financial statements; semi-annual 
and annual compliance certificates; notice of default; annual operating budget; annual enrollment statistics; 
management letters; notice of material litigation; notice of ERISA violations; notice of change of accountants; notice 
of environmental violations; notice of loss of material permits; notice of material loss or casualty damage; notice of 
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material labor problems; notice of other adverse developments; and such other information as any Bank or the Agent 
Bank may reasonably request. 

 The Reimbursement Agreement also sets out certain Events of Default.  These include:  (i) failure to pay; 
(ii) failure to observe certain affirmative covenants (including covenants relating to insurance, payment of taxes, 
legal existence, observance of financial ratios, springing mortgage provisions and providing evidence of rating), as 
well as failure to comply with any of the negative covenants (subject to certain cure provisions with respect to 
involuntary liens and environmental violations) or reporting requirements; (iii) failure to comply with laws for 30 
days after the Institution knows (or reasonably should have known) thereof; (iv) default under any other covenant 
for 30 days after notice; (v) failure of any representation or warranty to have been true in any material respect; 
(vi) cross-default to other agreements now or hereafter made by the Institution with the Bank; (vii) cross-default to 
certain other indebtedness in excess of $750,000; (viii) dissolution of the Institution or bankruptcy, reorganization or 
similar proceedings affecting the Institution or any of its subsidiaries, other than involuntary proceedings dismissed 
within 60 days; (ix) material ERISA violations; (x) material uninsured loss, theft, damage or destruction; 
(xi) unenforceability of financing documents; (xii) any loss of perfection or priority or contest of the Agent Bank’s 
liens; (xiii) final uninsured judgments in excess of $750,000; (xiv) occurrence of material adverse change; 
(xv) cross-defaults to Bond Trust Indenture and other agreements; and (xvi) any material environmental problem. 

 Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Reimbursement Agreement, the Agent Bank may, among 
other things:  (i) direct the Bond Trustee to accelerate the Bonds; (ii) cause a mandatory tender of the Bonds; 
(iii) accelerate all outstanding reimbursement obligations; (iv) enforce its rights under any existing security 
documentation; (v) enforce its rights against the Institution through legal action; (vi) exercise other remedies under 
applicable law or other agreements, and/or (vii) give notice of non-reinstatement of the interest component of the 
Letter of Credit. 

 The Reimbursement Agreement also contains provisions as to the Agent Bank’s right (but not obligation) to 
cure certain defaults of the Institution; indemnification of the Banks and the Agent Bank by the Institution; 
amendments and waivers; notices and other miscellaneous provisions. 
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PROPOSED FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION

[Closing Date]

Massachusetts Health and Educational
Facilities Authority

99 Summer Street, Suite 1000
Boston, Massachusetts 02110

We have acted as bond counsel to the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”)
in connection with the issuance by the Authority of the following bonds (the “Bonds”):

$40,400,000
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds,
Emmanuel College Issue, Series 2003

We have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as deemed necessary to render this
opinion, including the Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of December 10, 2002 (the “Agreement”) among the
Authority, The Trustees of Emmanuel College (the “Institution”) and Citizens Banks of Massachusetts, as Trustee
(the “Trustee”).

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations of the Authority and the
Institution contained in the Agreement, the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished
to us, and certifications by officials of the Institution, without undertaking to verify the same by independent
investigation.

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Agreement. The Bonds are payable solely from funds to be provided therefor
by the Institution pursuant to the Agreement, including amounts drawn by the Trustee under a letter of credit
supporting the Bonds (the “Letter of Credit”) issued by State Street Bank and Trust Company and Allied Irish
Banks, p.l.c., New York Branch (collectively, the “Banks”) to the Trustee pursuant to the Reimbursement
Agreement dated as of December 10, 2002 among the Banks, State Street Bank and Trust Company, as Agent Bank,
and the Institution (the “Reimbursement Agreement”). Under the Agreement the Institution has agreed to make
payments sufficient to pay when due the principal (including sinking fund installments) of, and premium (if any)
and interest on the Bonds. Such payments and other moneys payable to the Authority or the Trustee under the
Agreement, (collectively the “Revenues”), and the rights of the Authority under the Agreement to receive the same
(excluding, however, certain administrative fees, indemnification and reimbursements), are pledged and assigned by
the Authority to the Trustee as security for the Bonds. The Bonds are payable solely from the Revenues.

Reference is made to an opinion of even date of Ropes & Gray, counsel to the Institution, with respect to, among
other matters, the corporate existence of the Institution, the power of the Institution to enter into and perform the
Agreement, the authorization, execution and delivery of the Agreement by the Institution, and the extent to which
the Agreement is binding and enforceable upon the Institution.

We express no opinion with respect to compliance by the Institution with applicable legal requirements with respect
to the Agreement, the Letter of Credit or the Reimbursement Agreement or in connection with the construction,
equipping or operation of the Project.

Based on our examination, we are of opinion, as of the date hereof and under existing law, as follows:
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1. The Authority is a duly created and validly existing body corporate and politic and a public
instrumentality of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts with the power to enter into and perform the Agreement
and to issue the Bonds.

2. The Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority and is a valid
and binding obligation of the Authority enforceable upon the Authority. As provided in Chapter 614 of the Acts of
1968 of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as amended, the Agreement creates a valid lien on the Revenues and
on the rights of the Authority or the Trustee on behalf of the Authority to receive Revenues under the Agreement
(except certain rights to indemnification, reimbursements and fees) to secure the Bonds.

3. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority and are valid and
binding special obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the Revenues.

4. Under existing law, interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the
Bonds for federal income tax purposes. In addition, interest on the Bonds will not be treated as a preference item in
calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “IRC”) on
individuals and corporations. However, we call your attention to the fact that interest on the Bonds will be taken
into account in determining adjusted current earnings for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax
imposed on corporations (as defined for federal income tax purposes). We also call your attention to the fact that
failure by the Institution or the Authority to comply subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds with certain
requirements of the IRC may cause interest on the Bonds to become includable in the gross income of the owners of
the Bonds for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The Institution and, to
the extent necessary, the Authority have covenanted in the Agreement to take all lawful action necessary under the
IRC to ensure that interest on the Bonds will remain excluded from the gross income of the owners of the Bonds for
federal income tax purposes and to refrain from taking any action which would cause interest on the Bonds to
become includable in such gross income. We express no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences
arising with respect to the Bonds.

5. Under existing law, interest on the Bonds and any profit made on the sale thereof are exempt from
Massachusetts personal income taxes and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. We
express no opinion as to other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds nor as to the
taxability of the Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts.

It is to be understood that the rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds and the
Agreement are subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting
creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable and that their enforcement
may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases.

Yours faithfully,
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